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NOTICE 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Forty-Fifth (45
th

) Annual General Meeting of the Members of MAURIA UDYOG 

LIMITED will be held on Thursday, the 25
th

 September, 2025 at 03:00 P.M.(IST) through Video Conferencing(“VC”) or 
Other Audio-Visual Means (“OAVM”) to transact the following business: 

 
ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

 
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company including the Audited Balance Sheet as 

at 31st March, 2025, Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2025 together with the reports of the 

Board of Directors and the Auditors. 

 
2. To appoint a director in place of Mrs. Deepa Sureka (DIN: 00060284),  who retires by rotation and, being eligible, offers 

herself for re- appointment. 

 

3. To Re-appoint M/s NKSC & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN: 020076N), Delhi, as the Statutory Auditors of the 
Company. 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 139, 142 and all other applicable provisions, if any, of  
the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the Rules made thereunder, (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force), M/s. NKSC & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN: 020076N) be and 
are hereby re-appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company, for a further period of five (5) years, to hold office from 
the conclusion of this Annual General meeting until the conclusion of 50 th (Fiftieth) Annual General Meeting on such 
remuneration, inclusive of applicable taxes, as recommended by the Audit Committee and as may be mutually agreed 
between the Board of Directors of the Company and the Statutory Auditors from time to time.”  

 
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all acts and take 
all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.” 

 
SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

 

ITEM No. 04.  
To appoint M/s. Jyoti Arya & Associates, Company Secretaries, as Secretarial Auditors for a term of up to 5 (Five) 

consecutive years, fix their remuneration and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following 

resolution as an ORDINARY RESOLUTION: 

 

 

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013, if any and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 and 
Regulation 24A and other applicable provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, 
for the time being in force) and based on the recommendations of the Board of Directors of the Company, subject to 
receipt of such other approvals, consents and permissions as may be required, M/s. Jyoti Arya & Associates, 
Company Secretaries, COP No-17651 be and are hereby appointed as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for a term 
of up to 5(Five) consecutive years, to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) till the 
conclusion of 50th (Fiftieth) AGM of the Company to be held in the Year 2030, at a remuneration to be fixed by the 
Board of Directors of the Company or any Committee of the Board of Directors (‘the Board’).  
RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to do all such acts, deeds, things and to sign all 
such documents and writings as may be necessary to give effect to this resolution and for matters connected therewith 
or incidental thereto.” 
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ITEM No. 05.  

 

To approve entering into Transactions with Related Parties and in this regard to consider and if thought fit, to pass with 

or without modification(s) the following resolution as AN ORDINARY RESOLUTION.  

 

"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Regulation 23 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“Listing Regulations”), the applicable provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made thereunder and other applicable provisions, if any, [including any statutory 
modification(s) or amendment(s) thereto or re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force], the Company’s Policy on 
Materiality of and Dealing with Related Party Transactions, and subject to such approval(s), consent(s), permission(s) as may 
be necessary from time to time and based on the approval/ recommendation of the Audit Committee and the Board of Directors 
of the Company, approval of the Members be & hereby accorded to the Company to enter into/ continue with the existing 
Related Party Transaction(s)/ Contract(s)/ Arrangement(s)/ Agreement(s) (whether by way of an individual transaction or 
transactions taken together or series of transactions or otherwise) falling within the definition of ‘Related Party Transaction’ 
under Regulation 2(1)(zc) of the Listing Regulations read with the definition of ‘Related Party’ under Regulation 2(1)(zb) of the 
Listing Regulations in the course of: i) Sale and purchase of any goods and material; ii) Availing / rendering of any services; iii) 
Sharing or usage of each other’s resources and reimbursement of expenses, licensing of technology and intellectual property 
rights, receipt of royalty / brand usage; iv) Purchase / sale / transfer / exchange / lease of business assets including property, 
plant and equipment, Intangible assets, transfer of technology to meet the business objectives and requirements; v) Providing 
fund based and non-fund based support including equity / debt / Inter-corporate deposits (ICD), convertible / non-convertible 
instruments / Guarantee/ security etc., in connection with loans provided and Interest, commission and other related income / 
expenses.vi) Any transfer of resources, services or obligations to meet its objectives / requirements; with Related Parties as 
detailed in the explanatory statement to this Resolution, on such material terms and conditions as mentioned therein and as may 
be mutually agreed between the parties and the Company, for the financial year FY 2025-26, provided that the said contract(s)/ 
arrangement(s)/ agreement(s)/ transaction(s) shall be carried out in the ordinary course of business of the Company and at arm’s 
length basis. 

 

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the Company (including any Committee thereof) be authorised to do 
all such acts, deeds, matters and things as it may deem fit at its absolute discretion and to take all such steps as may be required 
in this connection including finalising and executing necessary contract(s), scheme(s), agreement(s) and such other documents 
as may be required, seeking all necessary approvals to give effect to this Resolution, for and on behalf of the Company and 
settling all such issues, questions, difficulties or doubts whatsoever that may arise and to take all such decisions with regard to 
the powers herein conferred to, without being required to seek further consent or approval of the Members or otherwise to the 
end and intent that the Members shall be deemed to have given their approval thereto expressly by the authority of this 
Resolution.  

 

FURTHER RESOLVED THAT all actions taken by the Board of Directors of the Company (including any Committee thereof) 
in connection with any matter referred to or contemplated in this Resolution, be approved, ratified and confirmed in all 
respects.” 

 
   ITEM NO  06:     

 

To Ratify the appointment and remuneration of Cost Auditor of the Company for the financial year ending March 31, 

2026 and in this regard, to consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolution as an ORDINARY 

RESOLUTION: 

 
“ RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 148 and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 
2013 and Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, 
for the time being in force), and on the recommendation of Audit Committee, Jai Prakash & Co., the Cost Auditors (Firm 
Registration Number No.-100572) appointed by the Board of Directors of the Company, to conduct the Audit of the cost 
records of the Company for the financial year ending March, 31, 2026, to be paid the remuneration of Rs. 55,000/-” 
(Rupees Fifty-five Thousand Only) in connection with the aforesaid audit, be & is hereby ratified and confirmed.  
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“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors of the Company be and is hereby authorized to do all acts and 
take all such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.” 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

By Order of the Board of Directors         

MAURIA UDYOG LIMITED 

SD/- 
(DIVYA AGARWAL) 

COMPANY SECRETARY 
ROOM NO. 107, 1STFLOOR, 
ANAND JYOTI BUILDING, 
41, NETAJI SUBHAS ROAD, 

KOLKATA-700001 
(WEST BENGAL) 

CIN: L51909WB1980PLC033010 
Date: September 03, 2025. 
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Notes: 
 

1. Pursuant to the General Circular No. 09/2024 dated September 19, 2024, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) 
and circular issued by SEBI vide circular no. SEBI/ HO/ CFD/ CFDPoD-2/ P/ CIR/ 2024/ 133 dated October 3, 2024 (“SEBI 
Circular”) and other applicable circulars and notifications issued (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment 
thereof for the time being in force and as amended from time to time, companies are allowed to hold EGM/AGM through 
Video Conferencing (VC) or other audio visual means (OAVM), without the physical presence of members at a common 
venue. In compliance with the said Circulars, 45th AGM shall be conducted through VC / OAVM. 

 
2. Pursuant to the Circular No. 14/2020 dated April 08, 2020, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the facility to appoint 

proxy to attend and cast vote for the members is not available for this  AGM. However, the Body Corporates are entitled to 
appoint authorised representatives to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM and participate there at and cast their votes 
through e-voting. 

 
3. The Members can join the EGM/AGM in the VC/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after the scheduled time of the 

commencement of the Meeting by following the procedure mentioned in the Notice. The facility of participation at the 
EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM will be made available for 1000 members on first come first served basis. This will not 
include large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 2% or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutional Investors, Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee, Auditors etc. who are allowed to attend the EGM/AGM without restriction on account of first come 
first served basis. 

 
4. The attendance of the Members attending the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM will be counted for the purpose of reckoning 

the quorum under Section 103 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 

5. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended)  the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings (SS-2) issued by the ICSI and 
Regulation 44 of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and the Circulars 
issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs from time to time the Company is providing facility of remote e-Voting to its 
Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the EGM/AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an 
agreement with National Securities Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the 
authorized agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-Voting system as well as e-voting on the date of 
the EGM/AGM will be provided by NSDL. 

 
6. In line with the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) Circular No. 17/2020 dated April 13, 2020, the Notice calling 
the 45th AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at https://mauria.com/notices-announcements/. The Notice 
can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and the 45th AGM 
Notice is also available on the website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. 
www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

 
7. EGM/AGM has been convened through VC/OAVM in compliance with applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 

read with MCA Circular issued from time to time  
 

THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING AND JOINING GENERAL MEETING ARE AS 

UNDER:- 

 

The remote e-voting period begins on Monday, September 22, 2025 at 9:00 A.M. and ends on Wednesday September 24,  

2025 at 5:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, whose 

names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e. Thursday September 

18, 2025 may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall be in proportion to their share in the 

paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off date, being September 18, 2025. E-voting results will be 

declared within 2 working days from the conclusion of 45
th

 AGM i.e. on or before Saturday September 27, 2025  

 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 
The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are mentioned below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

https://mauria.com/notices-announcements/
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A) Login method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat 

mode 
In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders 

holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories and 
Depository Participants. Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat accounts in 
order to access e-Voting facility. 

Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 
 

Type of shareholders  Login Method 

Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securities in demat 
mode with NSDL. 

1. For OTP based login you can click 

on https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp. You 

will have to enter your 8-digit DP ID,8-digit Client Id, PAN No., 

Verification code and generate OTP. Enter the OTP received on 

registered email id/mobile number and click on login. After successful 

authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein 

you can see e-Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service 

provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of 

NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 

joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

2. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 

https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. 

On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon 

under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ section , this will 

prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. After 

successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services 

under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-

Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. Click on 

company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be 

re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during 

the remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during 

the meeting. 

3. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is 

available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for 
IDeAS Portal” or click at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

4. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 

following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 

Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system is 

launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 
‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have 
to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number hold 

with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on the 

screen. After successful authentication, you will be redirected to NSDL 

Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting page. Click on company 

name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be 

redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 

remote e-Voting period or joining virtual meeting & voting during the 

meeting.  

5. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL 

Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/evoting/evotinglogin.jsp
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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seamless voting experience. 

 
Individual 
Shareholders holding 
securities in demat 
mode with CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can login 

through their existing user id and password. Option will be made 

available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The 

users to login Easi /Easiest are requested to visit CDSL website 

www.cdslindia.com and click on login icon & New System Myeasi Tab 

and then user your existing my easi username & password. 

2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see the e-

Voting option for eligible companies where the evoting is in progress as 

per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting 

option, the user will be able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service 

provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 

joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there 

is also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service 

Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ 
website directly. 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 

available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login & 

New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option. 

 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing 

Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-Voting link available on 

www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the user 

by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat 

Account. After successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-

Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly 

access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

Individual 
Shareholders (holding 
securities in demat 
mode) login through 
their depository 
participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through 
your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. 
upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting 
option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 
authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on company name 
or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting 
website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 

 
Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget User ID  
and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 
Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues  

http://www.cdslindia.com/
http://www.cdslindia.com/
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related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL 

 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  
evoting@nsdl.com or call at 022 - 4886 7000 

Individual Shareholders holding securities in 
demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 
CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free 
no. 1800-21-09911 
 

 

 

B) Login Method for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for shareholders other than Individual 

shareholders holding securities in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 

 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available 
under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a Verification 
Code as shown on the screen. 
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL eservices after 

using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 2 i.e. Cast your vote 

electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 
 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 

(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in 

demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID 

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client 

ID is 12****** then your user ID is 

IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in 

demat account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 

12************** then your user ID is 

12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in 

Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 

registered with the company 

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN 

is 101456 then user ID is 101456001*** 

 

 

5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  
a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to login 

mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
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and cast your vote. 
 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the ‘initial 
password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial password’, you 
need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the company, your ‘initial 

password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent to you from 
NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment i.e. a .pdf file. 
Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit client ID for 
NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for shares 
held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in process for 

those shareholders whose email ids are not registered.  
 

6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “ Initial password” or have forgotten your 
password: 
a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your demat account 

with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
b)  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option available 

on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a request at 

evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat account number/folio number, your PAN, your name 
and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on the e-
Voting system of NSDL. 

 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the check 
box. 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronically and join General Meeting on NSDL e-Voting system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which you are holding shares and 
whose voting cycle and General Meeting is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting period and casting your vote 

during the General Meeting. For joining virtual meeting, you need to click on “VC/OAVM” link placed under “Join 
Meeting”. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the number of shares for which you 

wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also “Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the confirmation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote 

General Guidelines for shareholders 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co
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1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send scanned copy (PDF/JPG 

Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized 

signatory(ies) who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to pcsjyotiarya@gmail.com with a copy marked to 

evoting@nsdl.com. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) can also upload their Board 

Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by clicking on "Upload Board Resolution / Authority 

Letter" displayed under "e-Voting" tab in their login. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep your password 

confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct 

password. In such an event, you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset 

Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.  

3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for Shareholders and e-voting user manual 

for Shareholders available at the download section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on.: 022 - 4886 7000 or send a 

request to Ms. Pallavi Mhatre- Senior Manager at evoting@nsdl.com  

 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for procuring user id and password 
and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions set out in this notice: 
 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the share certificate 

(front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by 

email to secretarial@mauria.com. 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), 

Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR 

(self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to secretarial@mauria.com. If you are an Individual shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method explained at                 step 1 (A) i.e. Login method 

for e-Voting and joining virtual meeting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode. 

3. Alternatively shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for procuring user id and password for e-

voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

4. In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed Companies, Individual 

shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account maintained with Depositories 

and Depository Participants. Shareholders are required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat 

account in order to access e-Voting facility. 

 
THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR e-VOTING ON THE DAY OF THE EGM/AGM ARE AS UNDER:- 

1. The procedure for e-Voting on the day of the EGM/AGM is same as the instructions mentioned above for remote e-voting. 

2. Only those Members/ shareholders, who will be present in the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM facility and have not casted 

their vote on the Resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote 

through e-Voting system in the EGM/AGM. 

3. Members who have voted through Remote e-Voting will be eligible to attend the EGM/AGM. However, they will not be 

eligible to vote at the EGM/AGM. 

4. The details of the person who may be contacted for any grievances connected with the facility for e-Voting on the day of the 

EGM/AGM shall be the same person mentioned for Remote e-voting. 

 
INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR ATTENDING THE EGM/AGM THROUGH VC/OAVM ARE AS UNDER: 

 

1. Member will be provided with a facility to attend the EGM/AGM through VC/OAVM through the NSDL e-Voting system. 

Members may access by following the steps mentioned above for Access to NSDL e-Voting system. After successful login, 

you can see link of “VC/OAVM” placed under “Join meeting” menu against company name. You are requested to click on 

mailto:pcsjyotiarya@gmail.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:secretarial@mauria.com
mailto:secretarial@mauria.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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VC/OAVM link placed under Join Meeting menu. The link for VC/OAVM will be available in Shareholder/Member login 

where the EVEN of Company will be displayed. Please note that the members who do not have the User ID and Password for 

e-Voting or have forgotten the User ID and Password may retrieve the same by following the remote e-Voting instructions 

mentioned in the notice to avoid last minute rush. 

  
2. Members are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops for better experience. 

 
3. Further Members will be required to allow Camera and use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance during the 

meeting. 

 
4. Please note that Participants Connecting from Mobile Devices or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot 

may experience Audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to use Stable 

Wi-Fi or LAN Connection to mitigate any kind of aforesaid glitches. 

 

5. Shareholders who would like to express their views/have questions may send their questions in advance mentioning their 

name demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile number at secretarial@mauria.com).                     The same will 

be replied by the company suitably. 

6. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask questions during the meeting may register themselves as a speaker 
by sending their request in advance at least 7 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account number/folio 
number, email id, mobile number at secretarial@mauria.com). The shareholders who do not wish to speak during the AGM 
but have queries may send their queries in advance 7 days prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account 
number/folio number, email id, mobile number at (company email id). These queries will be replied to by the company 
suitably by email. 

 
7. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask questions 

during the meeting. 
 

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE 

COMPANY/DEPOSITORIES. 

 

1. For Physical shareholders- please provide necessary details like Folio No., Name of shareholder, scanned copy of the 
share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy 
of Aadhar Card) by email to Company/RTA email id secretarial@mauria.com 

 

2. For Demat shareholders - Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository Participant (DP) 
 

3. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository 
Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining virtual meetings through Depository. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:secretarial@mauria.com
mailto:secretarial@mauria.com
mailto:secretarial@mauria.com
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT 

(Pursuant to Section 102 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013(“the Act”), attached to the Notice dated   September 03, 2025 

convening the 45
th

  Annual General Meeting & in terms of Regulation 36(5) of Listing Regulations, 2015) 

 

Ordinary Business: 

 

Item No.:3 

 

Ordinary Resolution 

 

The Members of the Company at the 40th AGM held on  31th December, 2020, had approved the appointment of M/s NKSC & 

Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN: 020076N ), Delhi,  as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office for a term of 5 (five) 

consecutive years from the conclusion of the said AGM till the conclusion of the 45th  AGM. They will complete their one 

consecutive term of five years as Statutory Auditors of the Company on conclusion of this 45th AGM. 

 

In accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and on the recommendation of the Audit Committee and in the best interest 

of the Company, the Board of Directors have considered and recommended the proposed appointment of M/s. NKSC & Co., 

Chartered Accountants (FRN: 020076N), Delhi as Statutory Auditors of the Company for an another term of five (5) 

years i.e. from the conclusion of this AGM till the conclusion of 50th (Fiftieth) AGM. M/s. NKSC & Co., Chartered 

Accountants have provided their consent and confirmed that their re-appointment, if made, would be within the limits 

specified under section 141(3)(g) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended from 

time to time. M/s. NKSC & Co.,  Chartered Accountants has confirmed that they hold a valid certificate issued by the Peer 

Review Board of ICAI.  

 

The details of the proposed remuneration to be paid to M/s. NKSC & Co., Chartered Accountants, for the financial year is 

Rs. 7 lakhs ( Rs. Seven Lakhs). 

. 

The Audit Committee, while evaluating the candidature for Statutory Auditors considered various parameters like capability to 

serve in a diverse and complex business landscape as that of the company, audit experience in the Company’s operating segments, 

market standing of the firm, clientele served, technical skills, industry exposure, audit team, audit quality reports, etc., M/s. NKSC 

& Co., Chartered Accountants, has been recommended to be appointed as the Statutory Auditors of the Company.  

 

None of the Directors or other Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives, are concerned or interested (financially or otherwise) 

in this Resolution. The Board, therefore, recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 03 for the approval of Members 

 

Special Business: 

 

Item No. 04 

Appointment of Secretarial Auditors for one term of Five years 

Ordinary Resolution 

Pursuant to the amended provisions of Regulation 24A of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (‘SEBI LODR Regulations’) vide SEBI Notification dated December 12, 2024 and 
provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) and Rule 9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors, and the Board of Directors at their respective 
meetings held on April 17, 2025 and September 03, 2025, have recommended the appointment of M/s. Jyoti Arya & Associates 
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(COP No. 17651), Peer Reviewed Firm of Company Secretaries in Practice as Secretarial Auditors of the Company for a term of 
up to 5(Five) consecutive years to hold office from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) till the conclusion of 
50th (Fiftieth) AGM of the Company to be held in the Year 2030 on following terms and conditions: 

a. Term of appointment: Up to 5(Five) consecutive years from the conclusion of this AGM till the conclusion of 50th AGM, 
subject to the approval of the members of the Company. 

 b. Proposed Fees: The Board of Directors has approved a remuneration as mutually agreed in consultation with the Audit 
Committee for the Financial Year 2025-26 for conducting the Secretarial audit. The Board of Directors, in consultation with the 
Audit Committee, may alter and vary the terms and conditions of appointment, including remuneration, in such a manner and to 
such an extent as may be mutually agreed with the Secretarial Auditors. 

c. Basis of recommendations: The recommendations are based on the fulfilment of the eligibility criteria & qualification 
prescribed under the Act & Rules made thereunder and SEBI LODR Regulations with regard to the full time partners, secretarial 
audit, experience of the firm, capability, independent assessment, audit experience and also based on the evaluation of the quality 
of audit work done by them in the past.  

d. Credentials: M/s. Jyoti Arya & Associates (‘Secretarial Audit Firm’), is a reputed firm of Company Secretaries in Practice ( 
Certificate of Practice No. – 17651),  specialized in Secretarial Audit and other corporate law matters. The firm is registered with 
the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and has an experience of more than 05 years in providing various corporate law 
services. The Firm also holds a valid Peer Review Certificate issue by ICSI. M/s. Jyoti Arya & Associates have given their 
consent to act as Secretarial Auditors of the Company and confirmed that their aforesaid appointment (if made) would be within 
the prescribed limits under the Act & Rules made thereunder and SEBI LODR Regulations. They have also confirmed that they 
are not disqualified to be appointed as Secretarial Auditors in terms of provisions of the Act & Rules made thereunder and SEBI 
LODR Regulations 

None of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in the resolution except to the extent of their shareholding, if any, in the Company. The Board of 
Directors of the Company recommends the resolution set out at Item No.04 for approval. 

Item No. 05 

Related Party Transactions- for FY 25-26 

 
The Securities and Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI’), vide its notification dated 9th November, 2021, has notified SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Sixth Amendment) Regulations, 2021 (‘Amendments’) introducing amendments to the 
provisions pertaining to the Related Party Transactions under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’). The aforesaid Amendments inter -alia included replacing of threshold i.e. 10% (ten per 

cent) of the listed entity’s consolidated turnover, for determination of Material Related Party Transactions requiring Shareholders’ 
prior approval with the threshold of lower of Rs. 1,000 crores (Rupees one thousand crores) or 10% (ten per cent) of the annual 

consolidated turnover of the listed entity as per the last audited financial statements of the listed entity, with effect from 1st April, 

2022.Under the Listing Regulations, in addition to the approval and reporting for transactions by the Company with its own Related 

Party(ies), the scope extends to transactions by the Company with Related Party(ies) of any subsidiary(ies) of the Company or 

transactions by a subsidiary(ies) of the Company with its own Related Party(ies) or Related Party(ies) of the Company or Related 

Party(ies) of any subsidiary(ies) of the Company. As per Regulation 23(4) of the Listing Regulations, all Material Related Party 

Transactions shall require prior approval of the shareholders, even if the transactions are in the ordinary course of business and at an 

arm’s length basis. Given the nature of the Company the Company works closely with its subsidiary and group Companies to 
achieve its business objectives and enters into various operational transactions with its related parties, from time to time, in the 

ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis. Further, the Members of the Company at the previous AGM had approved 
Related Party Transactions of the Company with certain Related parties. However, the estimated value of the contract(s)/ 

arrangement(s)/ agreement(s)/ transaction(s) of the Company with the aforesaid Related Parties is anticipated to exceed the 

aforesaid monetary limit approved by the Members at the 44th   AGM. Members may please note that the Company, its Subsidiary 

and Group Company have been undertaking such transactions of similar nature with related parties in the past financial years, in the 

ordinary course of business and on arm's length after obtaining requisite approvals, including from the Audit Committee of the 

Company as per the requirements of the applicable law. The maximum annual value of the proposed transactions with the related 

parties is estimated based on the Company’s current transactions with them and future business projections. The Board of Directors 
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of your company has approved this item in the Board Meeting and recommends the Resolution as set out in the Notice for the 

approval of members of the Company as an Ordinary Resolution. Also, it is to note that all entities falling under the related parties 

shall not vote to approve the transaction as set out at Item no. 05, irrespective whether the entity is party to the said transaction or 

not. Except Promoter Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives, Members are hereby informed 

that pursuant to the second proviso of section 188(1) of Companies Act, 2013, no member of the company shall vote on such 

Ordinary resolution to approve any contract or arrangement which may be entered into by the company, if such member is a related 

party. 

 

The Board of Directors of your company has approved this item in the Board Meeting held on September 03, 2025 and 
recommends the Resolution as set out in the Notice for the approval of members of the Company as an Ordinary Resolution. 

 
Also, it is to note that all entities falling under the related parties shall not vote to approve the transaction as set out at Item no. 05, 
irrespective whether the entity is party to the said transaction or not. 

 
Except Promoter Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives, no other Director or any other 
person is concerned or interested in the Resolution. 

 
Item No.06  

Remuneration of the Cost Auditors 

 

The Board, on the recommendation of the Audit Committee, has approved the appointment and remuneration of the Cost 
Auditors for conducting the audit of the cost records of the Company for the financial year ending March 31, 2026 as per the 
following details: 

 
S.No. Name of the Cost Auditor Industry Amount of Fee 

1. M/s Jai Prakash &Co. Steel(LPG Cylinder)  Rs. 55000 

 
2. M/s Jai Prakash &Co. Machinery & Mechanical 

Appliances (Regulators & Valves) 
 

In accordance with the provisions of Section 148 of the Act, read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rule, 2014, the 
remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors has to be ratified by the shareholders of the Company. 

 
Accordingly, consent of the members is sought to pass an Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 06 of the Notice for ratification 
of the remuneration payable to the Cost Auditors for the financial year ending 31st March, 2026. 

 
None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel of the Company and their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, 
financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at item No.  06  of the Notice. 

 
The Board recommends the Ordinary Resolution set out at Item No. 06 for approval by the shareholders. 

 
By Order of the Board of Directors 

MAURIA UDYOG LIMITED 

Sd/- 
(DIVYA AGARWAL)   

COMPANY SECRETARY 
ROOM NO. 107, 1STFLOOR, 
ANAND JYOTI BUILDING, 
41, NETAJI SUBHAS ROAD, 

KOLKATA-700001-(WEST BENGAL) 
CIN: L51909WB1980PLC033010 

Date: September 03, 2025 
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ANNEXURE 

PURSUANT TO REGULATION 36 OF THE SEBI (LISTING OBLIGATIONS AND DISCLOSURE 

REQUIREMENTS) REGULATIONS, 2015 AND SECRETARIAL STANDARD - 2 ISSUED BY THE INSTITUTE OF 

COMPANY SECRETARIES OF INDIA (ICSI) INFORMATION ABOUT THE DIRECTOR PROPOSED TO BE RE- 

APPOINTED/ APPOINTED UNDER IS FURNISHED AS BELOW: 

 

Name of Directors Mrs. Deepa Sureka 

DIN 00060284 

Date of Birth and Age 04-10-1973 & 51 years 

Date of First Appointment on Board 28-03-2022 

Brief resume of the Director She is having 17 years’ experience in the company as Officer on 
Special Duty. She joined the Board as Whole-time Woman 
Director (Executive-Promoter Category) wef October 04, 2024 

Designation Whole-time Woman Director (Executive-Promoter-Category) 

Qualification Graduation 

Nationality Indian 

No. of years of Experience 17 years 

Terms and Conditions of Appointment  or re-
appointment 

Mrs. Deepa Sureka is Whole-time Director 
of the Company, liable to retire by rotation 

Details of Remuneration sought to be paid Not applicable 

Last Remuneration drawn 12,33,361 during 2024-25 

No. of Board Meetings attended during the year 04/05 

Expertise in specific functional 
area 

She has  vast experience in the field of Finance, accounts, 
Administration & HR  as Officer on Special Duty in this 
company since 2007 and as Director of Private Limited 
companies. 
 

Relation with other Directors, Manager and 
other Key Managerial Personnel of the 
Company 

Mrs. Deepa Sureka is wife of Mr. Navneet Kumar Sureka, 
Managing Director of the company. She is not related to any 
other Directors Inter-se of the company except with Mr. 
Navneet Kumar  Sureka, being her spouse 

List of public companies in which  directorship 

held(including foreign Companies) 

-Mauria Udyog Ltd. 
-Sureka Tubes Industries Pvt. Ltd. 
-Strawberry Star India Pvt. Ltd. 
-Ram Forgings Pvt. Ltd. 
-Bhama Properties Pvt. Ltd. 
-Veshnoudevi Properties Pvt. Ltd. 
-Shri Narayan Steel Industries Pvt.  Ltd. 
 

Listed entities in which membership of 

Committee of Board held . 

 -Stakeholders Relation Committee of Mauria Udyog Ltd. 
wef 01-04-2025 

Listed entities from which the person has 

resigned during past three years 

Mauria Udyog Ltd. –Resigned wef 26-04-2024 

Shareholding in the Company 2,06,10,150 equity shares of Rs. 1/- each (15.47%) 

In case of independent directors, Skills and 

capabilities required for the role and manner in 
which the proposed person meets such 

requirements 

Not Applicable 
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DIRECTORS REPORT  

 
TO THE MEMBERS 

 
Your Directors have the pleasure in presenting the 45th Annual Report together with the Audited Accounts of the company 
for the year ended 31

st
 March, 2025. 

 
FINANCIAL RESULTS 
        
The Financial Results for the year ended 31

st
 March, 2025 are as under:                                                           

                                                              
Rs. in Lacs 

 

PERFORMANCE REVIEW 

 

The Gross revenues have touched Rs. 41531.82 Lacs compared to Rs. 34308.42 Lacs previous year which is 21.05 % 
higher compared to last year on a standalone basis. Company has earned after -tax standalone profits of Rs. 1820.77 

Lakhs for 2024-25 compared to  Rs. 1673.88 Lakhs during 2023-24, i.e. a rise of 8.77 % . Similarly Standalone total 
Comprehensive Income for the current period stands at Rs. 1801.83 Lakhs compared to Rs. 1666.08 Lakhs during last 
year. 
 
The Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards (IND AS) prescribed under the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
relevant rules thereunder, with effect from April 1, 2017 and accordingly financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with IND AS notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended by the 
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) (Amendments) Rules, 2016. 
 

FUTURE OUTLOOK (STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS) 

 

PARTICULARS 2024-25 2023-24 

 Standalone Consolidated Standalone Consolidated 

 

Revenue From Operations 40871.33 40871.33 33509.63 33509.63 

Other Income 660.49 660.49 798.79 798.79 

Total Income 41531.82 41531.82 34308.42 34308.42 

Cost of materials consumed 20607.80 20607.80 19075.71 19075.71 

Purchases of Stock-in-Trade 55.06 55.06 184.44 184.44 

Changes in inventories of finished goods, 
Stock-in-Trade and Work-in-progress 

1416.63 1416.63 (1143.33) (1143.33) 

Employee benefits expense 1544.87 1544.87 1370.21 1370.21 

Finance Cost 802.61 802.61 1120.73 1120.73 

Depreciation and amortization expense 324.07 324.07 324.13 324.13 

Other expenses 14701.21 17702.22 12013.51 12013.39 

Total Expenses 39452.25 39453.26 32945.40 32945.28 

Profit(loss) before exceptional items and tax 2079.57 2078.56 1363.02 1363.14 

Exceptional items 1453.85 1453.85 - - 

Profit/(loss) before tax  3533.42 3532.41 1363.02 1363.14 

Tax Expenses     

                     (1) Current tax 144.54 144.54 - - 

                     (2) Deferred tax 1568.10 1568.10 -310.86 -310.86 

Profit/(loss) for the year after tax 1820.77 1819.76 1673.88 1674.00 

Other Comprehensive Income (18.94) (18.94) (7.80) (7.80) 

Total Comprehensive Income for the period 1801.83 1800.82 1666.08 1666.20 

Earnings Per Share (Basic / Diluted) (`) 1.37 1.37 1.26 1.26 
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The world has finally came out of the shadows of the COVID-19 pandemic and with Central Government continuing in 
the office for its third term leading to continuity in economic & industrial policies giving positive thrust to Indian 
economy. In spite of slowdown in almost all developed & developing economies the Indian economy with 6.5% GDP rate 
is leading amongst large economies of the world. With the cooling of interest  and inflation rates and well defined 
economic policies of the central government, India is poised to become third largest economy only after USA & China 
within few years period. However at the same time, with the Russia Ukraine & middle-east war still continuing and the 
latest increased Tariffs imposed  by the  USA  Government on  Indian products , pose  serious challenge on economic 
front that the India faces today. However silver lining is that India -USA, India –UK & India EU FTAs are currently at 
advanced stage & likely to be finalized during the current year itself. With the sound economic & reforms in direct & 
indirect taxes policies being undertaken by the Central Government, India is on the path to become third largest economy 
in the world.    
 
The Board has been making continuous efforts to solve the challenges being faced by the company.  
 
As the members are aware the company was classified as a NPA by the working capital bankers due to default in 
repayment & servicing of its debt. 
 
The company has  reached a settlement plan with its largest lender of working capital, and has been able to finalise a 4.5 years  
payment plan ending in December 2026.  

  
The manufacturing business of the company is slowly and steadily picking-up, however there are severe challenges being 
faced due to shortages in availability of raw material & labour and other logistical impediments.  
 
Your directors are optimistic of better performance in turnover and profits during 2025-26 compared to previous year. 
During the first quarter of financial year  2025-26 ended June 30, 2025 company has reported revenue and  profits after 
tax at  Rs. 13428.04 & Rs. 664.82 lakhs respectively  on standalone basis .   
 

DIVIDEND 
 
In order to consolidate the financial position of the company your directors do not recommend payment of any dividend 
for the year ended 31st March 2025. 
 
During the year 2024-25 the Board of directors did not recommend payment of interim-dividend. 
 
RESERVES: 
 
General reserve. transition reserve and retained earnings compared to previous year are follows: 
                                                                                                                                               Rs. Lakhs 

(i). General reserve  2024-25 2023-24 

 Opening balance                        93.85                       93.85  

 Closing balance                        93.85                        93.85  

(ii). Transition reserve    

 Opening balance                   1,377.55                   1,377.55  

 Closing balance           
1,377.55  

         
1,377.55  

(iii). Retained earnings    

 Opening balance                   646.15                (1,027.74) 

 Add: (Loss) for the year Profit/           
1,820.77  

         
1,673.88  

 Add: Transferred from accumulated other 
comprehensive income 

         

 Closing balance           
2466.92 

         
646.15  
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SHARE CAPITAL 

 
The paid-up equity share capital as on 31stMarch 2025 stands at 1332.00 Lacs. There was no public issue, rights issue, 
bonus issue . However during the year the In-principal approval of the BSE on proposed preferential issue could not be 
obtained  
 
Further, the Company has not issued shares with differential voting rights, sweat equity shares, nor has it granted any 
stock options. 
 
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE 

 

Additions of Property, Plant & Equipment (gross) during the year under review amounted to Rs. 577.29 Lakhs and net 
carrying value of Property Plant & Equipment stood at Rs. 5,147.82 Lakhs as at 31st March, 2025. Building material and 
other expenses under the head Capital work-in-process during the year stands at Rs. 287.68 Lakhs as against 380.11 Lakhs 
during previous year. 
 

FIXED DEPOSITS 
 
The company has not accepted any deposits from public during the financial year under review and as such there were no 
fixed deposits outstanding as on 31st March, 2025. 
 
SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES 
 

During the year  Company has made  investment in Bihariji Properties Private Limited (BPPL) AND Bihariji Highrise Private 
Limited (BHPL)  on 30st  March, 2024 pursuant to which they have become subsidiaries of the Company. Both the companies 
are engaged in the real estate/renting business with owned or leased property 
 
As on 31st March 2025 company has three Subsidiaries namely: 1. M/s Strawberry Star India Pvt. Ltd. (SSIPL) as reported last 
year; 2. Bihariji Properties Private Limited (BPPL) and 3. Bihariji Highrise Private Limited (BHPL). None of the subsidiary 
fall amongst related parties of the Company 
 
The Company has no joint venture or associate. 
 

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 

 
As on March 31, 2025 there were no outstanding loans or guarantees covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the 
Act.  The details of the Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 of the Act are 
given in the notes to the Financial Statements. 
 
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

 
A detailed report on contracts and arrangements made during the year 2024-25, transactions being in the ordinary course 
of business and at arm’s length have been reported and annexed hereto in this report in the prescribed Form AOC-2 read 
with note no. 13 of the Financial Statements. 
 
The terms & conditions of the above mentioned transactions are not prejudicial to the interest of the Company. The 
closing balances of such related parties, wherever outstanding, are not overdue. 
 
NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD 

 
Fourteen meetings of the Board of directors were held during the year 2024-25. For details of the meetings of the Board, 
please refer to the corporate governance report, which forms part of this report. 
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BOARD EVALUATION 

 

The Board of directors has carried out an annual evaluation of its own performance, Board committees and individual 
directors pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013( “the Act”) and the corporate governance requirements as 
prescribed by Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) under Regulation 17(10) of  Listing Obligations & 
Disclosure Requirements, Regulations, 2015.The performance of the Board was evaluated by the Board after seeking 
inputs from all the directors on the basis of the criteria such as the Board composition and structure, effectiveness of 
Board processes, information and functioning, etc. The performance of the committees was evaluated by the Board after 
seeking inputs from the committee members on the basis of the criteria such as the composition of committees, 
effectiveness of committee meetings, etc. The Board and the Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC”) 
reviewed the performance of the individual directors on the basis of the criteria such as the contribution of the individual 
director to the Board and committee meetings like preparedness on the issues to be discussed, meaningful and 
constructive contribution and inputs in meetings, etc.  
 
FAMILIARIZATION PROGRAMME FOR INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

 
The Company keeps its Directors informed of the activities of the Company, its management and operations and provides 
an overall industry perspective as well as issues being faced by the industry. The details of various familiarization 
programme provided to the Directors of the Company is available on the Company’s website www.mauria.com. 
 
DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 5 OF COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF 

MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 

 
Disclosure pursuant to Rule 5 of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rule, 2014 has 
been made for the FY 2024-25 in the prescribed Format and forms part of the Directors’ Report as an Annexure. 
 
SEPARATE MEETING OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

 
In terms of requirements under Schedule IV of the Companies Act 2013 and the Listing Regulations, 2015, a separate 
meeting of the Independent Directors was held on 20/08/2024 

 
The Independent Directors at the meeting reviewed the following:- 

 

 Performance of non independent Directors and board as a whole. 

 Performance of the Chairperson of the Company, taking into account the views of executive Directors and 
non-executive Directors.  

 Assess the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Company management and 
the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their duties.  

 

LISTING ON STOCK EXCHANGES 

 

With effect from Tuesday July 14, 2015, the scrip of your company got listed on BSE Limited (BSE) under the Direct 
Listing Route of BSE with Scrip Code 539219 (bearing ISIN: INE150D01027). 
 
Accordingly, as on date, the shares of your Company are listed on BSE as well as Calcutta Stock Exchange (CSE). 
 

Market price data - High, Low during the each month in last financial year 2024-25 has been given under Corporate 
Governance Report. 
 
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE  

 
A detailed Report on Corporate Governance is given in “Annexure-A” to this report. In terms of Part E of Schedule V of 
SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosures Requirements) Regulations 2015 (Listing Regulations, 2015), the Compliance 
Certificate from the Practicing Company Secretary certifying compliance with conditions of Corporate Governance, as 
stipulated in Regulation 16 to 27 of Listing Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchange(s) where the shares of the 
company are listed, is also enclosed. 

http://www.mauria.com/
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

 
Pursuant to Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board of directors, to the best of their knowledge and ability, 
confirm that: 

i. in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed and there 
are no material departures; 

ii. they have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company at the 
end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for that period; 

iii. they have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting 
fraud and other irregularities; 

iv. they have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 
v. they have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and such internal financial 

controls are adequate and operating effectively; 
vi. they have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that 

such systems were adequate and operating effectively. 
 

● No fraud against the company  has been reported by the Auditors as well as by Audit Committee or noticed by 

the Board of Directors  

 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEM 
` 
Based on the framework of internal financial controls and compliance systems established and maintained by the 
Company, work performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial auditors and external consultants and the reviews 
performed by management and the relevant Board committees, including the audit committee, the board is of the opinion 
that the Company’s internal financial controls were adequate and effective during the financial year 2024-25. 

 

DIRECTORS & KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL/ INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS DECLARATION 

 
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149(7) of the Act, all Independent directors have submitted declarations that each of 
them meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the SEBI 
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 
 
There has been following changes in the composition of Board of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel during the 
year 2024-25: 
 

 Smt. Premlata Sureka (DIN: 00060247) was appointed as Whole time-Woman Director wef April 26, 2024, 

 Smt. Deepa Sureka (DIN:00060284 resigned as Whole-time- Woman Director  wef April 26, 2024, 

 Smt. Deepa Sureka (DIN:00060284) appointed  as Whole time-Woman Director  wef October 04, 2024, 

 Smt. Premlata Sureka (DIN: 00060247) resigned as Whole time-Woman Director wef October 04, 2024. 

 Mr. Deepak Arya, CFO resigned w.e.f. August 19, 2025. 

 

As on March 31, 2025, the composition of Board of Directors was as follows: 

 

S.No. Name DIN Designation 

1 Shri Navneet Kumar Sureka 00054929 Managing Director (Executive-Promoter) 

2. Smt. Deepa Sureka 00060284 Whole-time Woman Director (Executive, Promoter) 

3. Smt. Veena Aggarwal 00060415 Director (Non-Executive, Non-Independent) 

4. Shri Birendra Kumar 08666368 Director (Non-Executive Independent)  

5. Shri Manohar Menghraj Punjabi 10213816 Director (Non-Executive Independent) 

6. Shri Atul Kumar 00060233 Director (Non-Executive Independent) 
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There has been no changes in the composition after March 31, 2025 till the date of signing of Annual Report: 
 
Further, during the financial year 2024-25 there has been no change amongst Non-executive directors of the Company  
 
Further, during the financial year 2024-25 the non-executive directors of the Company had no pecuniary relationship or 
transactions with the Company. 
 
As per the provisions of Companies Act, 2013, Smt. Deepa Sureka (DIN: 00060284) retires by rotation and being eligible 
has offered herself for re-appointment in the 45th Annual General Meeting. 
 
There has been no change in the Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) other than as disclosed above during the year under 
review.  
 
POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION AND OTHER DETAILS 

 
The Company’s policy on directors’ appointment and remuneration and other matters provided in Section 178(3) of the 
Act has been disclosed in the corporate governance report, which forms part of the directors’ report. 
 
INSIDER TRADING POLICY 

 
The Company’s policy on insider trading has been uploaded on the web-site of the company www.mauria.com and all 
necessary steps have been taken to comply with the said policy.  
 
VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

 

Your directors have established a Vigil (Whistle Blower) Mechanism and formulated a Policy in order to provide a 
framework for responsible and secure whistle blowing/vigil mechanism. The Vigil (Whistle Blower) Mechanism aims to 
provide a channel to the Directors and employees to report genuine concerns about unethical behavior, actual or suspected 
fraud or violation of the codes of conduct or ethic policy. This mechanism also provides for adequate safeguards against 
victimization of Directors and employees who avail of the mechanism and also provide for direct access to the Chairman 
of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases. 
 
Email address of the chairman of the Audit committee Sh. Atul Kumar is atul@commediait.com. 
 
We affirm that no personnel has been denied access to the audit committee. 
 
During the year 2024-2025, no such report were made to the Chairman of Audit Committee 
 

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY 

 

The Company has developed and implemented the Risk Management Policy and the Audit Committee of the Company 
reviews the same periodically. The Company recognizes that risk is an integral and unavoidable component of business 
and hence is committed to managing the risk in a proactive and effective manner. The Company’s Management systems, 
organizational structures, processes, standards, code of conduct and behaviors together form the Risk Management 
System of the Company and are managed accordingly. 
 
The common risks faced by the Company include Raw Material Procurement Risk, Environment & Safety Risk, Market 
Risk, Technology risk, Business Operational Risk, Reputation Risk, Regulatory & Compliance Risk, Human Resource 
Risk Working Capital and Business continuity Risk. Your Company has well defined processes and systems to identify, 
assess & mitigate the key risks. A platform for exception reporting of violations is in place which is reviewed regularly 
and remedial measures are being undertaken immediately. 
 
 

 

 

http://www.mauria.com/
mailto:atul@commediait.com
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COMMITTEES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY AND GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE  

 
Your directors, the Management and all of the employees subscribe to the philosophy of compassionate care. We believe 
and act on the ethos of generosity and compassionate care, characterized by willingness to build a society that works for 
everyone. This is the cornerstone of our CSR policy. The web-link of Company’s CSR Policy alongwith Projects 
approved for making expenditure is enumerated at https://mauria.com/policies/. There has been no change in policy as 
well as the project approved for the FY 2024-25. 
. 
 
Company continues to undertake the CSR work during the year under review on a voluntary basis over and above what 
has been prescribed under CSR guidelines. The CSR activities are overseen by the Managing Director, who is chairman of 
CSR committee on a regular basis. The disclosures required under the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility 
Policy) Rules, 2014 are provided in Annexure-II, which forms part of this Report. 
 
Your directors have constituted the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee comprising of Shri Navneet Kumar 
Sureka as Chairman, and Smt. Veena Aggarwal and Shri Atul Kumar as members. 
 
The said committee has formulated and recommended to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility Policy (CSR 
Policy) indicating the activities to be undertaken by the Company, monitoring and implementing of the CSR Policy and 
recommending the amount to be spent on the CSR activities.    
 
During the year 2024-2025, the CSR Committee met twice on 29/05/2024 & 28/11/2024 and provided status updates to 
the Board of directors of the company. 
 
Your company’s investment in CSR activities for the year 2024-25 was Rs. 3.50 Lakhs compared to Rs. 50.41 Lakhs 
during previous year, which is above the requirement of minimum 2 % of the average profits of the company for the last 
three years. 
 
AUDIT COMMITTEE 
 
The constitution of the Audit Committee is in accordance with the requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 
2013(here-in-after known the “Act”) and Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations, 2015.  During the year there has been 
no change in the composition of Audit Committee. 
 

As on March 31, 2025 Audit committee comprises of following directors: 
 

Sl. 

No 

Name of Members Category Designation 

1 Shri Atul Kumar Non-Executive-Independent  Chairperson  
2 Shri Navneet Kumar Sureka Executive Member 

3 Shri Birendra Kumar  Non-Executive-Independent Member 

  
 
The details of terms of reference of the audit committee, number and dates of meetings held, attendance of Directors 
during the year 2024-25 are given in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of this Annual Report. 
 
The primary objective of the Committee is to monitor and provide effective supervision of the Management’s financial 
reporting process to ensure accurate and timely disclosures,  
 
● All the recommendations of Audit Committee has been accepted by the Board of Directors during the reportable 
year. 

 

https://mauria.com/policies/
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NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

 

During the year there has been no change in the composition of Nomination & Remuneration Committee. 
    

 
As on March 31, 2025 this committee consisted of following directors: 

 

Sl. No Name of Members Category Designation 

1 Shri Atul Kumar Non-Executive-Independent  Chairperson  
2 Smt. Veena Sureka Non-Executive-Non-Independent Member 

3 Sh. Birendra Kumar Non-Executive-Independent Member 

 
The said committee has been entrusted with the responsibility of formulating and recommending to the Board a policy 
relating to the remuneration of the directors, key managerial personnel and other employees; formulation of criteria for 
evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board, devising a policy on Board diversity and identifying persons who are 
qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in senior management and to recommend to the board their 
appointment and removal.  
 
During the year 2024-2025, Nomination & Remuneration committee met four times. 
 
The details of number and dates of meetings held, attendance of NRC during the year are given in the Corporate 
Governance Report forming part of this Annual Report. 
 
● The web-link of  policy relating to criterion for making payment to Non-executive directors is https://mauria.com/wp-
content/uploads/2018/01/3-MUL-Criterion-for-making-payment-to-Non-EXD-1.pdf  
 

STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

 
During the year there has been no change in the composition of Stakeholders Relationship Committee. 
    
  
As on March 31, 2025 this committee consisted of following directors: 
 

Sl. 

No 

Name of Members Category Designation 

1 Shri Atul Kumar Non-Executive-Independent Chairperson 

2 Smt. Veena Aggarwal Non-Executive-Independent Member 

3 Shri Birendra Kumar  Non-Executive-Independent Member 

4 Mr. Navneet Kumar Sureka* Executive Director and MD Member  

5 Mrs. Deepa Sureka*  Executive Director Member 
 

*Mr. Navneet Kumar Sureka and Mrs. Deepa Sureka has been appointed as members of the committee w.e.f. April 01, 2025, 

 

 

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee shall consider and resolve the grievances of security holders of the company.  
 
 

OBLIGATION OF COMPANY UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE 

(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013 

 

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted   Prevention of Sexual Harassment 
policy in line with the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 
Redressal) Act, 2013. An Internal Complaints Committee has been set up to redress complaints received regarding sexual 
harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, temporary, trainees) are covered under this policy. 
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During the year 2024-2025, no complaints were received by the Company related to sexual harassment and hence no 
complaint is pending as on March 31, 2025 for redressal. 
 

PROCEEDINGS UNDER  INSOLVENCY & BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 
 
The Company has initiated proceedings under Section 9 of Insolvency & Bankruptcy Code, 2016 against its trade 
receivables M/s. Linkwise Marketing Private Limited and M/s. Nexus Commosales Private Limited, before the NCLT, 
Kolkata Bench vide Company Petition No. C.P.(IB)/86(KB) and 1908134/01725 of 2021 and the matter is currently 
pending before the Hon'ble NCLT, Kolkata Bench. Hon'ble NCLT has accepted the matter. 
 

 

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS THAT AFFECTED FINANCIAL POSITION DURING THE 

FINANCIAL YEAR AND AS ON THE DATE OF THE REPORT 
 

The Company had entered into certain transactions with Amrapali Group of Companies in past years. In consequent to which 
forensic audit was conducted as per the Directions of Hon’ble Supreme Court of India to look into transactions between 
Amrapali Group of Companies and Sureka Group of Companies. After which the Hon’ble Supreme Court vide its order No. 
Writ Petition{s} (Civil) No. 940/2017 dated December 2, 2019 had directed M/s Jotindra Steel & Tubes Limited and Mauria 
Udyog Limited including associated companies and Directors viz Mr. Navneet Kumar Sureka and Mr. Akhil Kumar Sureka to 
deposit ₹ 16,700.00 Lacs. In response to the order of the Hon’ble Supreme Court, it had filed an application on December 9, 
2019 before the Hon’ble Supreme Court to accept the title deeds of immoveable properties belonging to Sureka family 
members and associate companies (based on latest valuation report) worth amounting ₹ 16,897.00 Lacs, net of incumbency 
amount of ₹ 3,934.00 Lacs including Properties amounting ₹ 10,182.00 Lacs belonging to Mauria Udyog Limited. 
 
In the financial year 2019-20, the Company had charged ₹ 1,500.00 Lacs in the Statement of Profit and Loss against the above 
matter on an estimated basis and reduced the value of properties (property which is deposited to Hon’ble Supreme Court). 
 
The management is of the opinion that, based on issues and the legal advice that the ultimate outcome of the legal proceedings 
in respect to the matter will not have material adverse effect to the financial position of the Company. Hence, the Company has 
neither provided for liability against this matter, nor any amount has been shown as contingent liability. 
 

SIGNIFICANT MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS 
 
Securities & Exchange Board of India (SEBI) vide its interim order cum show cause notice number 
WTM/SM/IVD/ID9/27532/2023-2024 dated 19 June 2023 under sections 11(1), 11(4), 11(4)(A), 11(B)1, 11(B)2 
and11(5) of SEBI Act 1992 read along with SEBI rules 2005, issued interim directions restraining the Company from 
accessing the securities market till further orders and also directed the Company to deposit jointly and severally with other 
notices an amount of ₹ 2,619.69 Lacs. 
 

The Company submitted its reply on 22 July 2023 and has filed an appeal against the said interim order to Securities 
Appellate Tribunal (“SAT”). The SAT vide its decision dated 18 August 2023 has disposed off the appeal and directed the 
Company to file a reply/objection to the show cause notice. Further, the management believes that the impugned order is 
untenable and is liable to set aside. Accordingly, no liability has been recorded by the Company against the amount sought 
by SEBI in the said interim order. 
 
 

EXPLANATIONS OR COMMENTS BY THE BOARD ON EVERY QUALIFICATION, RESERVATION OR 

ADVERSE REMARK OR DISCLAIMER MADE 
 

1. By the Auditor in his report: 
 
The Auditors’ Report being self-explanatory requires no further comments from the Directors. Please refer to the 
Notes section of the Audited Financial statements for the Financial-year ended on March 31, 2025 forming part of 
annual report.  
 

2. By the Company Secretary in practice in his Secretarial Audit Report: 
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There are no qualifications, reservations, adverse remarks or disclaimer by the Secretarial Auditors in the Report 
issued by them for the financial year 2024-25 which call for any explanation from the Board of Directors. 

 
DISCLOSURE OF RE-APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR AND 

JUSTIFICATION/RATIONALE FOR SUCH RE-APPOINTMENT 
 
During the year no independent director has been reappointed for second term.  
 

STATEMENT REGARDING OPINION OF THE BOARD WITH REGARD TO INTEGRITY, EXPERTISE 

AND EXPERIENCE (INCLUDING THE PROFICIENCY) OF THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

APPOINTED DURING THE YEAR 

 
 Not Applicable- as  no independent director was reappointed during the financial year 2024-2025  for the  First or second 
term.  
 
NAMES OF COMPANIES WHICH HAVE BECOME OR CEASED TO BE ITS SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT 

VENTURES OR ASSOCIATE COMPANIES DURING THE YEAR 
 
During the year  Company has made  investment in Bihariji Properties Private Limited (BPPL) AND Bihariji Highrise Private 
Limited (BHPL)  on 30th March, 2024 consequent to which they have become subsidiaries of the Company. Both the 
companies are engaged in the real estate/renting business with owned or leased properties. 
 
As on 31st March 2025 company has three Subsidiaries namely: 1. M/s Strawberry Star India Pvt. Ltd. (SSIPL) as reported last 
year; 2. Bihariji Properties Private Limited (BPPL) and 3. Bihariji Highrise Private Limited (BHPL). None of the subsidiary 
fall amongst related parties of the Company. The consolidated statement of account for the financial year ended March 31, 
2025 in form AOC-1 has been attached as “Annexure ” to the Director’s Report. 
 
 
PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL POSITION OF EACH OF THE SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND 

JOINT VENTURE COMPANIES 
 
As on 31st March 2025 company has three Subsidiaries namely: 1. M/s Strawberry Star India Pvt. Ltd. (SSIPL) as reported last 
year; 2. Bihariji Properties Private Limited (BPPL) and 3. Bihariji Highrise Private Limited (BHPL). Financials of M/s SSIPL, 
(BPPL) & (BHPL) have been consolidated and consolidated financials have been reported under the heading Financial Results. 
 
PARTICULARS OF REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS/ KMPs/EMPLOYEES:- 
 
Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5 (2) 
and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is attached as 
Annexure which forms part of this report. 
 

DETAILS PERTAINING TO REMUNERATION AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 197(12) OF THE 

COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND 

REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 

 
The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary during 
the financial year 2024-25, ratio of the remuneration of each Director to the median remuneration of the employees 
of the Company for the financial year 2024-25 and the comparison of remuneration with the percentile increase in 
the managerial remuneration and justification thereof. 
 

S. 
No
. 

Name of 
Director/ KMP 

Ratio of 
Remuneration 
of Director to 

% Increase in the 
Remuneration 

% increase in the 
median 
remuneration of 

 Average percentile 
increase already made in 
the salaries of employees 
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median 
remuneration 
of Employee 

employees other than the managerial 
personnel in the last 
financial year and its 
comparison with the 
percentile increase in the 
managerial remuneration 
and justification thereof 
and point out if there are 
any exceptional 
circumstances for increase 
in the managerial 
remuneration 

1  NA NA NA NA NA 

 
There has been no increase in the remuneration of employees including Managing director, Chief Financial 
Officer and company secretary during the financial year 2024-25 in view of financial conditions of the 
company.  
 
Further it is hereby affirmed that the remuneration paid is as per the Remuneration Policy for Directors, Key 
Managerial Personnel and other Employees. 
 
 

● Thee details including names of the Top 10 Employees in terms of salary drawn during the reporting period is 

attached as Annexure hereto.  

 

 

CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY 
 
There is no change in the nature of business of your Company during the year under review. 
 

CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING TREATMENT 

 
There has been no change in the accounting policies during the period under review. 
 

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS 

 
The Company has identified all key internal financial controls, which impacts the financial statements, as part of Standard 
Operating Procedures (SOPs). The SOPs are designed for all critical processes across all plants, warehouses and offices 
wherein financial transactions are undertaken. The SOPs cover the standard processes, risks, key controls and each 
process is identified to a process owner. The financial controls are tested for operating effectiveness through management 
ongoing monitoring and review process and independently by the Internal Audit. In our view the Internal Financial 
Controls, effecting the financial statements are adequate and are operating effectively. 
 
 

 

STATUTORY DISCLOSURES 

 
-No Frauds Were Reported by Auditors Or Reported To Central Government In The Financial Year Ended On March 31, 
2025. 
 
-None of The Directors of Your Company Is Disqualified as Per the Provisions of Section 164(2) Of the Act. The 
Directors of The Company Have Made Necessary Disclosures, As Required Under Various Provisions of The Act. 
 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 
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The Annual Return for the financial year 2023-24 will be available on the website of the Company at 
https://mauria.com/financials/   
 
INVESTOR EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND (IEPF) 
 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs had notified Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, 
Transfer and Refund) Rules, 2016 effective from 07.09.2016. As per the Rules, Unclaimed/unpaid dividends / shares 
thereon are to be transferred to IEPF at the end of 7 years. The shares in respect of which dividend has not been paid or 
claimed for 7 consecutive years or more shall also be transferred to IEPF following the prescribed procedure. The 
company has issued public notice to enable to claim the shares. Such shares remaining unclaimed have to be transferred to 
IEPF Authority within the date prescribed. The holders of such shares or their legal heirs can reclaim the shares from the 
IEPF Authority through the Company following the due procedure.  
 
DECLARATION ON COMPLIANCE WITH CODE OF CONDUCT 

 
The Board of Directors has laid down Code of Conduct for all Board Members and Senior Management of the Company. 

The copy of Code of Conduct as applicable to the Directors (including Senior Management of the Company) is uploaded 

on the website of the Company www.mauria.com.  

 

The Managing Director of the Company has issued a Declaration that the Members of the Board of Directors and Senior 

Management Personnel have affirmed compliance with the Code of Conduct of Board of Directors and Senior 

Management. As there is no Chief Executive Officer in the Company, this Declaration has been issued by the Managing 

Director of the Company which is appended to this Report, 

 
CEO/CFO CERTIFICATION 
 
In terms of the requirements of Regulation 17(8) read with Part B of Schedule II of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Managing Director and the CFO have submitted necessary certificate to 
the Board of Directors stating the particulars specified under the said Clause. The certificate has been reviewed by the 
Audit Committee and taken on record by the Board of Directors.  
 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS  
 

Outlook of Indian Economy: 
 

With a GDP of $3.937 trillion, India is the world's fifth-largest economy. With growths rates  9.7% (FY2022) 7.2% 
(FY2023) 8.2% (FY2024)  the country has one of the highest GDP growth rates in the world. 
  

The Indian economy is expected to perform better than expected in the second half of the year. India’s real GDP is 
projected to grow between 6.5–7 per cent in 2025-26. The Indian economy recovered swiftly from the pandemic, with its 
real GDP in FY24 being 20 per cent higher than the pre-COVID, FY20 levels. . Overall India remains fastest growing 
economy in the world leaving China behind. 
 
India’s underlying economic fundamentals are strong and despite the short-term turbulence, its impact on the long-term 
outlook will be marginal. However any escalation of geopolitical conflicts in 2024 may lead to supply dislocations, higher 
commodity prices, reviving inflationary pressures and stalling monetary policy easing with potential repercussions for 
capital flows. This can also influence RBI’s monetary policy stance. The global trade outlook for 2025-26 remains 
positive, with merchandise trade expected to pick up after opening of newer markets for Indian exports  
 
Industry Overview: 

 
As you are aware that your Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing and trading in varied products: 
 

https://mauria.com/financials/
http://www.mauria.com/
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Liquefied Petroleum Gas (LPG):   
 
With India’s economic growth closely linked to energy demand, the need for oil and gas is projected to grow further, 
rendering the sector a fertile ground for investment. The demand for cylinders for various uses is likely to grow across the 
world.  
 

Textile:  

With consumerism and disposable income on the rise, the retail sector has experienced a rapid growth in the past decade. 

Changing lifestyles and increasing demand for quality products are set to fuel the need for apparel. The sector contributes 

14% to industrial production, 4% to India’s GDP and constitutes 13% of the country’s export earnings. 
 
The future for the Indian textile industry looks promising, buoyed by both strong domestic consumption as well as export 
demand. Government is taking all necessary steps by negotiating for newer market for garment exports  apart from US 
market.  
 
COMPANY OVERVIEW AND SEGMENT-WISE AND PRODUCT-WISE PERFORMANCE 

 
MAURIA UDYOG LIMITED (MUL) is an ISO 9001:2008 company certified by BSI, accredited by UKAS.  MUL is 
also certified for OHSAS:18001:2007& ISO 14001:2004 by BSI for its Health Safety and Environmental Management 
Systems.  We are a Govt. of India recognized TRADING HOUSE, for consistent export of our products to various parts of 
the world. Your company is largest manufacturer and exporter in India exporting its products to more than 75 countries 
across the world.MUL exports its products to practically every continent of the world. Products of the company meet all 
key international standard certification including certification for manufacture of cylinders according to DOT for BA/BW 
standard for USA in India. 
 
In the recent past company has entered into American market.  
 
The manufacturing Works is situated at Faridabad, on the outskirts of New Delhi in the NCR region. 
 
You directors are optimistic of future growth of the company. 
 
EXPOSURE TO EXPORTS OF LPG CYLINDERS 
 
WELDED STEEL LPG CYLINDERS 

 
Over the past 30 years MUL has produced the cylinders as per different international standards such as EN 1442, ISO 
4706, SANS 4706, DOT 4BA, KS ISO 4706, ISO 22991, IS 3196, OS 120, NIS 69, AS 2469, AS 2470, SNI 1452, SLS 
1178 and EN 13322-1.  Customers such as BP, SHELL, TOTAL, BOC/LINDE, VITOGAZ and ADDAX  etc. to name 
but a few have enjoyed our international quality at an affordable price.   We have installed rigorous standards with modern 
equipment and a keen and well-trained workforce.  We produce the cylinders from 4.0 litre(1.7kgs. gas capacity) to 120.0 
litre (50.0 kgs.) for LPG and other gases such as ammonia and refrigerants.  
 
The company has made export sales (FOB) during the financial year ended under report amounting to Rs. 24922.62 Lakhs 
compared to  Rs. 16857.23 Lakhs during previous financial year  
 
We are committed to satisfy our customers by providing Quality Product which gives highest value for money. 
 
We believe that employees are our most important asset through which we can reach the top in each category of our 
products and services.  Therefore, we will emphasize on their continuous improvement through upgradation of relevant 
knowledge and training. 
 
We commit ourselves to continuous growth, so as to fulfil the aspirations of our customers, employees and shareholders. 
 
Committed To Quality 
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We don’t just manufacture products, we create satisfaction. Eurospa has deployed extensive resources to ensure the 
optimum quality of its products.  The reiterative tests, the microscopic adherence to quality and inspection, all ensures that 
all Eurospa products are of world-class quality.  We treat each and every product as a challenge, and every achievement a 
reason to set new goals. 
 
MUL apart from manufacturing of LPG Cylinders, Valves, Regulators, Disposable Cylinders, Methyl Bromide Cylinders 
&Refillable Cylinders, being its main activity, has also undertaken the following :- 
 

I.  TERRY TOWEL DIVISION 
 
The company undertakes manufacturing of terry towels in addition to cylinders. MUL has a top-of-the-line manufacturing 
facility to manufacture world-class terry towels as per the prevailing international standards. 
 
Spread over 30,000 sq.ft., this unit boasts of an in-house and completely integrated infrastructure alongwith a talented 
pool of professionals from the textile industry. 
 
The unit comprises of a modern facility and a weaving plant equipped with all the relevant machines.  The ultra-modern 
Terry Towel Manufacturing Unit has the state-of-the-art technology sourced from Switzerland, Germany and Italy. 
 
Your directors are pleased to inform that the total turnover of the Terry Towel Division during the year under report has 
been at Rs. 37.36 Crores as against  Rs. 42.88 Crore during the previous year. Management is hopeful of higher turnover during  next 
year 2025-26    
 
 

Zero Defect Production In Terry Towel 
 
Automatic Fabric Inspection machine has been installed to ensure that only zero defect fabric goes for production.  To 
lend smooth velvet finish to the products, specialized shearing machines have been imported.  The end product is also 
inspected by the finishing team for even minor defects, if any.  The objective is to ship only those products which reflect 
MUL’s unflinching commitment to quality. 
 

 
II. LPG CYLINDER ACCESSORIES 

 
The company also manufactures various other LPG Cylinder Accessories such as Cylinder Guards, Neck Rings, Burner 
Set, Cooker Ring & Adopter. 
 
RECOGNITION & AWARDS  

 
The company is the recipient of FIEO’s Niryat Shree Bronze Trophy Award for its excellence in exports. 
 
EEPC INDIA, Eastern Region awarded the company on 25.02.2011 Export Excellence for Star Performer as large 
enterprise in the product group of other fabricated metal products, exel machinery & equipment for its outstanding 
contribution to engineering exports during the year 2008-09 and for the year 2009-10 as well which was received on 
20.12.2011 by Shri N. K. Sureka, then director of the company. 
 
The company was also represented in the Annual Premier Vendors’ Workshop conducted by Bharat Petroleum 
Corporation Limited held at Mumbai on 04.11.2011 wherein a Trophy for the best performance was awarded to the 
company. 
 
The Indian Council of Small & Medium Exporters (ICSME) has awarded Niryat Shiromani Puraskar to Shri N. K. Sureka, 
a director of the company and Gold Medal to the company for export performance on 23.03.2007. 
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The company participated in the “Haryana State Safety and Welfare Awards Scheme” in the year 2006 and the Directorate 
of Industrial Safety & Health, Labour Department, Haryana placed on record its appreciation of the management for 
taking proactive steps by implementing safety, health and welfare schemes for the workers. 
 
The Engineering Export Promotion Council of India (EEPC INDIA) awarded Silver Trophy to your Company as National 
Award for Export Excellence   2011-12 on 15th March,2013 in the presentation ceremony held in Mumbai. 
 
Industries & Commerce Department, Government of Haryana conferred State Export Award 2013-14 to the Company on 
08.06.2015. 
 

AUTOMATION 
 
The company is continuously automizing and upgrading the manufacturing facility to meet the latest technological 
advancement. 
 
RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT (R&D) 
 
MUL has its in-house R&D facility and a fully equipped design studio that creates innovative and vibrant designs for 
towels in line with prevailing international trends and forecasts. The studio is equipped with CAD system and is managed 
by well-known and talented designers. It is also fully capable of designing towels as per the buyer’s designs, material and 
colour specifications. 
 
The management of the company also keeps a tab on the international trends by attending various international fairs & 
conferences.  
 
The company’s continued focus on R&D has resulted in several approvals of its products in developed markets and 
significant progress in its initiative. 
 
MUL has a complete and integrated towel manufacturing facility which makes its products internationally compatible in 
terms of quality and price. It also helps to reduce production lead time to a considerable extent.   
 
It is now all set to carve a niche for itself in the competitive international market by exporting world class products.  
 

FORGING NEW RELATIONSHIPS 

 
Having consolidated its infrastructure and strengths, the company is planning to expand and grow its overseas market in 
times to come.  It plans to forge mutually rewarding business associations with its potential clients.  For this purpose, it 
has chalked out an ambitious plan.  The management of the company is committed to provide its clients reliable and 
quality products at competitive prices and thus nurture enduring relationships with them.  
 
The change in the international/local Govt. Policies do have its significant impact on the business of the company in the 
international  as well as local markets, thus, effecting the volume of sales including the exports of the company.   
 

SWOT ANALYSIS OF LPG INDUSTRY 

 

Strength: 

 Over 30 years’ experience in manufacturing LPG Cylinder, Valves and Pressure Regulators. 

 Exporting in over 60 countries all over the globe. 

 Easily availability of raw material, low cost labour and transportation 

 Increasing demand in overseas LPG market 

 Strong experienced management 

 Encouraging export policies 

 Customer loyalty 
Weakness: 



 MAURIA UDYOG LIMITED 45
th
  ANNUAL REPORT 

 Raw material Cost Intensive 

 Work inefficiency 

 Working capital 

 Economic factors 

 Political uncertainties 
Opportunities: 

 Innovation 

 New Market 

 Huge Demand 

 Growing Industry 

 Geographic best location 
Threats: 

 International/regional competition 

 Uncertainty of input cost 

 Continuous govt. interference (Interest rate/Regulatory compliance ) 

 Slowdown in  national/global economy/demand 
 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THEIR ADEQUACY 
 
The Company has a proper and adequate internal control system to ensure that all assets are safeguarded and protected 
against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and those transactions reauthorized, recorded and reported correctly. The 
internal control is exercised through documented policies, guidelines and procedures. It is supplemented by an extensive 
program of internal audits conducted by in house trained personnel. The audit observations and corrective action taken 
thereon are periodically reviewed by the audit committee to ensure effectiveness of the internal control system. The 
internal control is designed to ensure that the financial and other records are reliable for preparing financial statements and 
other data, and for maintaining accountability of persons.  
 

DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE 

 

The brief on Financial Performance of the Company is already provided in the Boards‟ Report of the Company. 
 

 

RISK & CONCERNS 
 
At MUL, all key functions and divisions are independently responsible to monitor risk associated within their respective 
areas of operations such as production, finance, insurance, shipping, legal and other issues like health, safety and 
environment.  
 
Cylinders and terry towel products are globally traded commodities and their prices are subjected to international market 
forces of demand-supply and other factors that influence price volatility.  With these two businesses presently accounting 
for the major proportion of MUL’s revenues, changes in global price levels will have an impact on the company’s 
performance.   
 
Your company has identified the following risks with possible impact on the company and the mitigation plans of the 
company: 
 

Key Risk Impact on the Company Mitigation Plans 

Commodity Price/availability  Risk Risk of price fluctuation on 
the basic raw- material like 
HR Coils, CR Coils, MS 
Bunk, Brass, Aluminum alloy, 
zinc-ingots, chemicals, 
Fabrics, grey yarn, Dye power 

Adequate level of raw material 
inventory has to be maintained at all 
times to ensure quick turnaround time 
for orders received. Any volatility in 
the prices or disruption in availability 
of raw material can impact the 
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etc. profitability of the Company. However, 
MUL has strong relationships with the 
raw material suppliers and optimum 
level of raw material. 

Uncertain global economic environment- 
slow growth in global economy 

Impact on demand and 
realization of Exports. 

Company’s business is quite diversified 
thereby diversifying the risk as well. 
Company keeps on reviewing   new 
business opportunities. 

Interest Rate-risk. Any increase in interest rate 
can affect the finance cost. 

Dependence on debt is minimum and 
we have sufficient funds with Banks to 
settle the entire debt in case need arises. 

Compliance risk. Any default can attract penal 
provisions. 

By regularly monitoring and reviewing 
of changes in the regulatory framework 
and timely compliance thereof.  

Competition Risk Your company is always 
exposed to competition Risk 
from Asian Countries like US, 
African Countries, Sri Lanka, 
China,Taiwan, and other 
European Countries. The 
increase in competition can 
create pressure on margins, 
market share etc. 

By continuous efforts to enhance the 
brand image of the Company by 
focusing on R&D, quality, Cost, timely 
delivery and customer service. By 
introducing new product range 
commensurate with demands your 
company plan to mitigate the risks so 
involved. 

 
As per global trend, all labour intensive manufacturing activities are being discontinued in the developed countries and are 
now shifting to developing countries wherein India is most preferred destination specially of products like Cylinders & 
Towels.  The company is in an advantageous position as far as products manufactured are concerned. 
 
OUTLOOK 

 
The company is taking all efforts to improve the quality and productivity to get more orders at competitive rates. The 
company’s business is committed to achieve world benchmark quality besides expanding on new product offering from 
new clients. Further the business will continue to focus on improving its cost competitive position. These measures will 
ensure the company maintaining its leadership position in the Indian/world market. Due to the own Manufacturing 
/processing plant the company is able to quote better rates and maintain safety of products high quality & productivity in 
the finished goods manufactured. Barring unforeseen circumstances the company is confident of achieving better results 
in the current year. The key risks for the global economy include increased US Tariffs, US-China trade war, exit of Britain 
from European Union and the situation in the Middle East and Africa. The developing nations of Asia are expected to 
experience a higher rate of growth next few years. 
 

The current economic state, uncertainties on trade with US due to higher tariffs, uncertain international supply chains due 
to war  between Israel & Iran, between Russia & Ukraine  and challenging retail environment, pose new threats to 
businesses across all sectors. Your Company is focused on “Survive, Revive, Revitalise and Thrive” strategy and is 
constantly monitoring the factory level performance, driving sales through  online channels and cost optimisation across 
all functions. Your Company is strategically positioned to harness the present challenges, given the strength of its 
Products. Brand, innovation capabilities.  
 

 

 

HUMAN RESOURCES/INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 
 
Company’s HR philosophy is to establish and build a high performing organization, where each individual is motivated to 
perform to the fullest capacity, to bring about improvements from ideas originating from shop-floor to contribute to 
developing and achieving individual excellence and departmental objectives and continuously improve performance to 
realize the full potential of our personnel.  
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AUDITORS 
 
STATUTORY AUDITORS 

 

The Members of the Company at the 40th AGM held on  31th December, 2020,  had approved the appointment of M/s 
NKSC & Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN: 020076N ), Delhi,  as the Statutory Auditors of the Company to hold office 
for a term of 5 (five) consecutive years from the conclusion of said AGM till the conclusion of the 45th  AGM. They will 
complete their one consecutive term of five years as Statutory Auditors of the Company on conclusion of this 45th AGM. 
 
In accordance with the Companies Act, 2013 and on the recommendation of the Audit Committee and in the best interest 
of the Company, the Board of Directors have considered and recommended the proposal of re-appointment of M/s. NKSC 
& Co., Chartered Accountants (FRN: 020076N), Delhi as Statutory Auditors of the Company for an another term of five 
(5) years i.e. from the conclusion of this AGM till the conclusion of 50th (Fiftieth) AGM. M/s. NKSC & Co., Chartered 
Accountants have provided their consent and confirmed that their re-appointment, if made, would be within the limits 
specified under section 141(3)(g) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as 
amended from time to time. M/s. NKSC & Co., Chartered Accountants has confirmed that they hold a valid certificate 
issued by the Peer Review Board of ICAI. 
 
COST AUDITORS 

 
The Company has appointed M/s Jaiprakash & Co., Cost Accountants for conducting the audit of cost records of the 
Company relating to LPG Cylinders, Regulators &Valves for the financial year 2024-25. Pursuant to Section 148 of the 
Act read with Rule 14 of the Companies (Audit &Auditors) Rule, 2014 ratification of the remuneration of Cost Auditors 
is being sought from the Members of the Company at the ensuing AGM. Further, the Company has maintained all the cost 
accounts and records as required under the relevant laws. 
 
SECRETARIAL AUDITORS 

 
The Board of Directors of the Company, in compliance with section 204 of the Act read with SEBI (Listing Obligations & 
Disclosures Requirements) Regulation, 2015, as amended, have appointed Ms. Jyoti Arya, Practicing Company Secretary 
(M. No.-A48050/ COP-17651) as the Secretarial Auditors to conduct secretarial audit of the Company for a term of 
continuous Five years period i.e. for Financial years commencing 2025-26 upto 2029-30, subject to approval of the 
shareholders in the ensuing 45th AGM. The   Secretarial Audit Report as per Section 204 of the Act for FY 2024-25 is 
placed as annexure to this report. 
 
No adverse comments have been made in the said report by the Practicing Company Secretary. 
 

STATEMENT ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE MATERNITY BENEFIT ACT, 1961 

 

Pursuant to Clause (xiii) of sub-rule (5) of Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors 
hereby confirms that the Company has complied with the provisions of the Maternity Benefit Act, 1961 during the year 
under review. The Company has taken adequate measures to ensure a safe and supportive working environment for 
women employees in accordance with the aforesaid Act.  
 

 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION AND FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING & 

OUTGO 

 

Information required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Act read with Rule 8(3) of the Companies(Accounts) Rules, 2014, 
with respect to conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings/outgo : 
 
A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY 

 
Measures taken, additional investments and impact on reduction of energy consumption 
Disclosure of particulars with respect to Conservation of Energy. 
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-Company has replaced their entire Thyristor base SAW (submerged arc welding) and MIG (Metal inert gas) welding 
machines from their production with Inverter base machines which consume approximately 30% less input power. 47 nos. 
of 1000 Amps SAW and 40 Nos of 400 AMPS MIG welding sets have been replaced. 
 
-VFD (variable frequency drive) employed with conveyor line and in other machines resulting in power saving. 
 
-Rs. 66.87 lacs have been spent during 2013-14 on acquiring Solar Power Generating system with an object to reduce the 
lighting load and to further reduce the same company proposes to use LED lights.  
 

B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION 

 

 Disclosure of particulars with respect to Technology Absorption 
 
 

(i) Efforts in brief made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation &(ii) Benefits derived as a 

result of the above efforts& (iii) Technology Imported during the last three years. 

 
Following steps have been taken for enhancing productivity and quality improvements, resulting in enhanced safety and 
environmental protection measures and conservation of energy:- 
 

 Our company has used latest inverter based technology in welding machines for improving quality and 

productivity of LPG cylinders (welding machines have been imported from China& fully operational.) 

 

 Flux recovery system has been employed in SAW welding for ensuring defect free radiographic quality welding. 

 Powered belt conveyers designed and installed for assembly and quality control process removing manual 

material movement & improving productivity. 

 Electrical actuator operated blank lifting system(s) have been designed and installed in all the deep drawing press 

for mechanized loading and feeding of blanks & avoiding operator fatigue. 

 Twin head SAW machines have started operating for welding both dish ends simultaneously for productivity 

improvement. 

 Processing in a machine; trimming and joggling operation together, will remove variation in dimension, improve 

quality and productivity. 

 Manual loading and unloading being replaced in machines by pneumatic and electrical power equipments.  

1. Expenditure on R&D: -NA- 

2.  
Rs. in Lacs 

(C) FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUT GO                                2024-25 2023-24 

a) Earning in Foreign Exchange F.O.B. Value of Exports 
 

29,676.05 24922.62 

b) C.I.F  Value of Imports: 
  -Raw material/stock-in-trade 

         -Capital goods/repairs  
 

 
4197.55 

1.35 

 
2022.50 
3.41 

c) Commission 
 

2646.88 2142.48 

d) Others 
 

129.33 94.26 

Total 6975.11 4262.65 
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Details of significant changes in the Key Financial Ratios: 

 

Key financial ratios along with the details of significant changes (25% or more) in FY 2024-25 compared to FY 2023-24 is as 
follows: 

      (A).   
Ratios Formulae 

 March 31, 
2025  

March 31,   %  
 2024       Chang

a).   Current ratio (in times) Current assets / 
Current liabilities 

1.16 0.64      80.95 %

b).   Debt equity ratio (in times) Total debt /  
Total equity 

2.65 3.52      (24.74) 

c).   Debt service coverage ratio (in times) Earnings available for debt services /  
(Repayment of borrowings + Interest) 

3.67 2.78       31.97 %

d).   Return on Equity Ratio (in %) (Loss) after taxes / 
Total equity 

35% 38%       (6.92) %

e).   Return on Capital Employed Ratio (Pre 
tax) (in %) 

Earnings before interest & tax / 
 Capital employed 

15% 12%        23.10 %

f).   Net profit ratio (in %) Net (loss) /  
Revenue from operations 

4% 5%        (10.82) %

g).   Inventory Turnover Ratio (in times) Cost of Goods Sold / 
Average Inventory 

2.41 2.61       (7.54) %

h).   Trade Receivable Turnover Ratio (in 
times) 

Credit sales / 
 Average trade receivables 

36.47 33.27      9.61 %

i).   Trade payables turnover ratio (in times) Credit purchases /  
Average trade payables 

2.90 2.35       23.16  

j).   Net capital Turnover Ratio (in times) Revenue from operations / 
Average working capital 

(13.17) (2.81)    368.68 %

k).   Return on investment Net Profit after sales *100 /Total Assets 0.045 0.038     18.48 %
 

      
(B).  Explanation on items included in numerator and denominator for computation of above ratios: 

       i)  Total debt includes non-current borrowings, current borrowings and interest accrued but not due on borrowings. 
ii)  Earnings available for debt services: Loss after tax + Finance costs 

  (C).  Reasons for significant changes (25% or more) 
         i)  Current ratio has improved due to reduction in current liability on account of settlement of various borrowings as well 

as receipt of advances for sale of land. 
ii)  Debt equity ratio has reduced due to increase in equity as share application money pending allotment. 

 iii)  Debt service coverage ratio has improved as earning increased and repayment of many loans were done as on March 31,
iv)  Return on equity ratio has improved on account of profits arising this year. 

  v)  Net profit ratio has increased due to profits arising this year. 
  vi)  Inventory Turnover Ratio has increased on account of increased purchases during the year. 
  vii)  Trade receivables turnover ratio has improved on account of increase in revenue in the current financial year. 

 viii)  Trade payables turnover ratio has increased in account of increased purchases during the year. 
 ix)  Net capital turnover ratio has decreased due to increase in revenue in the current financial year. Average working cap

receivables as non-current. 

ACCOUNTING TREATMENT 

There has been no change in the accounting treatment for preparation of financial results, during the year under review. 

 
GENERAL 

Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there were no transactions 
on these items during the year under review: 

a) Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise; 
b) Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any scheme save and except ESOS referred 

to in this Report; 
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c) Neither the Managing Director nor the Whole-time Directors of the Company receive any remuneration or commission from 
any of its subsidiaries; 

d) During the year under review, neither any fraud of any kind on or by the Company has been noticed by the Board of Directors 
of the Company nor reported by the Auditors of the Company. The Company has an internal financial control system, 
commensurate to the size of the business, in place. 
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Annexure-A 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 
1. The Company’s Philosophy on Corporate Governance 
  
The Board of Directors and Management believe in adopting and practicing principles of good Corporate Governance 
with a view to: - 
 

- Foster a culture of compliance and obligation at every level of the organization, 
- Safeguard shareholders’ interest through sound business decisions, prudent financial management and high 

standard of business ethics and 
- Achieve transparency, accountability and integrity in the dealings and transactions of the Company. 

 
The Company is incompliance with the provisions of Corporate Governance specified in the SEBI (Listing Obligations & 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations, 2015) 
 
The Company is committed to meet the expectations of stakeholders as a responsible corporate citizen. The Company’s 
Code of Conduct contains the fundamental principles and rules concerning ethical business conduct. 
 
2.      Board of Directors  

 
(i) Composition: - 

 
As of March 31, 2025 the Board of Directors comprise of Six Directors as under:- 
 

Brief Particulars 

  Name of Director            Promoter Group Category 

 Shri Navneet 
Kumar Sureka 

He is an Industrialist having 30 years’ experience in the 
Steel Industry and joined the Board as Promoter director 
wef 29th July, 1997. 

Executive-
Managing Director 

Smt. Deepa Sureka She is having 17 years’ experience in the company as 
Officer on Special Duty. She joined the Board as Whole-
time Woman Director (Executive-Promoter Category) wef 
October 04, 2024. 

Executive-Whole-
time Woman 
Director 

 

Non-Independent 

 Smt. Veena 
Aggarwal 

She is in business having 41 years  experience in the field of 
finance & investment. She joined the   

Non-executive-Non-
Independent 

 

Independent 

Shri Birendra Kumar Mr. Birendra Kumar has experience in the field of general 
management & human resources. He joined the Board wef 
March 28, 2022. 

Non-Executive-Independent 

Shri Manohar 
Menghraj Punjabi 

Mr. Manohar Menghraj Punjabi  is employed as Manager 
Finance in private sector in Dubai. He is having experience in 
the field of Finance & accounts & general management.  He 
joined the Board wef 26-06-2023. 

Non-Executive-Independent 

Shri Atul Kumar Mr. Atul Kumar BSc. Hons Electronics is a software 
professional having more than 15 years of experience in 
Software/IT industry. He joined the Board wef 26-02-2024. 

Non-Executive-Independent 
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The Company keeps its Directors informed of the activities of the Company, its management and operations and provides 
an overall industry perspective as well as issues being faced by the industry from time to time. The details of various 
familiarization programmes provided to the Directors of the Company is available on the Company’s website 
https://mauria.com/wp-content/uploads/2023/03/2022-23-.pdf 
 
(ii) Board Meetings and attendance 

 
Fourteen Board Meetings were held during the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 and the gap between two Board 
Meetings did not exceed one hundred & twenty days. The necessary quorum was present for all the meetings. During the 
year a separate meeting of the independent directors was held inter-alia to review the performance of non-independent 
directors and the board as a whole. 
 
The dates on which Board meetings were held are as follows:- 
 

Sl No. Date of Meeting Board Strength No. of Directors Present 

1 12-04-2024 06 04 

2 26-04-2024 06 04 

3 29-05-2024. 06 04 

4 13-06-2024 06 03 

5 27-06-2024 06 03 

6 15-07-2024 06 03 

7 12-08-2024 06 03 

8 20-08-2024 06 04 

9 04-10-2024 06 03 

10 28-10-2024 06 03 

11 13-11-2024 06 03 

12 28-11-2024 06 04 

13 04-01-2025 06 04 

14 07-02-2025 06 04 

 
(iii)    Attendance of each Director at the Board meetings and last Annual General Meeting(AGM) and the number of 
Companies and committees where he/she is a Director/Member.   

 

 Name of Director Category of 
Directorship 

Number of 
Board 
Meetings 
Attended 

Attendance at 
the Last AGM 
held on 
11.09.2024 

Number of 
Directorships in  
listed Public 
Ltd., including 
this company as 
on 31/03/2025 

Number of 
committee 
positions held 
in other 
Companies 

1 Shri N.K. Sureka Executive-Promoter 14 Yes 01 01 

2 Smt. Premlata  
Sureka*  

Executive-Promoter 
Nil No Nil Nil 

3 
Smt. Veena Aggarwal 

Non-Executive Non-
Independent 

10 No 02 03 

4 
Smt. Deepa Sureka** Executive-Promoter 04 No 01 

Nil 
 

5 
Sh. Birendra Kumar 

Non-Executive 
Independent 

09 No 01 
02 
 

6 Shri Manohar Menghraj 
Punjabi  

Non-Executive -
Independent 

01 No 01 Nil 

7. Shri Atul Kumar 
 

Non-Executive-
Independent 

11 Yes 02 04 

*Resigned wef 04/10/2024 ** Appointed wef 04/10/2024 
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Other Directorships 

 
 

S 

No. 

Name of the 

Director 

Names of the listed entities where the 

person is a director 

Category of directorship 

1 Shri N.K. Sureka 1.Mauria Udyog Ltd. Executive-Promoter 

2 Smt. Veena Aggarwal 1 Mauria Udyog Ltd. 
2 Quality Synthetic Industries Ltd 

Non-Executive-Non-Independent-
Woman Director 

3 
Smt. Deepa Sureka 

1 Mauria Udyog Ltd. Executive-Promoter-Woman 
Director 

4 Sh. Birendra Kumar 1.Mauria Udyog Ltd. Non-Executive-Independent 

5 Shri Manohar 
Menghraj Punjabi 

1.Mauria Udyog Ltd. Non-Executive-Independent 

6 
Shri Atul Kumar 

1. Mauria Udyog Ltd. 
2.Quality Synthetic Industries Ltd 

Non-Executive-Independent 

 

 

Disclosure of relationships between directors inter-se 
 
Shri Navneet Kumar Sureka, Managing Director & Smt. Deepa Sureka, Director are related as Husband &wife.  
 

 Chart setting out the skills/expertise/competence of the board of directors:- 

Mr. Navneet Kumar Sureka, Mrs. Deepa Sureka, Mrs. Veena Aggarwal, Mr. Manohar Menghraj 
Punjabi, Mr. Birendra Kumar & Mr. Atul Kumar  possess the below skills/expertise/competence 
whereas other is well versed in his own  fields. 
 
 

Core skills/expertise/ competencies identified by the board of directors as 

required in the context of its business(es) and sector(s) for it to function 

effectively  

 

Those actually available with the 

board  

 

1. Ability to understand Financial Markets  
2. Ability to understand Regulatory/Statutory framework applicable to the 

Company 
3. Quick decision making 
4. Understanding of Company’s business verticals 
5. Experience in developing policies and processes relating to corporate 

governance 
6. Leaderships skills for guiding the management team  
7. Ability to formulate long term and short term business strategies 
8. Ability to understand Financial Statements 

As per the Board, all these 
skills/expertise/ competencies are 
available with the Board 

 
 Confirmation by the board regarding independent directors 

 
The Board of Directors do hereby confirm that in the opinion of the board, the independent directors fulfill the 
conditions specified in SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and are 
independent of the management. 
 
 Detailed reasons for the resignation of an independent director who resigns before the expiry of 

his tenure along with a confirmation by such director that there are no other material reasons 

other than those provided:-NA- During the year ended March 31, 2025 none of the independent 
directors has resigned from the Board of Directors.    
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3.   Audit Committee  
 

The constitution of the Audit Committee is in accordance with the requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 
2013(here-in-after known the “Act”) and Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations, 2015. During the year under review 
there has been no change in the composition of this committee.  
 

As on March 31, 2025 Audit committee comprises of  following directors: 
 

Sl. 

No 

Name of Members Category Designation 

1 Shri Atul Kumar Non-Executive-Independent  Chairperson  
2 Shri Navneet Kumar Sureka Executive Member 

3 Shri Birendra Kumar  Non-Executive-Independent Member 

  
 
(i) The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are as set-out in Section 177 of the Act & the role as per 

theRegulation18 of the Listing Regulations, 2015  
 
(ii) The Audit Committee had Six Meetings during the financial year 2024-25 ended on 31st March, 2025 as 

per details thereof and the names of Directors who attended the said meetings, are as under:- 
 

Details of the Audit Committee Meetings held during the financial year 2024-25 and attended by the 

Directors: 
 

Name of 

Directors 

12/04/2024 29/05/2024 12/08/2024 20/08/2024 13/11/2024 07/02/2025 

Sh. Atul Kumar –
Chairman 

Yes 
 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Sh. Navneet 
Kumar Sureka-

Member 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Sh. Birendra 
Kumar-Member 

Yes Yes Yes Yes No Yes 

 

 

4.     Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

 
Pursuant to Regulation19 of the Listing Regulations, 2015 and Section 178 of the Act, the Board has re-
constituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and adopted new terms of reference 
 
The terms of reference for the Nomination and Remuneration Committee includes: 
 
• To formulate a Nomination and Remuneration Policy on: 
 
— determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director, 
 
— guiding remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”) and other employees and Board 
diversity. 
 
• Recommend Nomination and Remuneration Policy to the Board. 
 
• Identify candidates who are qualified to become Directors 
•Identify persons who are qualified to become Senior Management (Senior Management of the Company means 
employees of the Company who are Divisional Heads and Corporate Functional Heads). 
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• Recommend to the Board the appointment and removal of Directors and Senior Management. 
 
• Lay down the process for evaluation of the performance of every Director on the Board. 
 
-The constitution of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee is in accordance with the requirements of 
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 (here-in-after known the “Act”) and Regulation 19 of the Listing 
Regulations, 2015. 
 
During the year there has been no change in the composition of this committee. 
 
As on March 31, 2025 this committee consisted of following directors: 
 

Sl. No Name of Members Category Designation 

1 Shri Atul Kumar Non-Executive-Independent  Chairperson  
2 Smt. Veena Sureka Non-Executive-Non-Independent Member 

3 Sh. Birendra Kumar Non-Executive-Independent Member 

 
 

During the year 2024-2025, the Nomination & Remuneration committee met four times to recommend 
appointment of independent directors / senior management.  
 

Name of Directors  

26/04/2024 04/10/2024 28/10/2024 07/2/2024 

Sh. Atul Kumar –Chairman Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Smt. Veena Aggarwal-Member Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Sh. Birendra Kumar-Member No No No No 

 

 

Performance evaluation criteria for Independent Director: 

 
Criteria for evaluation of the Independent Directors;  
 

1. Experience and ability to contribute to the decision making process  
2. Problem solving approach and guidance to the Management  
3. Attendance and Participation in the Meetings  
4. Personal competencies and contribution to strategy formulation 
5. Contribution towards statutory compliances, monitoring of controls and Corporate Governance  
6. The evaluation of independent directors shall be done by the entire board of directors which shall include 

–  
a. Performance of the directors; and 
b. Fulfillment of the independence criteria as specified in these regulations and their independence 

from the management:  
Provided that in the above evaluation, the directors who are subject to evaluation shall not participate. 
 
 

5. Nomination and Remuneration Policy 

 
Pursuant to Regulation 19 of the Listing regulations, 2015 and Section 178 of the Act, the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee has adopted a Nomination and Remuneration Policy which provides guidance on: 
 

- Selection Criteria for Directors 

The Company shall consider the following aspects while appointing a person as a Director on the Board of 
the Company: 
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Skills and Experience: The candidate shall have appropriate skills and experience in one or more fields of 
technical operations, finance, law, management, sales, marketing, administration, public administrative 
services, research, corporate governance, or any other discipline related to the Company’s business. 
 

Age Limit: The candidate should have completed the age of twenty-one (21) years and should not have 
attained the age of seventy (70) years. 
 

Conflict of Interest: The candidate should not hold Directorship in any competitor company, and should 
not have any conflict of interest with the Company. 
 
Directorship: The number of companies in which the candidate holds Directorship should not exceed  
the number prescribed under the Act or under the Listing Agreement requirements. 
 
Independence: The candidate proposed to be appointed as Independent Director, should not have any 
direct or indirect material pecuniary relationship with the Company and must satisfy the requirements 
imposed under the Act or under the Listing Agreement requirements 
 
Selection Criteria for Senior Management 

 

As per policy, Senior Management for the purpose of this policy shall mean employees hired at the level of 
Divisional Heads and Corporate Functional Heads or equivalent positions. The policy provides that the 
candidate should have appropriate qualifications, skills and experience for discharging the role. The 
qualifications, skills and experience of each such position shall be defined in the job description, which will 
be maintained by the HR function. 
 

6. Remuneration for Directors, KMP and other Employees 

 
The policy provides that the remuneration of Directors, KMP and other employees shall be based on the 
following key principles: 
 
• Pay for performance: Remuneration of Executive Directors, KMP and other employees is dependent on 
short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the Company and its goal. The 
remuneration of Non-Executive Directors shall be decided by the Board based on the profits of the 
Company and industry benchmarks. 
 
• Balanced rewards to create sustainable value: The level and composition of remuneration is reasonable 
and sufficient to attract, retain and motivate the Directors and employees of the Company and encourage 
behaviour that is aligned to sustainable value creation. 
 
• Competitive compensation: Total target compensation and benefits are comparable to peer companies in 
the manufacturing industry and commensurate to the qualifications and experience of the concerned 
individual. 
• Business Ethics: Strong governance processes and stringent risk management policies are adhered to, in 
order to safeguard our stakeholders’ interest. 
 

Performance Evaluation 

The process approved by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee requires the Chairman to initiate 
the performance evaluation process in the months of January-March every year. The performance 
evaluation is conducted based on approved criteria in the evaluation forms. The process highlights are as 
under: 
a) Board: Each Board member completes the self-evaluation form. Independent Directors discuss the 

self-evaluation forms in a separate meeting and share their feedback with the Chairman. The Chairman 
discusses the evaluation form analysis with the Managing Director and later with the entire Board at the 
Board Meeting  
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b) Committees: Each Committee member completes the self-evaluation form and shares feedback with 
the Chairman. The Chairman discusses the evaluation form analysis with the Managing Director and 
later with the entire Board at the Board Meeting. 

 
c) Chairman and Executive Directors: Each Board member completes thepeer evaluation form. 

Independent Directors discuss the peer evaluation forms in separate meeting and share their feedback 
with the Chairman. The Chairman conveys feedback individually to the concerned Directors. 

 
d) Independent Directors: Each Board member completes the peer evaluation and shares feedback  

with the Chairman. The Chairman conveys feedback individually to the concerned Directors. 
 
Remuneration to Directors 

 
a) Non-Executive Directors 

 
No remuneration other than sitting fees of Rs. 500/- for attending Board Meetings and Committee meetings 

are paid to each of non-executive directors. There is no pecuniary relationship and transactions with Non-

Executive Directors. The company’s policy for making payment to the Non-executive directors is available 

at https://mauria.com/wp-content/uploads/2018/01/3-MUL-Criterion-for-making-payment-to-Non-EXD-

1.pdf 
 
(i)    Sitting fees paid to Directors for meetings of the Board during 2024-25:- 
   

Name of Director Amount (Rs) 

Board Meetings 
Amount (Rs) 

Committee-

Meetings 

Total 

Smt. Veena Aggarwal 5000 4500 9,500 

Shri Birendra Kumar 4500 3500 8,000 

Shri Manohar Menghraj Punjabi 500 Nil    500 

Shri Atul Kumar                  5500 7000            12,500 

Total 15,500 15,000 30,500 

; 

 

b) Executive Directors 

Remuneration being paid to all Executive Directors are fixed in nature and there are no 

performance linked incentives being paid. 

1. Remuneration paid to Mr. N.K. Sureka, Managing Director 

Amount (Rs.) 

a)  Salary for twelve months of 2024-25 (April,2024 
to March,2025) 

37,80,000 

b)  Provident Fund Contributions                                   21,600 

c)  Perquisites (including Bonus & Earned Leave) 4,10,910 

Total 42,12,510 
 

 Service contracts, notice period, severance fees. N.A. 

2. Remuneration paid to Mrs. Deepa Sureka, Whole-time Director 

Amount (Rs.) 

a)  Salary for twelve months of 2023-24 (April,2023 
to March, 2024) 

10,25,753 

b)  Provident Fund Contributions                                   12,309 

c)  Perquisites (including Bonus & Earned Leave) 1,95,299 

Total 12,33,361 
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 Service contracts, notice period, severance fees. N.A. 

3. Remuneration paid to Mrs. Prem Lata Sureka, Whole-time Director 

Amount (Rs.) 

a)  Salary for twelve months of 2024-25 (April,2024 
to March, 2025) 

501,110 

b)  Provident Fund Contributions                                   9,291 

c)  Perquisites (including Bonus & Earned Leave) 20,130 

Total 5,30,531 

 

 Number of shares and convertible instruments held by non-executive directors.–Nil 

 
7. Code of Conduct for the Directors & Senior Managerial Personnel 
 
In compliance to the provisions of Regulation 17 (5) of the Listing Regulations, the Board has laid down a code of 
Conduct for all the Board Members and Senior Managerial Personnel and all Board Members and Senior 
Managerial Personnel have affirmed compliance of code of conduct as on 31st March, 2025 and a declaration to 
that effect duly signed by the Managing Director is attached and forms part of this report. 

8.    Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee 

 
The constitution of Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee is in accordance with the requirements of Section 178 
of the Companies Act, 2013 (here-in-after known the “Act”) and Regulation 20 of the Listing Regulations, 2015. 
 
During the year there has been no change in the composition of Stakeholders’ Relation Committee 
  
As on March 31, 2025 this committee consisted of following directors: 
 

Sl. 

No 

Name of Members Category Designation 

2 Shri Atul Kumar Non-Executive-Independent Chairperson 

2 Smt. Veena Aggarwal Non-Executive-Non-
Independent 

Member 

3 Shri Birendra Kumar  Non-Executive-Independent Member 

 

 
 The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee shall consider and resolve the grievances of security holders of the 
company.  
 
During the year 2024-25, Stakeholders Committee met four times and provided status updates to the Board of 
directors of the company. 
 

Name of Directors Date of Meetings 

12-04-2024 15-07-2024 04-10-2024 04-01-2025 

Sh. Atul Kumar*chairman No No Yes Yes 

Smt. Veena Aggarwal Yes Yes Yes Yes 

Shri  Birendra Kumar  Yes Yes No No 
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Ms. Divya Agarwal has been nominated as the Compliance Officer. 
 
Number of pending transfers                                              Nil 
 
Number of Shareholders’                                                    Nil  
Complaints received  
 
Number of Complaints                                                        Nil 
Not solved. 
 
9. Details of Prospectus & letter of offer 

No Prospectus & letter of offer for issuances and related filings were made to the stock exchange where it is 

listed. 

10.     General Body Meetings 

 
Details of Location and time of holding of last three AGMs 
(a) 
 

AGM for 

the 

financial 

year  

Venue Date Time Special Resolution Passed 

2021-22 

42
nd

 AGM 

AGM held through 
Video 
Conferencing(“VC”) 
or Other Audio 
Visual Means 
(“OAVM”) 

30.09.2022 2:00 
P.M. 

Nil 

2022-23 

43
rd

 AGM 

AGM held through 
Video 
Conferencing(“VC”) 
or Other Audio 
Visual Means 
(“OAVM”) 

28.09.2023 3:00 
P.M. 

-1.Special Resolution -Appointment of Mr. 
Manohar Menghraj Punjabi  (DIN: 08666368) as 
Non-Executive Independent Director for term of 

five consecutive years wef June 26, 2023; 

-2- Special Resolution-Issue of Equity Shares on 

Preferential Basis; 

-3- Special Resolution- Issue of equity shares to 
the promoters/non-promoters by way of conversion 
of unsecured loan  
 
 

2023-24 

44
th

 AGM 

AGM held through 
Video 
Conferencing(“VC”) 
or Other Audio 
Visual Means 
(“OAVM”) 

11.09.2024 03:00 
P.M. 

-1.  Special Resolution- Issuance Of Equity 
Shares To Private Investors By Way Of 
Preferential Issue (“Investor Preferential Issue”): 
 
-2.- Special Resolution- Issuance Of Warrants on 
a Preferential Basis to the Persons belonging to 
Non- Promoter, Public Category of the Company 
(“Investor Preferential Issue”): 

As per the provisions of the Act and SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015, the shareholders were given the option to 
vote on all resolutions through electronic means. Scrutinizer was appointed , for conducting the voting / poll and 
remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner connected with the aforesaid AGMs. 
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 (b.) Postal ballot (through e-voting) in last 3 years & Details of Special Resolution passed through Postal Ballot 
(Other than those as reported above in AGM ): 

Financial Year Cut-off 
Date 

Voting 
period 

E Voting 
results 
announcem
ent date 

Resolutions 

2022-23 20/05/2022 27/05/2022 
to 
25/06/2022 

28/06/2022 1-Special Resolution-Appointment of Mrs. 

Deepa Sureka (DIN: 00060284) as Whole-
time Woman Director (Executive-Promoter) 
wef 28/03/2022 
 
2.-Ordinary Resolution Appointment of Mr. 
Birendra Kumar (DIN: 08666368) as Non-
Executive Independent Director 

2023-24 

 

 

23/02/2024 

29/02/2024 
to 

29/03/2024 

 

01/04/2024 

-1-Special Resolution-Appointment of Mr. 
Atul Kumar (DIN: 00060233) as Non-
Executive Independent Director for a period 
of five years wef February 26, 2024. 

 

2024-25 

 

18/10/2024 

29/11/2024 
TO 
28/12/2024 

30/12/2024 -1-Special Resolution- Appointment of Mrs. 
Deepa Sureka (DIN: 00060284) as Whole-
time Woman Director (Executive-Promoter) 
wef 04/10/2024. 
 

. 
(c)  Details of Special Resolution proposed to be passed through Postal Ballot (e-Voting) :None 

 

 M/s Jyoti Arya & Associates, Company Secretaries (COP No: 17651), Delhi in practice has been appointed as 
the Scrutinizer, for conducting the voting / poll and remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner 
during the ensuing 45th  AGM to be held on 25th September, 2025 

 

11.    Disclosure: 

a)  Materially Significant related party transactions 

 
i All Transactions with related parties were in the ordinary course and at arm’s length and have been disclosed 
in Annexure to AOC-2 attached with this report and note no.47 of  the audited Annual Accounts for the year 
2023-24. 
 
ii   The terms & conditions of the above mentioned transactions are not prejudicial to the interest of the   
Company and there is no transaction of material nature for the year 2024-25 which are prejudicial to the interest 
of the company. The closing balances of such related parties, wherever outstanding, are not overdue.      
 
The Web-link for  policy on materiality of related party transactions and on dealing with related party 
transactions is http://www.mauria.com/Policies.html 

 (b)  Details of non-compliance by the company, penalties, strictures imposed on the Company by Stock  

Exchange or SEBI or any  statutory authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last 

three years. 

 

For details please refer to Directors Report under heading SIGNIFICANT MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY 

THE REGULATORS 
 

(c) Details of Compliance with Mandatory Requirements of SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015  

 

http://www.mauria.com/Policies.html
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The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of the Listing Regulations including 
compliances mentioned in Part A to Part D of Schedule II. 
 
For details please refer to Secretarial compliance report attached herewith as an annexure. 
 
(d) Web link where policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries is disclosed: 

 

The policy for determining ‘material’ subsidiaries of the Company is available at  https://mauria.com/policies/ 
  
 
12.   Means of Communication 
 

 Quarterly results: 

The Quarterly, Half yearly and Annual Results of the Company are sent to BSE Ltd in accordance with 
the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. 
 

 Newspapers wherein the results normally published: 

The quarterly and yearly results are published in English in widely circulating “Financial Express”  and in 
Bengali  in “ArthikLipi ” from Kolkata.  
 

 Any website, where displayed: 

The Quarterly, Half yearly and Annual Results are displayed on Company’s website  
www.mauria.com.The Company’s website contains a dedicated section “Investors” under which the 
details/information of interest to various stakeholders is displayed. The Results are also sent to BSE Ltd, 
which is displayed by BSE on its website http://www.bseindia.com. 
 

 Whether it also displays official news releases: 

All financial and other vital official news releases and documents under the SEBI Listing Regulations are 
also communicated to the BSE Ltd, besides being placed on the Company’s website www.mauria.com. 
 

 Presentations made to the Institutional Investors or to the Analysts: 

No presentations have been made to institutional investors or to the analysts during the year under review. 
 

14.    General Shareholder information 

Company Registration Details   The Company is registered in the State of West Bengal, 
India. The Corporate Identification Number (CIN) 
allotted to the Company by the Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs (MCA) is - L51909WB1980PLC033010. 

 
       AGM :  Date, time and venue                                    45

th
  AGM to be held on Thursday, the 25

th
   

                                                                                           September , 2025 at 03:00 PM through                    

                                                                                          Video-Conferencing or Other                                                           
                                                                                         Audio-Video Means (VC or OAVM) 
                                                                                         

 
Plant Location:     Mauria Udyog Limited 

Sohna Road, Sector-55 
Faridabad-121015 (Haryana)  

 

 Financial Calendar (Tentative) 
 

Results for quarter ending June 30, 2025                    11th August, 2025 
        declared on    
 

https://mauria.com/policies/
http://www.mauria.com/
http://www.mauria.com/
http://www.bseindia.com/
http://www.mauria.com/
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       Results for quarter ending September 30, 2025        14th November, 2025 
 
       Results for quarter ending December 31, 2025         14th February, 2026 
 
       Audited Results for the entire Financial Year  
       ending March 31, 2026                                          29th May, 2026 
 

 Date of Book closure                                       Thursday, the 19th September, 2025 
 to Wednesday, the 25th September, 2025 
 (both days inclusive) 

 

 Listing On Stock Exchanges                  Equity 
                                                                              BSE Limited 

      P.J. Towers, Dalal Street, 
      Fort, Mumbai-400001. 
      Exchange Scrip Code:539219  

Calcutta Stock Exchange  
7, Lyon Range,  
Kolkata-700001   

       Exchange Scrip Code:23114
  

 Demat ISIN Number for NSDL and CDSL.          INE150D01027.      

 

 Stock Code: 539219 

 

 Financial year: April 01, 2024 to March 31, 2025 
 

 Dividend payment date: Not applicable  
 

 Address for correspondence: Room.No.107, Anand Jyoti Building, 1st floor, 
41 Netaji Subhas Road, Kolkata, West Bengal, 700001 

 

Market price data - High, Low during the each month in last financial year: 

2024-25 
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 High/low of market price of the Company’s  
Shares traded on Stock Exchange during the  
Financial Year ended 31

st
 March, 2025 

The shares have commenced trading on the BSE since  January, 
2017 during the financial 2016-17. The last quoted price during the 
financial year ended 31

st
 March, 2025 was Rs. 14.00 for  equity 

shares of Rs. 1/-each recorded on 28.03.2025. On Feb 26,     2022 
each of Equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/- each were sub-
divided into face value of Rs. 1/- each. Shares have not been traded 
on CSE during the financial year ended 31st March, 2025 and  the 
last quoted price   was of Rs.3.50 per Share as per transactions on 
CSE on 3rd March, 2000 

  

 Registrar & Transfer Agents                     M/s. Beetal Financial & Computer   
 Services (P) Ltd., BEETAL HOUSE, 
99, Madangir, Behind Local Shopping 

              Centre, Near Dada Harsukh Dass 
Mandir, New Delhi-110062 
 Phone No. 29961281 (6 Lines)                                                   
Fax No.   29961284                                                                                 

 Share Transfer System                              All the transfers received are 
processed  by the Registrar and  
Share  Transfer Agent.  Share   

      Transfers are  registered and                                        
returned within  a maximum of         

      15 days  from the date  of lodgment 
if documents are complete in all 
respect.  In case the  shares are                                                                             
transferred  through   Demat 
mode, the procedure is adopted as  
stated   in Depositories Act, 1996.      
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 Share holding pattern as on 31-03-2025 

 

Category                                                       No. of Shares                  Percentage  

Promoters                                                         9,84,75,200                      73.93 
Persons acting in concert                                        -                                     - 
Mutual Funds and UTI                                            -                                     - 
Banks, Financial Institution &                                -                                     -  
Insurance Companies. 
FII’s                                                                         -                                     -  
Private Corporate Bodies                     13,28,928            1.00 
Indian Public                                                 3,33,95,872          25.07 
 
NRIs/ OCBs                                                                -                                     - 
                                                                        __________                    ______ 
Total                                                               13,32,00,000                   100.00   

 

 Distribution of shareholding as on 31
st
 March, 2025. 

 

No. of Shares Number               Amount 

  Number of 

Shareholders 

% to Total Number of 

Shares 

In Rs. % To Total 

From To 

01 5000 11495 93.699 6116899 6116899.00 4.5923 

5001 10000 344 2.804 2658132      2658132.00      1.9956 

10001 20000 191 1.557 2784754 2784754.00 2.0907 

20001 30000 79 0.644 1990608 1990608.00 1.4945 

30001 40000 31 0.253 1091005 1091005.00 0.8191 

40001 50000 29 0.236 1338875 1338875.00 1.0052 

50001 100000 48 0.391 3653088 3653088.00 2.7426 

100001 above 51 0.416 113566639 113566639.00 85.2602 

TOTAL 12268 100 133200000 133200000 100.000 

 

 

 Commodity price risk or foreign exchange risk and hedging activities: The Company is not a sizable 
user of commodities, hence exposes itself moderately to the price risk on account of procurement of 
commodities. 

 

 List of all credit ratings obtained by the entity along with any revisions thereto during the relevant 
financial year, for all debt instruments of such entity or any fixed deposit programme or any scheme 
or proposal of the listed entity involving mobilization of funds, whether in India or abroad-  
 

The last Credit Rating that Company had obtained from M/s Brickwork vide its letter dated 23rd 
March, 2018  was for the purpose of Bank Loan Facility of Rs. 320 Crore which was valid for a 
period of Twelve Months  from the date of aforesaid letter, was as follows :- 

 

 Fund Based-BWRBBB- (Pronounced as BWR Triple B Minus)  Outlook: Stable Assigned 
 

 Non-Fund Based-BWRA.3 (Pronounced as BWR A Three) Assigned 
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 Performance in comparison to broad-based indices such as BSE SENSEX, CRISIL Index etc. 

 

Mauria Udyog Limited BSE  SENSEX 50 

Month  High price Low price Month  High price Low price 

Apr-24 11.94 8.30 Apr-24 23,909.91 22,870.84 

May-24 11.07 8.40 May-24 24,317.95 22,907.29 

Jun-24 10.78 8.57 Jun-24 25,397.90 22,373.31 

Jul-24 10.20 7.93 Jul-24 26,260.27 25,233.11 

Aug-24 19.63 9.11 Aug-24 26,607.54 25,088.87 

Sep-24 17.42 14.25 Sep-24 27,621.19 26,021.14 

Oct-24 15.38 12.15 Oct-24 27,238.49 25,323.89 

Nov-24 15.62 12.95 Nov-24 25,815.04 24,481.25 

Dec-24 14.05 11.65 Dec-24 26,138.09 24,664.99 

Jan-25 17.55 11.50 Jan-25 25,469.95 23,852.90 

Feb-25 13.54 10.70 Feb-25 24,933.89 23,080.85 

Mar-25 14.78 10.52 Mar-25 24,914.02 22,927.97 

 

 * Market –price of each share of face-value of Rs. 1/-each.  

 On Feb 26, 2022 each of Equity shares of face value of Rs. 10/-were sub-divided into face value of Rs. 1/- each. 
    

 In case the securities are suspended from trading, the directors report shall explain the reason 

thereof: 

N/A. The securities of the Company have never been suspended from trading 
 

 Dematerialization of shares and liquidity: 

 

Liquidity:- Out of total number of 13,32,00,000 Equity Shares of the Company 13,30,65,850 equity 
shares constituting around 99.90% of the issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital were held in 
dematerialized form as on March 31, 2025 and as such, there is sufficient liquidity in the stock. 
 

 Outstanding global depository receipts or American depository receipts or warrants or any 

convertible instruments, conversion date and likely impact on equity: 

  

The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments till date. 
 
●VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY 

 

Your directors have established a Vigil (Whistle Blower) Mechanism and formulated a Policy in order to provide 
a framework for responsible and secure whistle blowing/vigil mechanism. The Vigil (Whistle Blower) 
Mechanism aims to provide a channel to the Directors and employees to report genuine concerns about unethical 
behavior, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the codes of conduct or ethic policy. This mechanism also 
provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of Directors and employees who avail of the mechanism 
and also provide for direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases. 

 
We affirm that no personnel has been denied access to the audit committee 
● Recommendations of Committee: All the recommendations as made by the Committees to the   
                                                           board from time to time have been accepted / complied-with by the Board 
                   
● Loans & advances to Subsidiaries:- Nil    
 

Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions 
placement as specified under Regulation 32 (7A): Information in this regard is nil as no funds 

were raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement as specified under 

Regulation 32 (7A) during the year under review. 
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 A certificate from a company secretary in practice that none of the directors on the board of the Company 

have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the 

Board/Ministry of Corporate Affairs or any such statutory authority –Certificate Obtained & Attached 

herewith. 

 

 Compliance certificate from either the auditors or practicing company secretaries regarding compliance of 

conditions of corporate governance –Certificate obtained &Attached herewith 
 

(e) Total Fees For All Services Paid By The Listed Entity And Its Subsidiaries, On A Consolidated Basis, To The 

Statutory Auditor And All Entities In The Network Firm/Network Entity Of Which The Statutory Auditor Is A 

Part   -  
The required information for the Financial Year 2024-25 is given as under:- 
 
Fees paid to the Auditors 
 

Name of the Company Fees paid for Audit  (Rs.) Fees paid for other services 

(Rs.) 

M/s NKSC & Co. Chartered 
Accountants 

7,00,000 NA 

 
Fees paid to the all entities in the network firm/network entity of which the statutory auditor is a part  

 

Name of the Company Fees paid for Audit Fees paid for other services 

   

NA NA NA 

 
(f) Disclosures In Relation To The Sexual Harassment Of Women At Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition And 

Redressal) Act, 2013:- 

 

a. Number of complaints filed during the financial year  - NIL 
b. Number of complaints disposed off during the financial year - NIL 
c. Number of complaints pending as on end of the financial year – NIL 

 
●  Non-Compliance of Corporate Governance Requirement-NIL.   
 
DisclosuresWithRespect toDemat Suspense Account/ Unclaimed Suspense Account: 

 
There is no demat suspense account/ unclaimed suspense account of the Company because such a requirement never got 
necessitated in relation to the shares of the Company. As such, the information in this regard is Nil.  
 
Details of material subsidiaries, date and place of their incorporations, name and date of appointment of the statutory auditors 

of such subsidiaries,  NIL 
 
Declaration by Managing Director on Code of Conduct 
 
The Code of Conduct for the Directors and the Senior Managerial Personnel was adopted by the Board of Directors. All 
the Board Members   and   Senior Managerial Personnel have affirmed  that they have complied with the code of conduct 
during the financial year ended on 31

st
 March, 2025.  

                                                MAURIA UDYOG LIMITED  
                                                                         Sd/-                                 Sd/-  

                                N.K. SUREKA           ATUL  KUMAR 

                                 Mg. DIRECTOR          DIRECTOR 

Place: Faridabad                                                                                                   DIN:00054929            DIN: 00060233 

Dated : 03
rd

 September, 2025 
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OS JYOTI ARYA & ASSOCIA'f~S 
(Company Secretaries) 

A Peer RevieweqFirm 
Form No. MR-3 

To 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31" MARCH 2025 

(Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 
No.9 of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) 

Rules, 20 I 4/ 

The .Members 

MIS MAURJA UDYOG LTD 
Anand Jyoti Building, 4 I, Netaji Subhash Road, 

Room No 107, 1st Floor, Kolkata- 700001 

l 1111,c conducted the secretarial audit ol the compliance of applicable statutory 

provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by Mis Mauria Udyog 
. Ltd (CIN:L51909WB1980PLC033010) (hereinafter called the company), Secretarial 

Audit was conducted in a manner that provided me a reasonable basis for evaluating 
the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed 

and other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by 

the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of 
secretarial audit, I hereby repo1i that in my opinion, the company has, during the 

audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2025 complied with the 

statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board­

processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject 
to the reporting made hereinafter: 

J have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other 

records maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31 st March 2025 
according to the provisions of 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA') and the rnles made 
thereunder; 

111iJ The Depositories Act, 1996 and tj1e Regulatiops and l3ye-!ilws fhm1ed 
thereunder; 

_;\ 
' ,, l 

.-im,) i 

1 

A-2/136, GROUND FLOOR, SECTOR-8, ROHINI, DELHI- 110085 
Phone No. +91-9541237622. E-Mail: csjyotiaryaperiwal@gmail.com 
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(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made 
thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct 
Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; 

(v) The following Regulations anc:l Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and 
Exchange Board of!ndia Act, 1992 ('SEBI Act'):-

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares 
and Takeovers) Regulations, 20 I I- to the extent applicable to the company; 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 
Regulations, I 992 and the SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 
2015 as amended; - to the extent applicable to the company; 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations. 2018; - Not applicable to the Company during the 
Audit Period; 

( d) The Securities and Exchange Board ofindia (Employee Stock Option Scheme and 
Employee Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, I 999; - Not applicable to the 

Company during the Audit Period; 
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 

Regulations, 2008-Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period; 
( I) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share 

Transfer Agents) Regulations, I 993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing 
with client- Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period; 

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) 
Regulations, 2009- Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period; 

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board oflndia (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 
I 99R; Not applicable to the Company during the Audit Period; and 

(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of .India (Listing Obligations and Disclosw·e 
Requirements) Regul"ations.2015- lo the extent npplicable to the company. 

Nate: SEBI vide its Interim Order No. WTMI SM/ !VD/ !D9/ 27532/2023-24 Dt-19.06.2023 has issued sholl'­

cause notice tu Mr. Navneet Kumar Sureka, Mrs. Deepa Sureka & Mauria Udyog Ltd. including various other 

entities in-the matter of trading in Five sc:r;ps including Mauria Udyog Ltd. hearings in this matter is going on 

and promoters & the company have submitted their written representation/ submissions bc;/Ore the WTM SJ:,JJJ 
and its response awaited. During the said Financial year, the company is not received any notice/investigation 

hy the SEBJ a11djOr the said matter SEEi order awaited. 

(, ,) (i'vlcmion tlle other laws as may be applicable specifically to the company): 
I. The Factories Act, 1948; 
2. Industrial Disputes Act, I 94 7; 
3. The Payment of Wages Act, 1936; 
4. The Minimum Wages Act,]948; 
5. Employees' State Jnsw4nce Act,] 948; 
6. The Employees' Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act,1952; 
7. Equal Rcrnuncrntion Act, 1976; & , 

t'lll '"'S;,, 

\ ;;;-~'1 
ljlt) ~'ii) . No.•17651 ; 

New Delhi . ,l; / 

~~ 
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8. The Contract Labour (Regulation and Aholition) Act, 1970; 

9. The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961; 
I 0. The Payment of Bonus Act,1965; 

11. The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986; 
12. The Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974; 

13. The Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981; 

14. The Competition Act, 2002; 

15. The Sexual Haras_sment of Women at workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 

Redressal) Act, 2013; 

16. Consumer Protection Act, 2019; 

17. The Indian Contract Act, 1872; 

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India­

generally complied with. 

(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock 

Exchange Limited (BSE) & Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited (CSE). 

During the period under review the Company has complied with the prov1s10ns of 
the Act, Rules, Regulations, Guidelines, Standards etc. as ri1entioned above. 

I farther report that, the Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper 
balance of executive directors, _non-executive directors and independent directors including 
a woman director. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took place 
during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the 
Act.· 

Under the review period, following changes-arc there in the Board of Directors and KMP of 
ti C ·1e omnany: . 

Sr. Nanle of Director Desig1lation Nature of Change Date of Change 
No. /KMP 

l Deepa Smeka Whole Time Cessation 26/04/2024 
Director 

2 Prem Lata Sureka Whole Time Appointment 26/04/2024 
Director 

1 Dccpa Sureka Whole Time Appointment 04/10/2024 -' 
Director 

4 Prem Lata Sureka Whole Time Cessation 04/10/2024 
Director 

5 Davindcr Kun1ar CFO (KMPJ Cessation 28/10/2024 
Grmta 

6 Dccpak Arya CFO (KMP) Appoint men[ 28/10/2024 

\dcquatc notice is given to all directors at !east seven days in aqvance to schedule the 
llo;ird Meetings. Agenda and dctailecf notes on agenda were sent at least sewn days in 
'"h·:11ki.:, ;ind a syste1n exist~ for seL:king and obtaining further infor111arion and 

-~ 
. 'I' o~ <>.; 
o ui:i ,.. 
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clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation 
al Lhi.: llH!i...:ling. 

All decisions at Board Meetings and Committee Meetings are carried out unanimously as 
recorded in the minutes of the meetings of the Board of Directors or Committees of the 
Board as the case may be. 

Under the review period, there is .no change in the Capital of the Company and 
Memorandum of Association (MOA) & Article of Association ( AOA) cifthc Company. 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate 
with the size and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with 
applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as Annexure A and 
forms an integral part of this report. · 

FOR JYOTI ARY A & ASSOCIATES 
(Company sec 

Membership No. 48050 

C.P. No.: 17651 

UIHN:.- A048050G001030163 

PR No.: 2299/2022 

Date: 19/08/2025 

Place: Delhi 
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JYOTI ARYA & ASSOCIA1:~S 
(Company Secretaries) 

A P.RftlRRt'tviewedFirm 
To 

The Members 

MIS MAURIA UDYOG LTD 
Anand Jyoti Building, 41, Netaji Subhash Road, 

Room No 107, 1st Floor, Kolkata- 700001 

My Secretarial Audit Report for Financial Year ended on 31 '' March 2025 of even date is to 
be read along with this letter. 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the 
company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records 
based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain 
reasonable assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. 
The verification was done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in 
secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we followed provide 
a reasonable basis for 9ur opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and 
Books of Accounts of the company. 

4. Where-ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the 
compliance oflaws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, 
regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was 
limited to the verification of procedures on test hasis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has 
conducted the affairs of the company. 

FOR JYOTI ARYA & ASSOCIATES 

C ~ 
.,0 

Mem J , ,im•~-- ' 
CP. No.: 17651 
liDIN: - A048050G00l030l63 
l'H No.: 2299/2022 
DMe: 19/08/2025 
Ph,·,-: !\/('w Delhi 

A-2/136, GROUND FLOOR, SECTOR-8, ROHINI, DELHI- 110085 
Phone No. +91-9541237622 E-Mail: csjyotiaryaperiwal@gmail.com 
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OS JYOTI ARYA & ASSOCIATES 
(Company Secretaries) 

CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE A Peer Reviewed Firm 

To 
The Members 

M/S MAURIA UDYOG LTD 

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance by M/S Mauria Udyog 
Limited ("the Company"), for the year ended on March 31, 2025, as per the relevant provisions 
of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
Regulations, 2015 for the period from April 01, 2024 to March 31, 2025. 

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. 
Our examination was limited to a review of the procedures and implementation thereof, 
adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of Corporate 
Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the 
Company. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to our examination of the 
relevant records and the explanations given to us and the representations made by the Directors 
and the Management, we certify that the Company has complied with the conditions of 
Corporate Governance as mentioned in the above mentioned Securities and Exchange Board of 
India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, as applicable. 
F:rcept: Sf:/3! vidf' ;rs Interim Order No. WTM/ SA1/ !VD/ !D9/ 27532/2023-24 Dt-19.06.2023 has issued show­
cause notice to Mr. Navneet Kumar Sureka, Mrs. Deepa Sureka & Mauria Udyog ltd. including various other 
entities in the mailer of trading in Five scrips including Mauria Udyog Ltd. hearings in this matter is going on 
and promozers & the company have submitted their written representation/ submissions b(f/Ore the WTM SEBJ 
and its response awaited. During the said Financial year, the company is not received any notice/investigation 
by the SEBI andj0r the said matter SEBI order awaited. 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor of the efficiency oi' effectiveness with which the management has conducted the 
affairs of the Company. 

FOR JYOTI ARYA & ASSOCIATES 
(Company seer . ~ 

• "1-

Me 
C.P. No.: 17651 
i IDIN: -A048050G001030757 
i'R No.: 2299/2022 
Date: 19/08/2025 
Place: Delhi 

A-2/136, GROUND FLOOR, SECTOR-8, ROHINI, DELHI- 110085 
Phone No. +91-9541237622 E-Mail: csjyotiaryaperiwal@gmail.com 
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us JYOTI ARYA & ASSOCIATES 
(Company Secretaries) 

A Peer Reviewed Firm 
CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

To 
The Members 
M/S MAURIA UDYOG LTD 

We have examined the books, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
mc1intc1ined by the Compcrny Jnd dccl;ir;Hions 111tH!c lly the· dirc·dor.'-i dlld e:,qJ!.111<1lio11s givt·n liy 
the Company, M/s Mauria Udyog Ltd having CIN L51909WB1980PLC033010 and having 
Registered Office at Anand Jyoti Building, 41 Netaji Subhas Rd., Room No.107, 1st Floor, Kolkata 
WB 700001 (hereinafter referred to as 'the Company'), produced before us by the Company for 
the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule 
V Para-C Sub clause lO(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including 
Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in as considered 
necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company & its officers, we hereby certify that 
none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending 
on 31st March, 2025 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as 
Directors of companies by the Securities and Exch.ange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate 
Affairs ' .. 

Sr. No. Name of Directors DIN Date of Annointment 
1 Navneet Kumar Sureka 00054929 29/07/1997 
2 Veena A"ecarwal 00060415 10/10/2020 
3 Deepa Sureka 00060284 04/10/2024 
4 Birendra Kumar 08666368 28/03/2022 
5 Manohar Puniabi Menghraj 10213816 26/06/2023 
6 Atul Kumar 00060233 26/02/2024 

Note: Dunng the year:- Mrs. Deepa Sureka, Whole Time Director, was resigned from the Board w.e.f 
26/04/2024 and Mrs. Prem Lata Sureka, as a Whole Time Director joined the Board w.e.f 26/04/2024 . 
Further Mrs. Deepa Sureka, as a Whole Time Director, joined the Board w.e.f 04/10/2024 and Mrs. Prem 
Lota Sureka, Whole Time Director was resigned from the Board w.e.f 04/10/2024. 

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment/ continuity of every Director on the Board is the 
responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future 
viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has 
conducted the affairs of Lhe Company. 

( 

~ -~ ------,,,,1: 
Mem 1 

C.P. No.: 17651 
IJDIN:-A048050G001030713 
PH ~In : 2299 /2022 
Dare: 19/08/2025 

A-2/136, GROUND FLOOR, SECTOR-8, ROHINI, DELHI- 110085 
Phone No. +91-954123·7622 E-Mail: csjyotiaryaperiwal@gmail.com 
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ANNEXURE III 

 

ANNUAL REPORT-2024-25 ON CSR ACTIVITIES TO BE INCLUDED IN THE BOARD'S 

REPORT-2024-25 

 

1. A brief outline of the company's CSR policy, 
including overview of projects or programs 
proposed to be undertaken and a reference to the 
web-link to the CSR policy and projects or 
programs. 

 Promoting preventive health care. 

 Promoting Education through schools to the Under 
Privileged Section of the Society. 

2. The Composition of the CSR Committee Chairman- Sh. Navneet Kumar Sureka 
Member -  Smt. Veena Aggarwal  
Member – Sh. Atul Kumar 

3. Average net profit of the company for last three 
financial years 

  Rs. 78.05 Lakhs 

4. Prescribed CSR Expenditure (2% of the amount 
as in item 3above) 

 Rs. 1.56 Lakhs 

5. Details of CSR spent during the financial year: 

 a) Total amount to be spent for the financial 
year 

Rs. 3.50 Lakhs 

 b) Amount unspent , if any NIL 

 c) Manner in which the amount spent during the 
financial year is detailed below: 

Through Trust, details given below: 

 CSR AMOUNT SPENT IN 2024-25 

S. 
No. 

CSR 
Project and 
activities 
identified 

Sector in 
which the 
Project is 
covered 

Project or 
pro-
grams 
Area 

Amount 
Outlay 
(Budget) 
project or 
programs 

wise (Rs. 

Lakhs) 

Amount spends on 
projects 

Cumulative 
Expenditure 
into the 
reporting 

period (Rs. 

Lakhs) 

Amount Spent 
direct or 
through 
implement-ing 

agencies (Rs. 

Lakhs) 

Direct 
Expend-
iture       

(Rs. 

Lakhs) 

Over-head 
Expend-

iture (Rs. 

Lakhs) 

1. Providing 
Subsidized 
Medicines, 
education 
through 
schools to 
under -
privileged 
sections of 
the society. 

Schedule 
VII- Sec-
(i)/(ii)/Erad
icating 
extreme 
hunger & 
poverty, 
Promoting 
education 
& 
Preventive 
Healthcare 

 
Haryana, 
Delhi 

 
3.50 Lakhs 

 
3.50 
Lakhs- 

 

- 

 
3.50Lakhs 

 
3.50 Lakhs  

mailto:mauria@mauria.com
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6. In case the company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last three financial 
years or any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board 
report.-NA 
 

7. Responsibility Statement:-  
The MUL CSR committee takes responsibility of the implementation & monitoring of CSR policy and also 
adherence to the CSR objective & policy of the company.MUL CSR committee is committed to the CSR 
objectives of the company & will ensure that all proposal & projects under the CSR policy will be monitored & 
implemented from time to time. 
 

 

 

Sd/- 

 

 

 

 

Sd/- 

 

Navneet Kumar Sureka  Atul Kumar   

Chairman- CSR Committee Member- CSR Committee  

Date: 03/09/2025 

Place: Faridabad 

 

Date: 03/09/2025 

Place: Faridabad 
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Projects Approved by the Board for CSR Expenditure  

 

 

 

(A)-Providing Subsidized Medicines, education through schools to under -privileged sections of the 
society 
 
 

For MAURIA DYOG LTD 

 

Sd/- 

COMPANY SECRETARY 
ACS-21071 

Date: 03/09/2025 

Place: Faridabad 

mailto:mauria@mauria.com
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MAURIA UDYOG LIMITED 

Annexure - II 

 

FORM NO. AOC -2 

 

(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

 
Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with 
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including 
certain arms length transaction under third proviso thereto. 
 
1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions during the financial year 2024-25 

not at Arm’s length basis. 

SL. No. Particulars Details 

a)  Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship Nil 

b)  Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction Nil 

c)  Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction Nil 

d)  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the 
value, if any 

Nil 

e)  Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions’ Nil 

f)  Date of approval by the Board Nil 

g)  Amount paid as advances, if any Nil 

h)  Date on which the special resolution was passed in General meeting as required 
under first proviso to section 188 

Nil 

 
2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions during the financial year 

at Arm’s length basis.-As per Annexure 

SL. No. Particulars Details 

a)  Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship As per 
Annexure 

b)  Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction -Do- 

c)  Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction -Do- 
d)  Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transaction including the 

value, if any 
-Do- 

e)  Date of approval by the Board -Do- 
f)  Amount paid as advances, if any -Do- 

 

Sd/-                                                                                                                             

 

Sd/- 

Navneet Kumar Sureka Atul Kumar 

Mg. Director Director 
DIN-00054929 DIN- 00060233 
 
Date: 03/09/2025 
Place: Faridabad 

 

 



 

MAURIA UDYOG LIMITED AOC-2 Annexure - II-2024-25 

 

 

Sl 

No. 

Name of related party and 

nature of relationship 

Nature of contracts/ 

arrangements/ transactions 

Duration of the 

contracts/ 

arrangements/ 

transactions 

Salient terms of the 

contracts or 

arrangements or 

transactions 

Value 

1 BIHARIJI ISPAT Udyog Limited  

 

 

Purchase of goods and services As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 1.99.85,109 

 

2 Quality Synthetic industries 

Limited  

 

Interest As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 2,46,16,082 

3 BIHARIJI ISPAT UDYOG LIMITED 

 

Interest 

 

As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 10,75,897 

4 Be Indi Fashion Indi Private  

Limited  

 

Lease 

 

As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 120000.00 

5 Quality Synthetic Industries 

Limited  

Leases As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 2,40,000 

6 Vehnoudevi Properties Rent Paid As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 1,80,000 

7 BIHARIJI ISPAT Udyog Limited  Lease As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 8400 

8 SMT VEENA AGGARWAL Director Meeting Fees As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 9500 

9 SMT. SUJATA KUMAR 

 

Director Meeting Fees As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 0 

10 SH. BIRENDRA KUMAR 

 

Director Meeting Fees As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 8000 



 

 

 

 

 

 

11 Manohar Punjabi Director Meeting Fees As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 500.00 

12 SH. ATUL KUMAR 

 

Director Meeting Fees As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 12500 

13 BE INDI FASHIONS RETAIL 

PRIVATE LIMITED 

Sale of  goods and services 

 

As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 1,05,24,000 

14 Navneet Kumar Sureka  

 

Remuneration Including Perks As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 41,90,910 

15 Deepa Sureka Remuneration Including Perks As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 2142712 

16 Prem Lata Sureka Remuneration Including Perks As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 12,11,800 

17 Davinder Gupta Remuneration Including Perks As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 87157 

18 Divya Aggarwal Remuneration Including Perks As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 180000.00 

19 Deepanshu Sureka Remuneration Including Perks As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 12,46,800.00 

20 Vishnu Kumar Sureka Sale of Investment As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 2621265 

21 Bihariji ISpat Udyog Limited Purchase of Goods & Services  As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 9270231 

22 Quality Synthetic Industries 

Limited  

 

Purchase of Goods & Services As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 44,62,17,252.24 

 

23 Deepak Arya Remuneration Including Perks As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 1278549.00 

24 Vehnoudevi Properties Purchase of Investment As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 171985.00 

25 Eurospa Towels Private Limited Rent As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 1500000.00 

26. Eurospa Towels Private Limited Sale As Mutually Agreed As Mutually Agreed 91520 



Annexure __ 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

            

Pursuant to provisions of section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 5(2) &5(3) of Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the details of remuneration of the employees are given below: 
 

(a) Top 10 Employee in terms of remuneration who were Employed throughout the financial year: 2024-2025 

S 

No 
Name 

Designatio

n 
Annual 

Gross 

Nature 

Of 

Employ

ment 

(Whethe

r 

Contract

ual or 

Otherwis

e  

Qualification 

and experience 

of the 

employee 

Date of 

Commence

ment of 

Employme

nt 

Age 

If employee is 

relative of any 

Director or 

Manager, 

provide the 

name of such 

Director of 

Manager 

% of 

Equity 

Capital 

held 

1 
Navneet 
Kumar 
Sureka 

Managing 
Director 

3780000 
Company 
Roll 

Graduate 01.04.1995 51 Yrs N.A 2.84 

2 
Deepa 
Sureka 

Officer-on 
Special 
Duty 

1800000 
Company 
Roll 

Graduate 01.04.2007 51 Yrs 
Navneet Kumar 

Sureka 
1.35 

3 
Mohit 
Batra 

Manager 
Marketing 

1866000 
Company 
Roll 

Post Graduate 01.04.2023 40 Yrs N.A 1.40 

4 
Deepak 
Kumar 

Jain 

Manager 
Marketing 

1866000 
 

Company 
Roll 

Post Graduate 01.07.2023 54 Yrs N.A 1.40 

5 
Manoj 
kumar 

Finance 
Manager 

1376856 
Company 
Roll 

Post Graduate 01.08.2023 38 Yrs N.A 1.03 

6 
Deepak 

Arya 
C.F.O        

 
2599956 

Company 
Roll 

Post Graduate 13.09.2024 52 Yrs N.A 1.95 

7 
Deepansh
u Sureka 

V.P. - 
Operations 

1200000 
Company 
Roll 

Post Graduate 19.07.2021 28 Yrs 
Navneet Kumar 

Sureka 

 
 

0.92. 

8 
Davinder 
Kumar 

Q.C 
Manager 

 1356000 
Company 
Roll 

Graduate 05.04.2023 46 Yrs N.A 1.01 

9 
Ishwar 
Chand 
Garg 

HR/IR 
Head 

1302000 
Company 
Roll 

B.COM/LLB 02.05.2022 59 Yrs N.A 0.98 

10 Anil Saini 
PPC 

Manager  
1415856 

Company 
Roll 

Graduate 24.07.2024 41Yrs N.A 1.06 

  

            

(b) Employees who were in the receipt of remuneration aggregating Rs. 1,02,00,000 or more per annum :  N.A 

(c) Employed for part of the financial year and was in receipt of remuneration not less than Rs. 8,50,000 per month : N.A. 

(d) Employee who was in receipt of remuneration in excess of that drawn by the Managing Director or whole time director or manager 
and holds by himself or along with his spouse and dependent children, not less than 2% of the equity shares of the Company : NA 

Note:           

1. There were no employee in the Company, throughout the financial year or part of the year, who were in receipt of remuneration 
aggregating Rs. 1,02,00,000 or more per annum or Rs. 8,50,000 per month. 

By order of the Board of Directors 

For Mauria Udyog Limited 

 

Sd/- 

(N.K. Sureka) 

Managing Director 

Date: 03-09-2025          DIN:00054929 

Place: Faridabad. 

MAURIA UDYOG LIMITED 46th  ANNUAL REPORT 
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Chartered Accountants 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of Mauria Udyog Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements 

Qualified Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying Standalone lind AS financial statements of Mauria Udyog Limited 

(the Company"), which comprise the Standalone dalance Sheet as at March 31, 2025, the Standalone 

Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in 

Equity and the Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended and notes to the Standalone 

Ind AS financial statements including a summary of significant accounting poticies and other 

explanatory information (hereinafter referred to a3 “Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements’). 

in our opinion and te the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, accept 

for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualified Qpinton sechon of our report, 

the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companies 

Act, 2013 ("the Act") in the manner so required and gre a true and fair view in conformity with the 

accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (*Ind AS“), of 

the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2025, its profit inckuding other comprehensive 

income, changes in equity and its cash flaws for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

| The Company has classified its investments in unqueted equity shares of other entities to 

be Fair Valued through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI). However, it has net 

obtained/ carried out fair valuation of such unquoted equity shares. The impact of fair 

valuation cannot be ascertained, 

i. The Company has not used expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or 

gain on trade receivables as required by Ind AS 104 “Financial Instruments”, The impact of 

guch non-compliance cannot be ascertained. Hewewer, the Company has made a provision 

of Rs, 3,278.17 Lacs against doubtful trade receivables. 

ill, The Company had entered inte certain transactions with Amrapali Group of Companies in 

past years. In consequent to which forensic audit was conducted as per the Directions of 

Hon'ble Supreme Court of India to look inte transactions between Amrapali Group of 

Companies and Sureka Group ef Companies. After which the Hon'ble Supreme Court vide 

its order No. Writ Petition{s)(Civil) No. 940/2017 dated 2 December 2019 had directed M/s 

Jotindra Steel & Tubes Limited and Mauria Udyog Limited including associated companies 

and Directors viz Mr. Navneet Kumar Sureka and Mr, Akhil Kumar Sureka to deposit Rs. 
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16,700 lacs. In response to the order of the Hon’ble Supreme Court, it had filed an 
application on December 9, 2019 before the Hon'ble Supreme Court te aceept the title 
deeds of immoveable properties belonging to Sureka family members and associate 
companies (based on latest valuation report) worth amounting Rs. 16,897.00 lacs net off 
incumbency amount of Rs. 3,934.00 lacs including Properties amounting Rs. 10,182.00 lacs 
belonging to Mauria Udyog Limited, 

In the financial year 2019-20, the Company had charged % 1,500.00 Lacs in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss against the abowe matter on an estimated basis and reduced the value of 
properties (property which is deposited to Hon'ble Supreme Court): 

The Company has neither provided for liability against this matter, mor any amount has been 
shown as contingent liability as required by Ind AS 37 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities amd 
Contingent Assets”. 

We conducted our audit in. accordance with Standards on Auditing (SAs} specihed under section 143110) 

of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor's 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements section of our report. We 

are independent of the Company in accordance with the Cade of Ethics issued by the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India [ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant te aur 

audit ef the Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder and we 

have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code af 

Ethics. We bolove that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 

basis for our qualified opinion. 

Key Sudit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our 
audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed 
in the context of our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 
opinion thercen, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the 
matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communnicated in our repeat. 

Key Audit Matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Loss allowance for Trade receivables (refer | Gur audit procedures included the following: 
Note @ and point ii of Basis for Qualified 

The Company has trade receivables of € 7042.02 

lacs a3. at 31 March 2025 (net of impairment less 
of @ 3,278.17 lacs), During financial year 2021-22, 

‘a. 
ons y 
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the Company had recorded a charge of 2) , Understanding the trade receivables process 

7300.38 lacs towards provision for doubtful with regards to valuation and testing of 
debts for ouch trade recenables. contrel: designed and implemented by the 

Cwing to the nature of operations of the Pariag eres 
Company and related customer profiles, the | * Testing the accuracy of ageing of trade 

Company has significant long standing trade recewables at year ond on sample basis. 

receivable balances, for which appropriate loss | * Obtained a list of outstanding receivables, 

allowance is required to be created for expected with the identified significant lang 

credit losses using simplified approach im outstanding receivables, and discussed plan 

accordance with the requirements of ind AS 109, of recovery lifetime with management. 

Financial Instruments, measuring the loss | * Circularized balance confirmations to a 

allowance equal te lifetime expected credit sample of trade recewables and reviewed 
losses. the reconciling items, if any. 

; * Verified the appropriateness of judgments 

hel 2 scr expeced oun loss regarding prowsians for trade receivables 
assessment of trade receivables, significant sal shaaieine 43 irens. provisions 

| edgment i required by the management to 

estimate the timang and amount of realization of 

these receivables basis the past history, customer 

profiles, and consideration of other internal and 

external sources of information, including the 

impact of COVID 19 pandemic in aforesaid 

estimates. 

were calculated in accordance with the 

Company's provisioning policies. 

* Tested subsequent settlement of trade 
receivables after the balance sheet date ana 

sample basis, as apphecable 

* Verified the related discloauwes made in 

notes fo the financial statements in 

Considering the significant pudgerment involved, accordance with Ind AS 115 and Ind AS 109. 

increased complexities due to the pandemic, 

high estimation uncertainty and materiality ofthe | * The Company has not used expected credit 

amount: involved, we have identified floss loss model to assess the impairment loss or 

| allowance on trade receivables as a key audit gainon trade recewables as required by Ind 

| matter for current year audit. AS 109 “Financial Instruments”. 

Litigation, Claima and Contingent Liabilities | Principal audit procedures performed: 

(Refer Note 70, read along with point iii of 
Basis for Qualified Opinion paragraph) 

« We understood the processes, evaluated the 

The Company is exposed to a varsity of different | gocion and implementation of controls and 
laws, regulations and interpretations thereof tested the operating effect i ae th 

which encompasses indirect taxation and legal | Company's controls over the recording and re- 
matiers. In the normal couse of business, eee a irs begual tions: cial 

provisions and contingent liabslities may arise and contingent liabilities. 

from legal proceedings, incheding regulatory and 
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other Governmental proceedings, constructive | = We held discussions with senior management 

obligations as well as investigations by inchuding the person responsible for lagal and 

authorities and commercial claims. compliance to obtain an understanding of the 

Based on the nature of regulatory and legal cases factors pein by management in 
management applies significant judgement aaonon of the matter as ‘probable’, 

when considering whether, and how much, to a ae ae 
provide for the potential otal kek Examined the Company's legal expenses om 

matter. These estimates could change sample basis and read the minutes of the 

substantially over tine as new facts emerge as board meetings and the legal compliance 
committed in order to ensure completeness. 

We read the correspondence from Court 

Given the different views, possible basis the | authorities and considered legal opinion 
interpretations, complexity and the magnitude of obtained by the Management from external 

the potential exposures, and the judgement law firms to evaluate the basis used for 

eigen de determine required disclosures, this | prewisions recognised or the disclosures made 

is a key audit matter. in the Standalone Ind AS financial statements. 
We also obtained direct legal confirmations for 

segnificant matters from the law firms handling 

such matters to coroborate management's 

conchissans, 

*For those matters where Management 

concluded that na provision should be 

recorded, we also considered the adequacy 

and completeness of the Company's 

disclosures made in relation ta contingent 
liabilities, 

* 

each legal case of matters progresses, 

Emphasis of Matter 

1 We draw attention to mote & ta the standalone Ind 45 financial statement, which describes the 
classification of disputed and long outstanding trade receivables as non-current aggregating 
Rs. 7,092.02 Lacs (net of provision of Rs. 3,278.17 Lacs] wherein the management has explained 
the reasons for not writing off provided for such receivables. 

IL Weealso draw attention to note 71 to the standalone Ind AS financial statement, which describes 

that the Company has received an interim order cum show cause notice from Security & 
Exchange Board of india (SEBI) and issued interim directions restraining the Company from 

accessing the securities market till further orders and also directed the Company to deposit 
jointly and severally with other notices an amount of Rs. 2,619.69 Lacs. The management has 

explained the reasons for not recarding liability for the amount so sought in the order. 
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IL We also draw attention te note 23 to the standalone Ind AS financial statement, which describes 

the reason for non-allotment equity shares against the share applecation money within 6 
months of receipt. 

VW. We also draw attention to nete 11 to the standalone Ind AS financial staternent wherein the 
management has described the reasons for justification of amount recewed against the 

disparted land. 

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. 

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditer's Report thereon 

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information 

comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not include the standalone financial 

statements and our auditor's report thereon, The Annual Report is expected to be made available to us 

after the date of this auditor's report. 

Our opineon on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do 
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon, 

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the 

other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 

with the standalone financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears 
ta be materially misstated. 

When we read the Annual Report, if we conclude that there ts a material misstatement therein, we are 

required te communicate the matter to those charged with governance. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Standalone Ind AS 

Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors ts responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with 

respect to the preparation of these Standalone Ind A5 financial statements that give a true and fair view 

of the financial position, financial performance incheding other comprehensive inconve, changes in 

equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted 

in India, including Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act, read with relevant rules issued 

thereunder. This responsibility also includes manntenance of adequate accounting records in accordance 

with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and 

detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; 

making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for enuering the 

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of 

the Standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material 

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
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In prepanng the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 

Company's ability to continue as a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 

concem and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 

the Company or to c#ase operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Ind AS Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Ind AS financial 

statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraed or error, and to issue 

an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is 

hot 2 Guarantee that am audit comducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, 

individually or in the aggregate, they could reatonably be expected to influence the econamic decisions 
of users taken on the basis of this Standalone Ind AS financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accondance with Ss, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticiom throughout the audit. We alsoc 

» — identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, 

whether due te fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and 

obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk 

of net detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from 

error, a5 fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, mistepresentations, ar the 

override of internal control. 

+ (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order te design audit 

procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)() of the Act, we are 
ala responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the company has adequate internal 

financial contrals with reference to Standalone Ind AS financial statements in place and the 

operating effectiveness of such controls. 

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management. 

Conchede on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting 

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 

of conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as a going 

concern. Hf we conchide that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 

auditor's report to the related disclosures in the Standalone Ind AS financial statements or, if such 

dischasures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Cker conclusions are based an the audit evidence 

obtained wp to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause 

the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

‘i
gi

ne
s 

= 



init mo. Thied Floor, Pearls Ormase Tower, Nata 

NKSC & Co. Subhash Palace, Prrampura, Deh 1o0s 

 wunankecin 

© infogpnkscin 

it ~. £566 0654 
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+ (Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Ind AS financial 

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Ind AS financial statements 

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with thase changed with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned 
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficrencies in 

intemal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have compleed with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 

related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 

were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial staternents of the current 

period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's raport unkess 

law er reguiatien prechedes public dischosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare cercumstances, 

we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse 
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of 

Such communication. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

(1) As required by Section 197(16) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that the Company has paid 

remuneration to its directors during the year in accordance with the provistons of and limits laid 

down under section 197 read with Schedule Vo of the Act. 

(2) As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (the Order") issued by the Central 

Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we gre in “Annexure 1°, a stabement on 

the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 

(3) As required by section 14/3) of the Act, we report that 

a} We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belie! were necessary for the purposes of our audit; 

b) In our opinion, proper books of account at required by law have been kept by the Company so 

far as it appears from our examination of these books, 

e) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with 

by this report are in agreement with the books of account: 
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In our opinion, except for the matters described in Basis for Qualified Opsnion paragraph, the 

aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the ind AS specified under section 

133 of the Act read with relevant rules issued thereunder, 

The matters deseribed in Basis for Qualrhed Opinion & Emphasis of Matter paragraphs, in our 

Opinion, may have an adverse effect on the functioning of the Company; 

‘On the basis of the written representations recened from the directors as on March 31, 2025, 

and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 
31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act 

With respect te the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to Standalone Ind 

AS financial statements of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, we 

give our separate report bn “funnecune 2". 

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of 

our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

ii, The Company, at detailed in note 70 te the Standalone ind AS financial statements, has 

dischosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position as at March 31, 2025; 

i = The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts. 

Henoe, the question of any material foreseeable losses does not arise: 

ii, = There were no armounts which were required to be transferred to the bnvestor Education 

and Protection Fund by the Company. 

iv. fa) The Management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as 

disclosed in netes te the accounts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested 

(either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) 

by the Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities 

Vintermecianes”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 

that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend to or inwest in other 
Persons of entities identrfied in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company 

(Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any quarantes, security or the like on behalf of the 

Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

ib) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no 

funds have been recemed by the Company from any person(s) or entitylies}, including 

foreign entities (“Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing 

7 
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or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend to or invest in 

other parsons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the 

Funding Party [Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any quarantee. security or the like 

on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

fc) Based on the audit procedures that are considered masonable and appropriate in 

the circumstances, nothing has come to our notee that has caused us ta believe that 

the representations weder (a) and (b) above contain any material mistatenent 

v. The Company has not declared nor paid any dividend during the year. Hence, reporting the 

compliance wath section 122 of the Act is not applicable, 

wi Based on our exanmunation, which inchuded test checks, the Company has used accounting 

softwares for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 

which has a feature of recording audit trail [edit log) facility and the same has operated 

throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the softwares. Further, during the 

course of cur audit we did not come across any instance of the audit trail feature being 

tampered with and the audit trad has been preserved by the company as per the statutory 

requirements for record retention. 

For NKSC & Co, 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration Mo.020076N 

UDIN: 2552 19868MNYTB1 724 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: May 2B, 2025 
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Annexure 1 te the independent Auditer's Report 

[Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Requlatery Requirements’ in the Independent 

Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Mauria Udyog Limited on the Standalone Ind AS financial 

statements for the year ended March 31, 2025] 

Based on the audit procedures performed fer the purpose of reporting a true and faor view on the Standalone 

Ind AS financial statements of the Company and taking inte consideration the information, explanations and 

written representation given bo us by the management and the books of account and other records examined 

by us in the normal course of audit, we report that: 

ti 

a 

fa} (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative 

(b) 

td} 

details and situation of property, plant & equipment. 

(B) The Company has maintasned proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets. 

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of the property, plant & equipment 

which, in cur opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its 

assets. Mo maternal discrepancies were noted on physical verification carried out during the year. 

The ttle deeds of immovable properties (other than properties where the Company 16 the hessee 

and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of lessee) disclosed in the Standalone Ind AS 

financial statements of the Company are held in the name of the Company except for the details 

given belevar 

Land f Total | Leasehold | Gross Block as at | Net Block as at Remarks 

Building | number | Freehold § March 31,2025 | March 31,2025 

of cases 
(? in Lacs) (¥ in Lacs) 

1 

Building 1 Leasehold 336.40 272.09 | Refer Note 3 of 

accompanying 
Standalone ind 

AS Financial 

Statements 

The Company has not revaled its property, plant and equipment and/or intangible assets during 
the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause (i(d) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable. 

No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company as at March 31, 2025 for 
holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transacthons Act, 1988. and 

rules made thereunder. 

The inventory has. been physically verified by the management during the year except for goods- 
in-transit and stocks lying with third parties. For stocks lying with third parties at the year end, these 
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have not been confinmed by them. in our opinion, the frequency of verification is reasonable, As 

informed, no material discrepancies were noticed on physical verification carried out during the 

year. 

The Company has been sanctioned working capital limits in excess af five crore rupees during the 

‘year, in aggregate from banks and/or financial institutions, on the basis of security of fixed deposits 

and there is no requirement to file quarterly returns/statements with such banks and/or financial 

institutions. Therefore, reporting under clause (ii)(b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable. 

During the year, the Company has provided loans of provided acwances in the nature of loans, of 

stood quarantes, or provided security to the following entitins: 

Sr | Particulars Guarantees | Security Loans Advances in the 

No 
nature of loans 

1 Aggregate amount 

granted / prowided 

during the year 

- Subsidiaries Nal Mil # 2.202.00 Lacs Nil 

= Joint Verbures ail Wil Mal Mel 

= Associates Nil Nil mil hail 

» Others Nil Nil @ 78,93 Lacs Nil 

2 Balance outstanding 

cased 

- Subsidiaries Nil Ril @ 3,703.50 Lacs Nil 

= Joint Ventures Nil il Mil Mil 

= Associates Nil Nal Nil Nil 

- Others. hill Nal 2 76.93 Lacs Nil 

tb) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the audit procedures 

conducted by us, we are of the opinion that, the investments made, quarantees provided, security 

given and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and advances in the nature of loans 

and guarantees provided by the Company during the year are not prejudicial te the interest of the 

Company except given below - 

Name of Party Relation Loan given during | Outstanding at the 

the year ond of the yoar 

Bihariji Preperties | Subsidiary - 1,501.50 Lacs 

Private limited 

Bihargi Highrise | Subsiciary 2,202.00 Lacs 2,202.00 Lacs 

|_ Private Lite 
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The schedule of nepaynent of principal and payment of interest in respect of the loans and advances 

in the nature of loans have not been stipulated as these loans are repayable on demand. Thus, we 

are unable ta comment whether the repayments or receipts chaning the year are regular and report 
amounts overdue for more than ninety days, if any, as required under clause (ii) (d) of paragraph 3 

of the Order, 

In respect of the aforesaid loans and advances in the nature of loans, there is no overdue amount 
remaining outstanding as at the balance sheet date. 

There were no loans of advances in the nature of loan granted which has/shave fallen due during 
the year, have been renewed of extended. Further, there were no instances of fresh loans being 
granted to settle the averdues of existing loans given to the same parties. 

The Company has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans esther repayable on demand or 

without specifying any terms or period of repayment. Details of the sare are as below, 

Particulars All parties Promoters | Related Parties 

Aggregate amount of loans, advances in 

Nature of loan 

= Repayable on demand (A) Nel Nil Nal 

-Agneement dae not specify any terms or | 2 3782.43 Lacs nil ¥ 3,782.43 Lacs 

period of repayment (B) 
® 3,782.43 Lacs il P3,782.43 Lacs 

Total (A+B) 

Percentage of loans/advances in nature of TOT, 100% 100% 

loan te the total loans 

Based on information and explanation given to us in respect of loans, investments, quarantees and 

securities, the Company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act 

In our opinion and according te the information and explanations given to us, the Company has 
net accepted any deposits from the public within the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 of the Act and 

the rules framed there under, Accordingly, reporting under clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Order 
is rot applicable. 

We have broadly reviewed the books of accounts maintained by the Company in respect of products 
where the maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government under sub- 
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act and the rules framed there under and we are of the opinian 
that prma facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. We have, 
however, not made a detailed examination of the records with a view to determine whether they 

are accurate or complete. 
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The Company is regular in depositing with appropriate authorities, undsputed statutory dues. 
including provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tar, sales tax, senece tax, value added 

tax, customs duty, excise duty, cess and any other maternal statutory dues applicable to it, though 
the delays in deposit have not been serious. 

No unditouted amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employees state insurance, income 

tax, GST, customs duty, cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it, were 

outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six months fram the date they became 
payable, 

According to the information and explanations given to us, disputed dues in respect of provident 
fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, value added tax, customs duty, 
excise duty, cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it, whech were outstanding, at 
the year-end for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable are as 
follevars: 

Name | Nature Amount Amount | Periodto | Forum where dispute 

ofthe | of the (f In Lacs including paid which the is pending 

statute | dues interest } under amount 

protest relates 

income | Income 17.46 Nil Assessment Central Processing 

Tax Act, | tax year 2008- Centre, Bengaluru 

1961 oh] 

Income | Income 7.13 Nl Assessment | Assessment Information 

Tax fet, | tae year 2009- System 

1961 10 

Incame | Income 346 Nil Assessment | Assessment Information 

Tax Abe, | tao year 2010~ System 

1961 11 

Income | income 134.84 Nil Assessment | Assessment Information 

Tax Act, | tan year 2015- System 

1961 16 

Income | Income 139 Mal Assesament Central Processing 

Tax tax year 2018- Centre, Bengaluru 

Act 19 

1961 

Income | Income 746.97 hal Agssesoment Central Processing 

Tax tax year 2019- Centre, Bengaluru 

Act, 20 

1961 
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Income | Income 4,750.85 Nil Assessment Central Processing 

Tax Act, | tax year 2020- Centre, Bengaluru 

1961 21 

Income | Income o040 Nil Assessment Central Processing 

Tax Act, | tax year 2022- Centre, Bengaluru 

1967 2d 

Income | hreome 121.41 Nil Assessment Central Processing 

Tax At, | tan year 2023- Centre, Bongaluru 

1961 24 

cGsT Geods 24,56 Nal Period fuly | Cornmiasioner appeal 

Act and 2017 to Gurugram 

2017 sonice March 2022 

tax 

(vita) 

te) tal 

ib} 

te) 

id) 

(a) 

(fh 

tx} {ah 

(bi 

We have not come across any transaction(s) which were previously not recorded in the books of 
account of the Company that have been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the 

tax atsessments under the lnoome Tax Act, 1961. 

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has net defaulted in 

repayment of loans to banks and financial institutions during the year. 

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by amy bank of financial institution oF 

government or any government authorety. 

The Company did not obtain any money by way of tenm loans during the year. Accordingly, 

reporting under clause (ix}(c) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable. 

On an overall examination of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company, no funds 
raised on short-term basis have, been used for long-term purposes by the Company. 

On an overall examination of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company, the 
Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the 
obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures as defined under the Companies Act. 

The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, 
joint ventures or associate companies, as defined under the Companies Act. 

Based wpon the audit procedure perforned and the information and explanations given by the 
management, the Company has not raised money by way of initial public offer or further public 

offer including debt instruments and term loans. Therefore, reporting under clause (x)a) of 

paragraph 3 of the Order ia not applicable. 

Based upon the audit procedure performed and the information and explanations given by the 
management, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares 
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or convertible debentures (fully, partially or optionally convertible) during the year. Therefore, 

reporting wider dause [xiib) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable, 

During the couse of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in 

accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in india, and according to tive information 

and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of fraud by the Company 

or any fraud on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during the year, nor 
have we been informed of any such instance by the management. 

No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed with the Central Government by the 

auditers of the Company in Form ADT=4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, during the year or upto the date of this report. 

There are no whistle blower complaints receed by the Company during the year and upto the date 

of this report 

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations gwen to us, the Company is not 
a Midhi Company. Accordingly, reporting under clause (xi) of paragraph 3 of the Order is net 

applicable. 

According to the information and explanation given to ws, all transactions entered into by the 

Company with the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of Act, where 
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the Standalone Ind AS Financial Staternents etc., 
as required by the applicable accounting standards. 

In our opinion, the Company hag an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature 

of its business. 

We have considered the Internal Audit Reports of the Company issued till date, for the period under 

audit. 

According bo the information and explanations given te us, the Company has not entered inte any 
non-cash transactions with directors of persons conmected with him during the year and hence, 

provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company. 

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company is mot required to be 

registered under Section 45-1 of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934, Therefore, reporting under 

dause (evi) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable. 

The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in Core Investment Companies 
(Reserve Bank) Directions, 2016 (Directions”) by the Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, reporting 

under clause (evijtc} and (dl) of paragraph 3 of the Order are not applicable. 

The Company has not incurred cach losses in the financial year and in the immediately preceding 

financial year. 
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There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors dunng the year and accordingly, reporting 

under clause bei) of paragraph 3 of the Order is net applecable. 

On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and 
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying Standalone Ind AS financial 
statements and our knowledge of the Boand of Directors and management plans and based on our 
qvamination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, we believe that material uncertainty exists 
as on the date of this audit report and due te which the Company may not be capable of meeting 

its liabélities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of ane 
year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future 
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to date of the 
audit report. We further draw attention te note 8 of the accompanying Standalone Ind AS financial 
Statements which describes the measures taken by the Company to recover its trade receivables. 

There are no unspent amount towards Corporate Social Responcibility (CSR) on other than angoing 

Projects requiring a transfer to.a Fund specihed in Schedule Vil to the Act in compliance with secomd 

proviso to section 135(5) of the Companies Act. Hence, reporting under clause (xx) of paragraph 3 

of the Order is not applicable. 

There is no amount remaining unspent under section (5) of section 135 of Companies Act, pursuant 
to any ongoing project, has been transferred te special account in compliance with provisien of sub 
section (6) of section 135 of the said Act, 

The reporting under clause 3ixi) of the Order is not appheable in respect of audit of Standalone 

financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been inchuded in respect of 

sae Clause under thas report. 

For NKSC & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

Partner 

Membership Nas 52 

UDIN: 255279R66M 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: May 2B, 2025
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Annexure 2 to the Independent Auditor's Report 

[Referred to in paragraph 3 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent 

Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Mauria Udyog Limited on the Standalone Ind AS financial 

statements for the year ended March 31, 2025] 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of 
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2073 ("the Act™) 

We have audited the internal financial contrels over financial reporting of Mauria Udyog Limited (“the 

Company") as of March 31, 2025 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements 

of the Company for the year ended on that date. 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Company's management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based 

on the internal contre! aver financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential 

components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over 

Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI") These responsibilities 
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were 
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and effichent conduet of its business, including adherence to 
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the 

accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial 

information, as required under the Act, 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial 

reperting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of 

Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing 

specified under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, 

both issued by the ICAL Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 

internal financial controls ower financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls 

operated effectively in all material respects. 

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal 

financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. 

Qur audit of internal financial controls aver financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of 

internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and 

testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal contral based on the assessed risk. 

The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 

material misstatement of the Standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
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Chartered Accountants 

We beliewe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate te provide a basis for our 
opinian on the Company's internal financial contrals system over financial reporting. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of Standalone Ind AS financial 

statements far external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's 

internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to 
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company, (2) provide reasonable assurance that transacthons are recorded as 
necessary to permit preparation of Standalone Ind AS financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company, and (3) provide reasonable 

assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company's assets that could have a material effect om the Standalone Ind AS financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the 

possibility of collusion or improper management override of contrals, material misstatements due te error or 

fraud may occur and mot be detected Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls 

over financial reperting to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over 

financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of 
compliance with the polices or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over 

financial reperting with reference to Standalone Ind AS financial statements and such internal financial 

contrals aver financial reporting with reference ta Standalone Ind AS financial statements were operating 

effectively as at March 31, 2025, based on the internal contral aver financial reporting criteria established by 
the Campany considering the essential components of internal central stated in the Guidance Note on Audit 

of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAL. 

For NKSC & Co, 

Chartered Accountants. 

UDIN: 25521985BMNYTE 1724 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: May 28, 2025 
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Mauris Udyog Liewied 
Standalone Mabemest of Cash flows for the year eeded March a1, DORs 
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Mauria Udyog Limited 

Notes to the Financial Staternents for the year ended flarch 21, 2025 

1. 

tip 

(ii) 

Reporting Entity 

Mauria Udyog Limited (the Company) is a public covapany domiciled in India, wath its registered office situated at 

Anand Jyoti Guilding, 41 Netaji Subhas Road, Room Mo. 107, let Floor, Kolkata WE - 700001. The Company was 

incorporated on September 24, 1980. The shares of the Company are sted on the Bombay Stock Exchange (BSE) 

and Calcutta Steck Exchange (CSE). The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing and trading of LPG 

finders and related accessories like valves and requlaters, and textile products, 

Bagia of preparation 

Statement of compliance with Indian Accounting Standards: 

These Standalone Ind AS financial statements (“the Financial Statements") have been prepared in accordance 

with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS‘) as notified by Ministry of Comporate Affairs {MCA under Section 

133 of the Companies Act, 2073 (Act) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Mules, 2075, as 

amended and ether retevant provisions of the Act The Company has uniformly applied the accounting policies 

for all the periods presented in these financial statements, 

The financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 were authorised and approved for issue by the Board 

of Directors on May 28, 2025. 

The material accounting polices adopted for preparation and presentation of these financial statervents are 
included in Mote 2, These policies have been applied consistently by the Company fer all the periods presented 

in these financial statements. 

Current and non-current classification 

All ageete and liabilites have been classified and presented as cument or nen-current in accordance with the 

Company's normal operating oycle other criteria set out in the Schedule Ill to the Act. 

(iii) Functional and presentation currency 

tv) 

These financial siatervents are presented in Indian Rupees (2), which is alse the Company's functional currency. 

AM areounts have been rounded-off te the nearest lacs, unless otherwise indicated. 

Basis of measurement 

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following itera: 

Items Basis of measurement 

Certain financial astets and abilities Fair value 

Met defined benehit asdet/liabality Fait value of plan aicet led present value of defined 

benefit obligateen 



Mauria Udyoo Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

{v) Use of estimates and judgements 

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make pedgements, estimates 

and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the related 

disclosures. Actual results may differ from these estimates 

Material management judgements: 

+ Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on an 

asieiament of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilised, 

* Business model assessment — The Company determines the business model at a level that reflects how groups 
of financial assets are managed together to achieve a business objective. This assessment includes judgement 
reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated ane their perfomance 
moasured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how there are managed and how the managers 
of the assets are compensated The Company monitors financial atsets measured at amortized cost that ara 
derecognised prior te their maturity to understand the reagon for their disposal and whether the reasons are 
consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was held, Monitering is part of the Company's 
continuous assessment of whether the business model far which the remaining financial assets aro held 
CONTINUES to Et appropriate and if it is not approaviate whether there has been a change in busaness modal and 
accordingly prospective change to the classification of those assets are made. 

* (valuation of indicators for impairment of assets - The cvaluation of applicability af indicators of impairmanit 

of asiets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in deterioration of 

fecoverable amount of the agsets. 

* Classification of leases - (ind A5 116 requires lessees to determine the leave term as the non-cancellable period 

of a lease adjusted with any aption to extend or terminate the lease if the use of such option is reasonably 

certain, The Company makes an aisessment on the expected lease term on a leae-by-lease basis amd thereby 

assesses whether it i reasonably certain that any options to extend or terminate the contract will be exercised, 

In evaluating the lease term, the Company considers factors such as any significant loasehold improvements 

undertaken over the loase term, costs relating to the termination of the lease and the importance of the 

underlying asset to the Company's operations taking into account the location of tha underlying asset and the 

availability of suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure that the lease tar 

reflects the current economic cineumsances. After considering current and future economic conditions, the 

Company has conceded that mo changes ate requered to lease period ralating te the existing lnase contract. 

« Expected credit loss (ECL) = The measurement of expocted credit loss allowance for financial sasets measured 

at amortised cost requires use of complex models and matorial aspumptions about future exonomec conditions 
and credit behaviour (6.9, likelihood of customers defaulting and resulting losses). The Company makes maternal 

judgements regarding the following while assessing expocted oradit loss 

« Determining aberia for significant increaie in credit risk 

* Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for aach type of 

product/market and the assocated BCL 

« Establishing groups ef similar fmanciad assets for the purposes of measuring ECL i. 



Mauria Udyog Limited 
Motes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

z 

a 

Provisions = Ai each Balance Sheet date, based on the managerent judgment, changes in facts and legal 

aspects, ihe Company assesses the requiromont of provisions against the qutstanding contingent liabilities. 
However, the actual future outcome may be different fram this judgement. 

Material estimates: 

Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets = Management reviews its estimate of usoful lives, residual 

walues, and method of depreciation of depreciable/amortisable auiets at each reporting date, based on the 
expected utility of the assets, Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and ecanemic obsolescence 
that may change the utility of assets, 

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) — Management's estimate af the OBO is basod on several underlying 
aatumptons such az standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary 
increases. Variation in those assumptions may significantly impact the DEO amount and the annual defined 
benefit expenses. 

Fair value measurements — Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial 
instruments (where achive market quotes are not available). This involves developing estimates and assumptions 
consistent with how market participants would price the instrument. 

Summary of material accounting policies 

Revenue 

Effective April 1, 2078, the Company has applied Ind AS 115 which establishes a comprehensive framework for 
determining whether, how much and when revenue is to be recognized. The Standard requires apportioning 
revenue earned from contracts to individual promises, or performance obligations, on a relative stand-alone 

selling pnite bass, using a five-step model, ind AS 115 replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue and ind AS 11 Construction 
Contract. The Company has adopted Ind AS 115 using the cumulative effect method. 

Revenue from sale of goods 

Revenue ia metognied upon transfer of coniral of promised product or services to customer in an amount that 

reflect the consideration which the Company expocts to receive in exchange for those product or services at the 

fair value of tho consideration received or receivablo, which is generally the trandaction price, net of any 
famesydutes and digcqurits, 

The Company satisfies a performance obligation and recegnines revenue over time, if one of the following criteria 
1 Aree 

& The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Company's 

performance at the Company performs; ot 

& The Company's performance creates of enhances an asaet that the customer controls as the assed is 

created or enhanced; or 

c The Company's performance does not create an addet with an alternative use to the Company and 

an entity hasan enforceable right te payment for performance completed to date. 

BAe 



Maurta Udyog Limited 

Motes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

For performance obligations where onc of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at the point 
in tire at whieh the perfommance obligation is satisfied, 

Revenue from sale of products is recognised at a tin on which the performance obligation is satisfied. 

Recognition in case of focal sales is qenocrally recognised on the dispatch of goods, Revenue from export sales 

is generally recognised on the baais of the dates of ‘On Board Bill of Lading’. The Company recognises provision 
for salos return, based on the historical results, measured on met basis. of the margin ef the sale. 

Other operating income 

Export benefits are recognised in the year of export when right to receive the benefit ix evablished and 
conditions attached to the benefits are satisfied, 

Other income 

Rental income 

Rental income from investment property is recognised as part of other income in profit or loss on a straight-line 

basis over the term of the lease except where the rentals are structured to increase in line with expected general 

inflaton, Lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of the total rental income, aver the term of 
the lease. 

interest income 

Interest income on time deposits and inter corporate loans is recognised using the effective interest method. 

The ‘effective interest rate’ ia the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments of receipts through 
the axpacted life of the Grancial inatrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. 

Commnfssion income 

Commission income arg recognised in Statement of Profit ar Loss only when the relevant services have bean 

fendered, 

(ii) Employee Benefits 

Short term employee benefits: 

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expenses off as the 

related services are provided Benefits such as salaries, wages, and bonus ete. are recognised in the statement af 

profit and loss in the year in which the employee renders the rolated service. The liabilities ane presented as 

current employer benefit obligation in the balance sheet. 
La 



Mauria Udyog Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Long term employee benefits: 

Defined contribution plan: Provident fund 

All employees of the Company are entitled to recetve benefits under the Provident Fund, which is a defined 

contribution plan, Both the employee and the employer make monthly contributions to the plan at a 

predetermined rate as por the provisions of The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 

1952. These contributions are made to the fund administered and managed by the Government of India. The 

Company has no further obligations under the plan beyond its monthly contributions Obligation for 

contribution to defined centibution plan are recognised as an employes benefit expense in statement of profit 

and loss in the period dureng which the related services are randered by the employees 

Sefired Fenefit Plan: Gratuity 

Adefined benefit plan is.a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. 

The Company provides for retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity, which provides for lump sum payments 
to vetted employees on retirement, death while in service or on termination of employment in an amount 

equivalent to 15 days basic salary for each completed year of service. Vesting octurs ugon completion of five 
years of service. Benefits payable to eligible employees of the Company with reapect to gratuity is accounted for 
on the basis of an actuarial valuation as at the balance sheot date. 

The present value of such obligation is determined by the projected unit credit method and adjusted for past 

service cost and fair value of plan assots as at the balance sheet date through which the ebligations are te be 

settled. The resultant actuarial gain or loss on change in present value of the defined benofit obligation or change 

in return of the plan assets is recognised as an income of expense in the other comprehensive income. The 

‘Company's obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the ammount of future benefit 

that employees have earned in the current and prot periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair 

value of any plan assets. 

The Company determines the net interest expense/fincome) on the net defined benefit liability/anset) far the 

period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the 

annual period to the then-net defined bonefit RabilityMasset), taking inte account any changes in the net defined 

benefit liability/[asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments, Net interest expense 

and other expanses ralated to defingd benefit plang anc nccognined in the statement of profit and loss. 

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates 

to past service [past service cout’ o¢ ‘past sernece ga) of the gain of loss on curtailment is recognised 

imumediately an the statement of profit and loss. The Company recognises gains and losses on the settlement of 

a defined benefit plan when the settlement occurs. 

The Plan aisets of fhe Company ane managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India through a trust created by 

the Company in terms of an insurance policy taken on fund obligations with respect to its gratuity plan. 
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Mauria Udyog Limited 

Motes to the Financial Statements for the year ended Mach 31, 2025 

Other long-term benefits: Compensated absences 

Benefits under the Company's compensated absences scheme constitute other employee benefits, The liability 

in respect of compensated absences is provided on the basis of an actuarial valuation using the Prajected Lint 

Credit Methed done by an independent actuary as at the balance sheet date, Actuarial gain and losses are 
recognised immediately in other comprehensive income. 

(iv) Foreign exchange transactions and translations 

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying the foreign currency amount 
of exchange rate betwen the reporting cumrency and foreign curroncy at the date of transaction, 

Conversion 

Foreign currency monetary aisets and Habilities outstanding as at balance sheet date are rostated/translated 
using the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Non-manetary assets and liabilities which are measured 

in terms of hestorical cost denemination in foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date of 

transaction except for non-monetary item measured at fair value which aro translated using the exchange rates 
at the date when fair value is determined, 

Exchange difference arising on the settlament of monetary items or on restatement of the Company's monetary 

items at fates different from those at which they initially recorded during the year or reported in previous 

financials statement (other than those relating to fived assets and other long term moretary assets) aro 
recognised as income of expenses in the year in which they arise. 

Foreign operations: 

The assets and fabilities of foreign operations are translated into INR the functional currency of the Company, 

at the exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations are translated inte 

Company at the exchange rates at the dates of the trangaction of an average rate if tho average rate 

approximates the actual rate at the dato of the transaction. 

(tv) Tax expense 

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax It if recognised in the statement of profit and loss except to the 

extant that it relates to a buganess combination of to an item recognised directly in equity or in other 

Comprehensive inoome 

Current tar 

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income or loss for the year and ary 

adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of prewous years, The amount af current tax reflects the 

bed! estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid oc received after considering the uncertainty, if any, related 

fo INCOME Taoes. It eure wang Lax rated (ane tox laws) enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting 

date = 
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Mauria Udyog Lirmitid 

Motes to the Financial Statements for the your ended Merch 31, 2025 

Current tam assets and current tax liabiliti¢s are offsel only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the 

recognised amounts, and itisintended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net bases or simultaneously, 

Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temoocary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and 
liabilities for financial reperting purposes and the comespending amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred 
tax is also recognised in reapect of carried forward fax losses and tax credits, Deferred tax ig not recognised for: 

~ temporary differences arising on tho initial recagnitian of assets of liabilities in a transnetion that is nat a 
business combination and that affeets neither accounting mor taxable profit or loss at the time of the 
transaction: 

+ taxablo temporary differences arising an the initial recognition of goodwill, 

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available 
against whieh they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable profit 
may fot be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent besees, the Company recognises a deferred tax 
aidet only to the extent that it has sufficient tawable temporary differences or there is comvineing other evidence 
that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax 
assets ~ unrecognised of recognised, ara neviewnd at each reporting date and are recognised, reduced to the 
extent that itis probabley no longer probable respectively that the related taw benefit will be realised, 

(vi) lnventories 

Raw materials, stores and spares, work-in-progress, manufactured finished goods and traded goods are valued 
at lower of cost or net realizable value. The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an item by 
item basis. Cost comprises of all cost of purchase, cost of conversion and other cost incurred in bringing them 

to their respective present location and condition. Cost is determined using first in, first out method of inventory 
vabuathon. 

Loose tools and scrap are valued at extemated realigable value. 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less astimated costs of 

completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale 

Provision of obsolescence on inventories ig considered on the basis of management's estimate based on demand 

and market of the inventories, 

(eli) Leones 

As fessor 

Leases for which the Company is a lessor classified aa finance or operating lease. Lease income from operating 

loanes where the Company i a lesser is recognised bn income on a straight-line basis over the loase tae unioss 

the receipts ane structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for the expected 

inflationary cost increases, The respective inased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature. 



Mauria Udyog Limited 

Meters ta the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

(vil) Cash and cash equivalents 

fix) 

Cash and cash equrvalents consist of cash, bank balances in current accounts and shart berm highly liquid 

investments that are readily convertible te cash with original maturities of three montha or bead at the time of 

purchase and which are subject to an insignificant sk of changes = value, and bank overdrafts, Bank cverdratts 

are shown within borrenwings in current financial liasiltees in the balance sheet. 

Provisions, contingent liabilities, and contingent assets 

Provisions 

The Company creates a provision whan thare is prasent obligation ag a result of a past event that probably 

requires an outflow of resources, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation, 

ifthe effect of the time value of money ix material, provisions ara determined by discounting the expected future 

cash flows (representing the best estimate of the evpenditure cequired to settle the present obligation at the 

balance shack date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and 

the risks specific to the Rability. The urwinding of the discount is secognised as finanee cost. 

Contingent lability 

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will only bo 

confirmed by the occumence or non-ocourence of one of more uncertain future events not wholly within the 

contral of the Company. Where it is moat probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or the 

Amount cannof be estimated reliably. the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability 

of outflow of economic benofits is romote, 

Contingent assets 

Contingent assets are posible assets that arises from past events and whose oxistence will be confirmed only 

by the occurrence or non-acourrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of 

the Company 

Property, plant and equipment (including Capital work-in-progress) 

Recognition ond measurement 

All items of property, plant and equigment are stated at historical cost bess depreciation. Freehold land is carried 

ai cost. All other items of preperty, plant and equipment are stated at cost net of recoverable tawes (wherever 

applicable), which includes capitalised borrowing costs leis depreciation and impairment, if any. 

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its gurchase price, including import duties and non- 

tefundable purchase taxes, ef any, alter deducting ade dicounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of 

bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated coats of disrmanthng and removing 

the Hem and restoring the site on which ff is Iocated, aS 
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Mauria Udyog Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

H significant parts of an iter of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, then they are 

accounted for ad separate items (major components} of property, plant and equipment. 

Any gain of loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment ia recognised in the staternent of profit 

and Joss. 

On transition to ind AS, the Company had elected te continue with carrying vakoe of all its property, plant and 

equipment recognised as at 1 April 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as the 

deenved cost of the property, plant and equipement. 

Subsequent expenditure 

Subsequent costs ane encluded in the asset's carrying amount or recognised a4 4 separate asset, as appropriate, 

only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the iter will flow to the Company and 

the cost of the item can bo measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a 
Separate adset 1s derecognised when replaced. 

All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the reparting periad 

on which they are incurred. 

Bepreciation methods, estimated useful lives and residual values 

Depreciation is calculated on cost of tems of property, plant and equipment bess their estimated residual value 

over their useful life using straight line method and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

The estimated useful lives of ems of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative poriods 

are ag under and the same are equal to lives specified as per schedule Il ef the Act 

The useful lives of the assets are as under: 

Particulars Useful lives (in years) 

Tangible assets: 

Land Indefinite 

Building 30 Years 

Ownership flat 60 yoars 

Plant & machinery 15 Years 

Ebectrical inatallations 10 Years 

Dies: 15 Years 

Vehicles & ¥oars 

Cranes 15 Years 

Meaduring & testing 10 Years 

Furniture & fixture 10 Years 

Office buildeng 60 years 

Office equipment 5 Years 

Computers 3 Years 

Air conditioners and fans 10 Years 

Truck trailors 4 Years Pale 
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Mauria Udyog Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Fire-fighting equipreent | 15 Yoars 

Solar power generating system | A Years 

Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes that its estimates of useful lives 
AS given above best represent the petiod aver which management expects to use these assets. Depreciation on 
addition to property, plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date the assets are ready for 
intended use, Depreciation on salefdiscard from preperty, plant and equipment is provided for up to the date 
of sale, deduction or discard of property, plant and equipment as the cate may be. 

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed af each financial year-end, and changes, if 
any, are accounted for prospectively, 

(xi) Intangible assets 

Recognition and measurement 

An intangible asset is recognised when it is probable thet the future economic benefits attributable to the asset 
wall flow to the Group and where its cost can be reliably measured, 

Intangible assets are initially measured at coat, Such intangible assets are subsequently measured at cost bess 
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Cost comprises the purchase price and any 
cost attributable to bringing the assets te its working condition for its Intended use. 

Armertisation 

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets over their estimated useful lives using the 

straight-ling method and is incuded in depreciation and amartization in the statement of profit and loss. 

The useful lives of intangible assets are as follows: 

Particulars Useful lives (in years) 

Intangible assets: 

Computer software i i years 

Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-enel, ane changes, if 

any, are accounted for prodgpectively: 

Losses arising from the retirement of and gain or losses arising from disposal of an intangible asset are 

determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of asset and 

recognised a4 income or expense in the statement of profit and loss. 

(zi) Impainment of non-financial assets 

The Company's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax agsets, are reviewed at each 

reporting date to determine whether there is any indication af impairment “ee guch indication exists, if gel 
asset's or CGU's receverable amount is estimated. 
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Maurin Udyeg Limited 
Netes to the Financial Statements forthe year ended March 31, 2025 

For impamrment testing, assets that do not gererate independent cash inflows aro grouped together mto cath: 

generating units (OGUs) Each CG represents the smallest group of assets that generates cach inflows that are 

largely independent of the cash inflews ef ether assets of CGUs. 

The recoverable amount af a CGU (or an individual assct) is the higher of ts value in use and its fair value less 

costs to sell Value in use it based on the estimated future cash flows. discounted te their present value using a 

pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the ritks apecific 
te the CGM for the asset). 

4n impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or OGU exceads its estimated recoverable 

amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. impairment loa recognised in 

respect of a OG is allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then 
to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the OGU for group of CGUs} on a pro rata basis 

After impairment, depreciation/amartigalion if provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its 
remaining useful life, 

boil) Borrowing certs 

Borrowing coats ane interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds, Borrowing costs 

directly attributable to aequisitian or construction of an asset whech necessarily take a substantial period of time 

to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset, Other borrowing costs are 

recognised ag an expense in the period in which they are incurred, 

(xiv) Financial instruments 

initial recogeition and measurement 

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are onginated. All other financial 
assets and financial Rabilities are mitially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual 

proviseons of the instrument. 

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, transaction costs that are directly 

atinbuteble to its acquisition or sue, ecept for an item recogneied at fat value through profit and boss 

Transaction cost of financial assets carried at fair value tLeough profit and loss is eqpensed in the statement of 

profit and loss. 

Chester and subsequent measurement 

Financial aisets 
On inctial recognetion, a financial asset js classified as measured at: 

* amertised cost, 

«Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCH, or 

@ Fair value through profit and loss (FWTPL) 



Mauria Udyog Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements far the year ended March 31, 2025 

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial atpets and the contractual 

terms of the cash flaws, 

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, ewcept if and in the period the 

Company changes its business model for managing financial assets. 

A financial ageet ig measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not desiqnated 
ad at FYTPL: 

«the asset is held within a business model whose obpecttve is to hold assets to collect contractual cash 

flowers: ancl 

«the contractual tenms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates te cash flows that are solely 

payments of principal and avterest.on the principal amount outstanding. 

Adebt investment is measured at FYOC ff it mogts both of the following conditions and is mot designated as at 
FYTPL: 

* the assetis held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash 
flows and gelling financial assets: and 

* the contractual terms of the financial asset g've rise on specified dates fo cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

On instal recognition of an equity investment that ig nat held for trading, the Company may imevocably elect to 
present subsequent changes in the irestevent’s fair value in OCI (designated as FYOC] — equity investmont). 

This election is made on an investment by investment basis. 

All financial assets not classified to be measured af amortised cost or FOC! as described above are measured 

at FVTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably 

designate a financial asset thal herve meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FYOCI 
or at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise. 

The Company makes an assesament of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held ata 

portfolio level because this best reflects the way the Business is managed and information is provaded to 
management. Te information considered includes: 

= the stated policies and obgectives for the portiolioa and the operation of those policies in practice, These 

incude whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining = 

Particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related 

liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets; 

«how the perfomance of the portfodio is evaluated and reported to the Company's managment: 

= the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial agsets held within that 

business model) and how those risks are managed: 

* how managers of the business are compensated = 0.g., whether compensation is based on the fair value 

ef the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected: and 

* the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales 

and expectations about future sales activity. 

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecagnition ane not 

considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company's continuing recognition of the assets (U 
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Mauria Udyog Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 21, 2025 

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value 
bass ara measured at FYTPL 

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest 

For the purposes of thid assessment, ‘principal is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial 

recognetion. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated 

with the principal amount outstanding during a particular petted of time and for othor basic lending risks and 

costs (eg, Eqpundity risk and administrative costs), aa well as 4 profit margin. 

In assessing whether the contractual cach flows are solely payments of principal and interest. the Company 

conuders the contractual terms of the instrament. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contams a 
contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows auch that it would not meet 

this condition, in making this assessment, the Company considers: 
* contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows: 

* terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features; prepayment 
ened @xtension features; and 

* terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flaws from specfied assats (e.g. hon: recourse features), 

4 prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion Hf the prepayment 

amnicunt substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and intorest on the principal amount outstanding, 

which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the contract. Additionally, for a 
financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its contractual par amount, a feature that permits 
Of FeqUires prepayment at an amount that substantally represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but 

unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) 

if treated as consistent with thes erbenion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial 

recognition 

Financial r — 

Financal assets at amortised cost: These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective 

interest method. The amortised cost i reduced by impainment losues, if any. Interest income and impainnont 

are recognised in the statement of profit amd loss. Any gaan or loss on derecognition is recognised in statement 

of profit and oss, 

Financial assets at FVTPL: These assets ane subsequently measured at fair velo, Mat gains and leases, including 

any interest incame, are resegnised in the statement of profit and loss, 

Debts inveviments at FVOCI These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Interest income under the 

effective interest method, forgign exchange gains and losses and impainment are recognised in profit or loss. 

Other net gains and losses are recognised im OCI, On Derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCi are 

reclassified to profit or loss. 

Equity investments at FVOCI: These asiets are subsequently meaiured at fair value. Deodends are recognised as 

income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. 

Other net gains and losses are recogresed in OC! and are not reclassified to profit or loss. 
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Mauria Udyog Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended March 21, 2025 

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amertised cost or FYTPL A financial liability is classified as at 

FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, of it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition, 

Financial liabilities at FYTPL are measured at fair value and met gaing and losses, including any intorest expense, 

are recognised in the staternent of profit and loss, Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at 
amaortised cost using the effective interest method, Interest expense and foreign exchanges gains and losses are 

recognised in the statement of profit and lors. Any gain ef loss on derecognition is also recogrised in the 
statement af protin and loss. 

Offsetting 

Financial assats and financial abilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance shect when, and 

only when, tha Company currently has a logally enforcerble right to set off the amounts and it intends either te 
settle them ona net basis of to nealise the assets and sottle the liabilities amultancously, 

Derecognition 

cj ial 

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 

aaget expire, of it transfers the nights to receive the contractual cash flows in a tranaaction in which substantially 

all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred ov in whieh the Company neither 
transfers nor retaing substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does pot retain control of the 

financial asset. 

I the Company enters into transactions whereSy it transfers assets recognised on its balance thect, but retaing 

either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred atsets ane not 

Gerecognised. 

The Company derecagnizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, ar 
expire. 

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified andi the cash flows under the 

modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is 

tecagnised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and 

the new financial liability with modified terms is recognized in the statement of profit and loss, 

Jian? of Waaaciy inntaacents 

The Company recaqnises boas allowances for expected credit bosses on: 

Financial assets measured at amortised cost and 

Finamoal assets measured at FYOCI- debt irwestments 

At gach reporting date. the Company assesses whether financial assets canted at amortised cost and debt 

smourities at FVCKO are credit impaired. A financial asset is ‘eredit-impaired’ when one of more events that have 
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Mauria Udyog Limited 

Notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended MM=eeh 21, 2025 

4 detrimental impact on the estimated fulure cash flows of the financial asset have occurred, Evidence that a 

financial asset is credit - impaired includes the following observable data: 

* significant financial diffiewlty of the borrower or issuer; 

* a breach ef contract such asa default or being past due for agreed credit period: 

* the restructuring of a loan or acvance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider 
otharwisa; 

* itis probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation: or 

* the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties, 

Expocted ereditioss 

Loss allowances for trade receivabins are always measured at an amount equal te lifetime expected credit losses. 

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events ower the 
expected life of a financial instrument. 

12-month oxpected credit Ioges are the portion of e-pected credit loases that result from default events that 
aro possiiée within 12 months after the reperting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument 
is less than 12 months). 

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected crodit losseasis the maximum contractual 
Period over whieh the Company is exposed to credit rigk. 

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has incroasad significantly since initial recognition 
and when estimating expected credit bosses, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information 
that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative 

information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assexsment and 
including forward bopking information. 

The Company assumes that the enedit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than agreed 
credit period, 

The Company condicders a financial asset to be in default when: 

* the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group 

fo actions such ag realising security (if arn ts held): or 

« the financial asset is past due and not recovered within agreed credit periad. 

Measurement of expected credit losses 

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the 

present value of all caah shortfalls (Le, the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in accordance 
with the contract and the cath flows that the Company expects. to receive). 

Lots allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the groas carrying amount 
of the assets disclosed in ihe Balance Sheet. 
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Mauria Udyog Limited . 

Motes to the Financial Statements for the year encod Macch 31, 2025 

Wirite-off 

Tha grass carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (oither partially or in full] te the extent that there is 

ne realistic prospect of recowery. This is generally the caso whon the Company determines that the debtor does 
met have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flews to repay the amounts subject to 

tha-write-off, However, financial aisets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order 
te comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due, 

(ev) Earnings per share 

Basic earniegs per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable te equity 

shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted 

average numbers of equity shares outstanding curing the period are adjusted for events such as bonus issue, 

share iplt of consolidation of shares. 

For calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or boss for the year attributable to equity shareholders 
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the periad are adjusted for the effects of all 
dilutwe potential equity shares, The diluthe potential equity shares are deemed converted into equity shared ag 

at the beginning of the period unless they have bean issued ata later date. 

evi) Segment reperting 

Operating sagments ate reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided ta the chief 
operating declan maker 

In accordance with ind AS 108 = Operating Segments, the operating segments used to present seqment 
information are identified on the basis of internal reports used by the Company's Management to allecate 
resources to the segments and assess their performance. 

Segment profit i uied to measure perfonmance as management believes that such information is the most 

rilevant in evaluating the results of certain segments relative to other entities that operate within these 

industries. Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm's length basis. 

The operating segments have bean identified an the basis of the nature of productsservices. Further 

J, Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable with / allocable to the segment 
including inter-segment revenue 

2. Expenses that are directly identifiable with / allocable to segments are considered for determining the 

segment result. Expenses whech relate to the Group as a whole and not allocable to segments are 

induded under unallocable expenditunn, 

3. Income which relates to the Group as a whole and not allocable te segments is included in wnallocable 
incorne. 

4, Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the reipective segments 

Unallocable assets and liabilities represent the assets and liabilities that relate to the Group as a whole 

and not allocable to any segment, 

The Board of Director(s) are collectively the Company's "Chief Operating Decision Maker’ ae “COD within the 

meaning of ind AS 108. eee 
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Invertment in equity Invinamests (Ab air yokes through G¢l) 

Queted 

Agrtech india Lirias 1g aT 
(78S flees J, Ste TRO) query shares of f 10 eep 

Fortune bsternatenal Listed 439 SBT 
(70000 Peters 3D. 20d 00 equity shane of © 10 each) 

Bihaeipi Ingat Lisiyog Limite: 153 EL] 
1L0GU880 (March 31, 200M: 100.800) equity ghaneg aff 10 each) 

2 Marwan Fay Bure Mecharis. Lined Hug had 

B50 Odarch 11, 204: 20530) exaity shares of T OD euch 

Quakty Synthebe ingees Leevied ey aati 
COG.650 (March 34, 2004: PAGO) equety shaves of TD earth] 



Paasria Udo Limited 

Nobes to the vianeiatene financial eiteerts for thee yee ended March 51, bond 

AT Tee Be Os dare, aed Rane attend 

Behance inguaireed Lerrenpsl 
1 (Mareh 3), B24: 9 equity stare cf € Peach) 

Ieforrmuvtepn Teachecelaegy Lirrstind, 

(NOG pistaechs DE, 20a: TOO) equity share of £ f each] 

Huth BicoGeres Sindiag Limited 
(OSE Planers AD, POD RS) eeuity shares of fT 10 each) 

Unquated 

Bohasy Iniersatienad Limited (refer [ecmere a] 
Lease Paqresion dor desutrtlul avetsirert 
PMLOOO (Murch hil, Bebe 20/000) equity shares of € 10 each 

‘Terai (A) 

ST Esgineeing Senices Livited 
PAM (Pdarch 91, 200: ZUMS) equaty shares of 100 mech} 

Bhar Fascy Fibers and Fabetes Lirreiedd 

HTT alae RM 71771 eaey shares of FD eae 

AL Eatated Prreate Lisstied Qerfer focteate a) 

(eek Peovgaan for dheaibethed onreeiterbst 
(POO eters IT I: 40,000) equality shares 

deerapah Jeaar Oy Prevate Lirteund jefe Reoinses 0) 

(eve Prowi von for double ineweypeuest 
(1.000 (March 31, BOM: 1,000) equity chanes 

Spree gy Fresghragys Prvwte Linned 

(4090 (March 11, 2004: 990) equity shaves of F100 each 

S50) Extn Provace Lirritecd 

(PD Peers 30, 20 2.9005 eeuity shared od 10 wack) 

Weihoouces Propertan. Prats hirmites 
(12.980 (March 31, 20084: 0) equity hated of © 95 much) 

fanwore Houng Prevate Linehed 
(Mil Glare 31, 20d HE equity shares of f 90 each): 

hari) Erste Pevate Liveted 
M60 [Muah 91, S00 dG] equity shares of f 10 each 

Achel Estates Privale Lesmed 

MG (Muech 21, 2 200] equety shares of 1 each) 

Bcharigi Land & Mowsing Privain Limited 
(TBS eMtaeeh 31, 208 110) wept ahares of F100 each! 

CQ Software Lirreted [refer foortrecte ii 
11,000 (Mtanch J, 20g: 1000) equety sharers) 

JET Electronics Liveted prefer footnote fi) 
(2:00 Cdarahs 1, 2024: 2.5004 equity shad 

Mowing Fictune Oo. inciaLareted (neler footrende ii 

HO larch 01, 20d: BO) east chore 

[A PR recher Lire [refer Seine a) 

VIO OG filtaeeh BP, Dee 10/000) ecperty thane) 

fag) Stneg Corpocation Limited [eter dovincbe il 
F9:000 file 31, 2022 19/000) aejurty vane 

Tetal (A 

[eB 

on oaT 

Las iui 

FAG 50 

a ons 

135) . 

“ 134 

8 Shay 

neo BOG 
Pte) : 

ono a1 
1 ty 

bbl | 

. 5148 

it 

. t= 

a1 PAE 

ed ET 

oss on 

O57 oa 

airy Da 

15,06 Hi 



Marois Udyog Limited 

Mabea to the aedalone Grenciel rtateents for the peor ended March 31, 00% 

Foateoter: ‘Aged Aa 

Marah 11, 202% March 11, 200 
BL Bock walue of quoted iremimeren mt oso 

Bock wale of utquabed Mweaimenti Bhi ms 

Marlee value of quoted bwements may mas 

@) Mo informaben cegarding dace vakoe of such imvetirments is available with the Company 
Si) For eeplanaten on the Company rah anagement proceds, tefer note So. 

fire}, There ace ne peqnifipard nevhoactions on they raght af qwnerstep, eealtabdity of boreiments or the neretionce of ingore arc peoneeds of dinposal, 

@ Trade recelvables (man-currend) Anat Aaah 
Farah 11, 2005 March 11, 2074 

Lee ruined © at abe laedd Geil 
‘Trade repelvables fh 19 Tees 

Leer impaement iogg alpsance TAT rua, 

—Fae Tiki 
Footuoten 

ff}. The Company had eet eeatured expected creda low of ade cecervable an per ind 44 109) Financial instrument, (eler ite 21) 
(il), Trade recetubles are pledged aa utcuritins for borrowings Euoen from banks and ochery, Geter hicte 2) 
Gi], For eeplanation om ihe Cormpaey rrusupere peeoeid, reler Nene 57, 
M1. Theda pecenvables ae noe-intene! bedeng and ate normally receved im the Company's opetating cyte 

Ovi Me trade secewabies ant de Pom dinetor an othe offer of the Compacy and Gira ot priate compares in mich any director it 9 parce, a dieector or 

bel), The Company has ivtated peoresdings wider Seciios 9 af lneehiney Ak Easkruptey Code, 2016 agairal ota trade recerablen Maye. Linkewie Marketing Private 
Listed aed Mite Kinnest Commosiles Private Lomited, befocw the MCLT, Kodhate Bench ade Compasy Pettian Mg. CP REGS) are TSU LEON TES of BA aed 

‘the mathe: a parently perreding Ibetone Thee Mee ole MOCLT. estate Benes. Herbie KOCLT han accepted the matter 
fel There ara ovtiterdieg Gade recewables which hie not been realoed om aceon) of del and log process. Suc trade necevables we cvistanding far a 

conmdersble period of time, The management ig morstonnsy Obie tettreables ontiewoualy bad ti labing spproprate slepe bo necower thaws recmavatblen in the 

foe of the managenent, that the amount well rot be recovered in Ehe ree] 12 month: Menge, the same hag been clavate op non-currend im the nareial 
LESTE and She Comparry at ruc aS EY Di erewe! Negus. 

ivi) Trade receivables ageing Aa at Anat 

March 1, Pars March 04, bed 

‘Undiggated trade eeneivables 
0-6 monthi = 

6-12 eeontta . a 

‘Tet years - 
2d yean . - 
ideew than 3 yearn er | Th ASS 

hue l= paimet bra allowance fe Paty S| PER 

7087.03 TALE 

@ Osher Gnaccial aorta ieenemerenti Aaa An at 

Hi, 2078 it 
Unsecured. considered good 

Secuvhy depois ieler looteote f a7. anil 
Lane impairment ios aflceanca itn (andy 

Aoeenernee bark balances a Echos 
Haid PELTED 

Footrest: 

© Tee Company has caid arcusting bo Ae 298551 lece in cach an perleerecee quaranios to Bega Petroleum Marketing Cenmrguny, Libys. The canine ould rot 

be executed due the leekeel dawn. Qvtry to the Cod 19 Pandemic the Company boy wready prowidied amounting fo Ma 107629 bace of the total amount, and 

frying to recower the balesee from the agent Accordingly, the amour Garifesed tern iecutity depose to the Agents accom 

i) For explinaten on the Company righ anagemen proces. refer note Sf. 

10 Deferred tan aveete (net) Anat Anat 
Foret BI, 20S March 11, 1ata 

Cafered tas anvece iret) afer nove BT) Pars | Lane 
1, Me 17.1 

= ath = -, 

A SBro, 
for’ SO, 
ine VS} ee ae 

ee a 
ee 

sy 

= Note Mpsuant



Manutin Uelvang Limited 

own ane Fin det ulin atic 

Motes to the ciardalene faesiad stalerenis for the pear enced Murch 11, 200% 
othenerany 

1 

ry 

a 

Other rire ciire as anita Aaa Anat 

March 51, 2355 March 34, DoRa 
Uneecured, considered qood unison eisted cthereice 

Cagis advan [refer mote 28] aie BSS 

fanz Precaion on capetal achaarees h7Ty {£2 72i 
Adgeta ander dhecaie (rete: docincte and Mose 45) . on 

TRS rence 164.27 ee 

RELTH S50027 

Potretar = 

The cod properter: hue been anquened by the Company pura to settenendt of eecerwabies tee Stunberty Sur ind Private Liereted are VL Land and 

Houreng Prats Lrited Howeeer, fhrus properties have not been regatened in the rane of company, The pile deeds of aforesaid properties had tepen webyretbed 
to How ble Supreme: Court, wide tts Coder ho. Wir Pettoets! (Cab Mafal. 0/0017 dated Decesber 2. 2019, eessequence te the peperd of the dorenaie: dcditer 

utdheriake aa pee the ditection of the Hon'ble Supnese Court of india bp look into transactions of dimrapal group of comparces ard accordingly chywn as arity 

usder clupute. Further, dunng the quent pear, thee Company hap parrereder ia ight back 4o VL Land and Houtirey Private Limited and Sirumbersy Star india 
Pravane Linnie te arructing Fi 9.568 75 Lies and ahown gain of fi AEA. BS lace waceptional Hern in the statement of prodit and loan 

Inet ore ‘Anak fa ak 
March Fi, 2008 March Fi, 2024 

Vullued ot lower of cont and met realinable wales 
‘Eaves muterialy 4th hana) 
Stone and inan 35 6 aus 
ee Heads a BaT 

Werk-in-preqreua LE? 4130 

‘Bread qed 22 12215) 

Storé-in-trade OLIN 1a 
Sends by nearest bas ws 

‘Valued 04 antimated remlicable walue 
Solap =atetiah Bas LAL 

Py asi435 
Footrarla: ae 

breerierart ane pledged aa aetention for borrowings Esken dom banks pred there ineter npte 2. 

Trade recenvablen [eurrenti Aa wt ‘Anat 
Murch 11, T8T5. Match 31, Pad 

Ledtiputed tade secerwablen - doniderd good Parks) Lae 

Urchapwted trade mecetabiles - which have shpreficard inp ie oredr Rak = 2 

Lege lepaernest bei slowince - a 

Frertincted: 

The Company han not reawoned expected credit lose of ade recenwabhe ac per rd 5 10% Tinascial litnaments® [Refer noce $0) 
(@p Trade recereablen are pledged aa pecurtes for borenwings taken top furde: and others trefer note 22L 
my. Fer eephrates on the Company righ anagement erociig, defer note 52 

fhe). Trade recerabien are con-interest bearing acd are norcmally received in the Company's opersng cycle 

he Me trole femmes and de Irom ckremnar eet other affine: of the Company and fers or pevite cemaeeed i whech dnp ditecior i a pari, a abreener oe 

ei), Trade necetwables ageing Aaat Ae ot 
fdorchs Fi, 2024 March Bi, 24d4. 

Undlapuied trade recenailen - conuidered good 

Ob ant 260) BME 23 

&-12 monthe peepee Laat 
‘1=2 pear bl Bs S1at 

td pear La] ed 

More than Jpeare mu? = 

Leer imparment loan allowance 2 - 

Tynes PEC 
Cath and tach equeyelents Asal behan! 

Aderch Ja, 2029 March 51, baba 

Bualietatitci wrth Eebeth 

An current aceoents cal S54 
Cash on hand Baa hal 

PET EDA 

~—



Mauris Uatyey Limited 
Mote to the dalone Pnacciall for the year ended Paech 01, EOEE 
Oe i ee Pe ee i de eee 

1S Beet balanced other than cash and cosh equivalents Anat fun at 

March 31, 2024 arch 11, 2024 

DEM mth Saterity one (haa Thee estes but bend this Behe orth 7,407.20 1291 $4 
bpalannes with bande (eter fooinete| on om 

Baleccen weth post cMice in singe bank ancount need aos 
PRED [erie] 

Footnote: 

Eaesureed balances with banks includes balances held dor unpaid didend pertaining to financial pear 3918-19, 

16 baaensh fount) Aig at fia at 
Pdarch 34, Road Adtarchs 14, Bota 

Usettened, comidered good unieen stated otherwian 

Loare to 

“impioyest MLE? Fa 3iE 

Sobediars 100 10s 

-‘Cihen Mus 445 

TAQL ES 1,538.97 

Farrah; 

For eeplination on the Compacy rth management process, peler rephe fi 

The company Fan geen interegt deg boar bo iy aubsichary Boharyi Peegertnt Frreane Frrebed are’ Gehacgi Fegsrice Pervate Geeted of amount Ay 1091.50 lath A 

2202.00 labs Reagnetively which io repayable on demand 

TT Giher firancial apeety (qureendl Auat Aga 
March $1, P0245 March 01, 2024 

Usertured, considered goad 

Inheres} accraed mn depois itt laa 

Security dinponita ATS 0 
‘Ore recerable eles leatete d A761 4d ia 17 

eava.18 245d 

Fostnete: 

0 Oeher recevable inchede amour sechrvable froo eubsediary for suctinder t's ight back to argurting Bu 2.61675 lakh cowfer mote 11) 

(2) For explaration on the Compary tisk management pececid, rele Gabe 53, 

Th Carrent tan aaseta iret Aaa in at 

March F), i978 Merch 31,1974 

Curect tau arete inert of achearice tan} " BE 
- bib 

ra 

‘Vi Caber cures aaeets An ae An at 

Peres 21, 2075 March Bi, 1ar4 

Prepaid expences Ba 2623 
Avance tp supplere az Te rota 
Balances eth qevecnment authortan 1.5 V3380T 

Karis baie bees alleen (184.93) OMe 
LA LEE Lata 

20 Assets held for oie Anat Aa a 

8 

Adaeta held for sake dafer fossaane i (Mote 3 6. 5} 1405.3 ered 
PAE ST 14 

Poctnst a:- 

Wy thee lat pear, the Company hag deceled bo gale fis bend) and teadiding held ot Fanidstod, Maryan. pence, the vedue of land inchoding captéd eee in progren 

related bo wooh land haa been dacloned an Avnet bold fer wale aeteedance eth ied 25 105 "Mes cucntt adeets held for cate and dipronenaed operaboea”. 



Mauris Udyog Limited 
Nates to the wlindialone financial vivlements foe the pear ended March BT, 1825 
GA sores ae IP an Ga, dae eT GAA 

21 Equity share capital 

ff, The Company has only ene clas of share capetal handing a parwalue af © 1 per share, refered to hesein as equity shares. 

An wt Aa ad 

Pdeerch 34, 2OR5 (Marek 01, 1074 

Hunhysined share 
$0,000,000 [PF $0,00,00,0005 wheres of F 9 wach S00 Be 5.000.080 

$000.00 4,008.00 

13L22.00,000 (PY T2GLOLOON aAares of FT each 1m 1003.60 
Ta2e0 1232.08 

Til, Retetihution ef the tates culnaAdety on The begin aad ead gf the peur 

Aral Aaa 

OO 
Murnber Amount Aurnber Ameun! 

Shared ceutytierdieg 21 Oe beeerereg apf tem year LE] ick [Bt Fale] LEE Panis ol 18 

Shane ouimtending at the end of the yer Won oo 100d i 1020 

Purvasnt bo the approval of the ahorehoiden accorded on February 28, 2002 wide poral bullst canccted by the Company, euch equity share of fare value of © 

10 eer chart mad subdevice’ nia ten equety dhancd of feo value of ©) per shack, enh elfent fromm Aarch 11, Bez. 

(i), Tersasrights aqieched 19 equity shares 

Voting 

fach charehoider iu enirtied to one wote per ueang bel, 

Ornsiencip 

The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupee. The drend propoaed by ihe Board of Duectors a wuhyect be approval of the thaneholders bn 
rug Maral Geren Mieting Geoke in The cade where intern dielend ii dhatfbutedl The Cemmuty had not davbuted ay denied in the curries aed 

Prewicun yaar 

Liguadation 

ie the vest of bquidgtion of the Company. ihe shareholder chal be enetled be rorer all ef the eerruering gasets of the Company sher chsiritedion of all 
peeferectal amounts, @ any, tach ditebuten amownte will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders 

Anat Aaa 

Mare 1, 2005 Mark 11, 20nd 
Mine of shareholder Holding in 6 of Tetal Holding in ‘had Total 

Ni Suveupet Ruan Sureka. 2210400 iets ha leer 
Aenea! Qormar Sfurebn [LF] 1,38) 56.000) 1a, Io 14s 
Wi Dreepasaing Sureks 20810 ahs 20610, 1Sahe 
Mery, Deepa buneig 7T36,1 5) Sai TG) 101% 
Mew. Prevr Lata Sure Pam tay ERPS 207, 18003 ie 

Me Vise Marea Sureing (HIE) 1001 500 735% 161 50 7555 

(aL Mo claee of shares have seen allotted aa fully paid op puriuant to contracti) wthowt gayeend beieg neceared is cath. allotoed as Ally paid up by way of bona 

thane of bought back during the ppried af 5 nace bermecately preceding the Balance Steet dete 

=



Maura Udyog Limited 

‘ete te the rhardslees fiearciel phaberents for thee poor ended March 11, FORE 

Are ae er Mer, ele araaipa aera! 

felt), Gets of chore held by Promoters ad the end of peor 

tT) 7 ia 
(nlerfee et pital ler March 51, DO25 change March 31, 237 

lumber Pare ! Humber Perentage 

far, Mawheet Hurmar Sure 22153400 ath Oo, 221514 bea 
Aap, Wiihirea Weurria Sahin LLL ao oe, wes Lat 
far, Cepanthy Sureka 168,000 iat on 168,000 boas 
fda. Deepa dureks 2.08, no,150 Ta7e ooo 208,00,050 Hae 
fang. Poem Late Sunek TRMAASS MS oor. The EIS 

Mawneet Mumar Sareeg (HEP 207, Hod Pe Ban 4 207, 1000 hoi 

‘Withtra Ramat Gureka [HUF] me Lik Dore LA Pa EP] 

EY Other equity Aa at fla ak 
Masch 11, 2b0E March 11, 2034 

OG) General reverse 
Openmg balan aed has 

Chasing balance Tas as 

fi), Teaniien preeeee 
Opening balance LITE iss 
Casing balance PET VaTTas 

(ai). Eeteteed earrengs 

1615 TSE p 
dd: Pocdtt Fee thse yout lar 1 ona 
Add: Tracafered from sccurulsted other comprehenios income 7 = 
Closing balance 2, eS 8.18 

(hh. Accundaied other cormgetheasive Ingo 

Openng balarce CLES GR 
Add: Other compehenin’e comes Baan le Pe yea | a 
lene Tasifeved 0S eared earerge be 
Chasing balance ea (164) 

Total ther equity enio Tar 

Natare and purposes of Other eel ty: 

i. General reserve 

The genital maerce i a lee cesenee which ju uaed [rom time io Gees to treme profits frem / te setsined eariags fer apprepration punposes. Aa Se general 
cesene hocmated by a tracafer from one compenent af equety to seother and a2 pot ar item of other comprehernien income, ees inched in the qentarall 

Sener well hot be reclagehed gutanquertiy in te Kuthement of Prof and Lon. 

(RL Teanalilon resemen 

‘The Company had erraherd iis lecteey lard iy earker pear becauee of which company crested a neweheiinn resetvs 5 the pear ef revaluation. On adoption al ind 

AS in Enarcial year 2007-18, compary had tracalerced duck tevehuwieen PeReree To anclion meaeree, 

(i) Retained samira 
Reetained martings REDCESEA EE Ihe Fenbbed on The Maher of Profit andi Lon and anpecpnateers. 

fv, denurnulated ether comprehenive income 
Tha Company tecogeives change on ammount of remewuremant of the net defined benefit labelty as part of other compneheniee income mith teparale 

dadopere. which pompenes. ot 
« etuarial qa ord lige 
+ eam on plan scot, aeduding amounts ischeded in eet interest on the na defined benefit bitaity, and 
+ anny change in The eMec of the aspet ceding eecluding amount. ncheded in pet betes] on the met defined beret babdity. 

The Company has elected be neteqnive charges in the fair walue of certain veiments in equity deouribies in other comprehen income, Theis changed ane 
accumulated in the PYOC/ equity inweatrante revere. The Cosnpary tranuter aqunts from that neveres to retaised eacnings when The rela equity eecertiny 
are deretogrined oe aofd. Any imeahrneal leas on wth iratruments in reclassified to the Satesent of Peodlt and Lows. 

al 
a ao a 

2 = 
= . g) i bioyo. Ageia 

, 7 



Ateurie Uniyog Limited 
Mated tothe wtaecdlalgee Tearctiad stivtmeorets for the peer ended March 51, bods 

(CAN amovats ane fon on urdesr stated onernisey 

2Y Stare application money pending allotmens Aust fun at 

Maech 31, Peak Marah 13, 2004 

Share application moray pacing sloomen Rater raphe baleen) . hb 

s 22530. 

Footnote ua Aaah 

(March 51, bars. Manch. Lit] 

Mr, Mawneet Kumar Sunekn (HUF) - it 
Mir, Mawneet Romar Sunes 2 TE. 
Me Vii Burret Sure . 0 
Prem Late Tench - 2009 

: 1050.00 

fe thee year, the has bean ded to Gre reapertrer iuiveduald esrept dar Mr Maaneet Ruri’ Suneha aed Munneet Kumar Sureka PHL) an 

ect of Rp 170.00 6 S600 Rebs hares been eeheirsed ane) cocvected inte an intengrt fnew loan of fer, Muvreet Kummer Sure aed hueneet Kumar Sureieg (HUI 

Anicacively 

a 

a 



Maurie Udo Limted 
(Noten bo the rtandalone fleancial tatementd far the pear eaded March 01, Bon 

lM arneue ane Fad, ol tated others 

MM. Borrowing (non-qurcena| Aa at Aaa 
ftarch 11, 200% March 11. Pers 

Setured 

Term loans 
Vroom crthaery Calas togtreete 1 * 

Uneecured 
Rarirectured hatebty of bectewing [refer footrest if) i 50h 2a 

Tas ECTrRr) 

OO] Teen inane tram others 

Leader's Hamme 1 A Adee CuirReAl petite, Curr portion 
5 aa Aaa Aaa an at 

= Aterch 0, 2025 Adtech 24, fon March 31, 2005 March fi, and 

‘Agihya Birla Finance Lirratieg forks 1 aa = 7, POLO ovo 
Fae frre : 1, 190.08 Porn 

4 Term Lose fon £ebtya Birly Fence Lierined: 

Buing the financial poor 2003-2, the Company had baloen a bong open loan tegen Ageia Birly Firaesne Lireped af 0 2505.99 lack repayable on desand as pe 
aqeeemer| cated Mirweriger UE D309. As pay ewe ageernend dleted Berd 16. 2025, the dernared loan baa been coreerted ints term inan, 

The detads of tepayment given below - 

Particular Lome talon Co] Teaure Security! Purpean 

Bvmsthersetien 
Ustiee Bits France erste La 1.30%] Ho Menthe] er bate Wnrhing capetal loan 
Rgaprrent 

Tha foan is eepayable in the dofloeeng manner: Fut 2 invtaimente of Ry JOD lacy sell be peed on baby 1 OES art Oriober 1, 2025 ard the bales acute 
ered on 2a equal monthly ivetabmaeris of © 0D Lacs tach deeclidirg ibeneet) wanting fies Newernber 1, DOES aed ending on Detober |, 2027, 

Co-borrowsent 
ADE Vipphndiss Pripeertine Prat Lavi 

Primary prewrity 

Eetuine hypothecabes of the ireerioty ated trade receivables of the comeunry 

‘Collateral security 

Accerchuine change on the property located at Dlnuquernnlla Avenue, Weahend Green, Village Raokn, Oelhs, pompnsing a farmhouse peated at Mhawa Mo 
227 sin, FER ren, 231, aed 232 eran, Village Rajebri, Del, ceed by Viihscudiew Progecties Prrealé Liriled echectawer, valued af EPE29 crared at per 
tha valuation dated july 4. 220, 

(ii), Getadle of reatructured ketelity of berroming, 

- i Current portion 

ico ai ical ~ Anat ai wt iat haat 
oresing March 31,2825 March 31, 20¢a March 01, 7075 1, 203 

Pradent ARC Livsted THAno.00 78 BAS tk - 5 
GTS 5 ah aa E Z 

Tra Company Pact tao follwing credit facie: from Karrutake Bari 
« Chaeedieaft comet facibty of SOGUN Lace 
= Pre chipset credit dacibty of © 5,500.00 Lace 
« Post shopped (MLC-DevOM, Direct] credit laclity of © 1860000 Lice 
+ Bont shipment (DS/DRy creche Factity of © 5000) 0 Lace 

+ nares ball divesuerieg » backord by idand LC lackey of € 1.000000 tac 
= ILCPLC IDF Dayiarik guarantee decility of #5550 00 hata 

+ Comcit hire for doreard corrtract fecitiny of DGS Lace 

Severity 

Fn charge over entire current aseeis of the Company, both prevent and future on panini basa with Milahede Bark andl Anciee Bank, 
Mortgage on factory Land adiresawaring 21014 aceon and building fieduiirial miraaiructuee thereon stuabed ai iohea Boad, Musae Gouchi, dallaigarh Devtrict, 

Fatedabiaed, te Eon inated berteenar) Marnateke Lani ares Arocha hark, 

Bquiubls Mortgage of agricultural property afuated. at aire Wee 97) ran ALE min, 20 ad SE Willege Majokri, Tebill Yanan Vihar, Siew Deaths preserty 

ferred Plog Mio. AeA, Grand Weston Green, Major’, New Dethi aderenavering 2087 moved ttaedeg in the nema of My Achal Cotate Private Lirated 

Eedusiwe change on plant di machinery and other fined adeets biechuading weharies which are financed by other financial mutituticns|. 
Peponal Gaarsetees al My. (Nurerseat Surebus and Par Winhres Sarma 
Corponde quaracies of Wis Achal Ginates Private Lined 



Miura Udyog Lireted. 

eter te the rtandalone financial tatements for the yaar eeded March 11, 2075 

AP ereuetr ave 0 or Gece, urine anh ahora! 

Qeeng 0 severe bepoickty chem the commany i uncer finanoal cre and had detailed is repayment ered, of alorecaad Woes dad Theefice the aber bad 

been chastted a: Moe Penkeming Jaden (PAgiby ihe baskafleden. Mo provaion of interest hued been made afer the date-of claseifications of finan ap HA, 

Murmurs flank Lirreted hap aaodtiety aitigeed and Waniteted the above debt fo Prudiect AAC Lireted together wth all undeciying pecurty interests theceto 

ete all chair rights, tithe and interes in all agepermente deed: and donerments i relation te ar ls coeneeiion veth the geet fecbed 

The Company has entered inte a Dee Tiree Seetherient COTS") wth Protest ARC Lireted in the currest Srancial pear, dis per the denne ard conditars of the 

muni OTS, geval Piglet cP 119 Ba al lace: fewchaeding btenest of © 1904.77 Lard) han beeen setthed at an Gvteredt-lree aemceant of TBD 00 0 desi to be pall ethis, 

the fant four pears by the Company. Accordingly, © 4.66976 Lace has beer claciifeed under the bead “nos-purent berepwings” a4. a rettuchied Rabety of 
borrowing, being the preust volo of the sestuctened babwity in aecerdance wath bl AS 1S 

(ip. For eeplanation. on the Cormparsy's bquiebby rik managerrent poco, refer note 5, 

25 Other financial abilities (pom-current Ba at Aaa 
1, Dats March 91. 2add 

inane pores of eesrucired hatin of! bormwieg prefer fectecte) ava Len 74 

PREEEY ERETES 

Fosinoter 

O}. The Company hat esteced orig a Cine Time Settlement (OTS) with Prudent ABC Lirtied in the cuerent fieanclal yee da per the terra. and conditions of the 
sued OTS, total Rabity of © 10809 208 lacy deochucing ieberest of F 190M 72 les) ad been settled at ae inteieat-bee ammount of F A25650 lace bo be paid within 
tthe rene forar pears by the Company, Accordingly, 1 247049 Lacs han been classified under the head “other non-current nancial lisbilties” a1 a restuctured 
Gabllty of borrowing, being the present walue af the forgiven. Rabebty i accordance with lied 2h UL in cain the Company fala to mpay the cevtructoned 
Rorrgweng, The daed aront vill be payable along eth the revtructared borrowing liability, 

If), for explanation on thee Comparey's bgupeity ick rusagerert proce, refer mote 53. 

76 Prieand (posscurrent) Aig at Agate 

March 11, 2025 ferah 31, Bond 
rovisan for eeployes berate 

Prestameen fer geatuity freer ccste aj a5.99 THe 

[er Tit 
— —re 

ET Other nqr-querend liahiimies Anat Anat 
Faeech 30, EORE Faerch 30, PRES 

Delemed portion of neatructined Ratebry of borestng tele deren! LSVse RIPE 

1,515.48 4,i73.7H 

Panenne: 

Tha Company ha eriered into a One Tone Sethenent 7S") wth Peodent ARC Limited in the current Snencial ypmar, Au per the terme andi coreditiom of the 

aed COTS, petal Vidya 2 erg, feeding btereai el © 17 lca) has Epes petted at an invienett- free aoerst of ft B20000 bere to be pond etn 

the ramet dour pare by the Company, dincorcingly. F 1515.48 Lace has Geen clastified under the heed “other non-corend listelties”, being the deferred portion 
a? ibe peeuttured Gabibry in poeordare eth bed AG 005. in case the Company fads be repay tee eeatctueed eercerng, the ted arch wll be payatle 

glen with the nettructueed Gamoeing heblity 

Td. Borrevsiags (currintl Aa at Ba atl 
mM 1. hot, Deda 

Secured 
Werkong eapetal Ioan 

“Pree beavis Grete Cegingte 4 te ABLES 

‘Caerent matertio ef eng-leem borrowing 
from athens 1,100.09 or 0 

Urmrcer ed 

From related parties ineter nate $0) i fogincte iii era? fale 
From otheen dea iret 

T216.81 EABZT 

Foobeoten: 

0. Getadls of erorbiag: qapical iaaeg frees banka 

Larodier'y Harem Rabe of evteresi Linnit Anat Agat 

Haueng Gevelooment Finance Corporation 
Leswted Aigder foot note (A) By ae 
WORE! Bark 



Marcia Udyog Limitns 
Motes to the riaedat fia ind wit a fee the year enced BAarck 01, 0225 

AY arraaet ts are on daed, aan atte! atPeroinel! 

A. Term Loan from Houting Sewelapment Finance Corparation Lierited 

During the financial year 2005-16, the Company had taken a long term nan bom Maupin Dewlogmert Finance Comperation Liniied of F SOOL00 Lace an per 

agreement dlted poly 31, 2005, The ceding balance of cad inan in TA and © BCBS Lees, at at Meech FY, 2S Be Wiaech 31, BODE reipectively. 

fabereet Fate 

Ths baa camaes Fleas rate cf iepeenat at KORO S EPL pajedied Ine spread. 

Alepayment 
Tha leas ip repayable is 197 equal menthly inaialermens of FEES Lace Grechating istereai) each staring Irom August BM), 2005 and gayeble vl Agel 30, 2007, 
Hiowenwer, She compary opted for early closure a of heptersber bel, Bid 
Chingy bo tevers eqpascity crises the company if under feancial diner and hun defeuked in tepaymertfierscing of alenmiaid lean and theeefore the garten ad 

(been clasofied aa Non-Performing Assets (MPAs) by the bare lenden. Mo prion. of interest bon been macde after the cate of clasuificstion of loan on WA 

Co-bonwerern 

Nfs Dhue Procerten Peivute lirreibedl, Aira. Paar Lins Surcha Mi. Viuhie Sureka and Mra. Deepa Sureka 

Secusity 
Equitable iMortguge of Property by way of diecast of the tthe deed i= neipect of the agecuura Land aimeusving 62 Bagha cut of Mhacera Mig, 911 rrent- 

By Wa) aed Ta RS Oh, thawte ot Villeye Rapetoes, Teh Varad Whar, Mew Qetd cama by Mi, Boma Properties Private Lived, 

The Company after negetabocs har anfened ining wo Choa Tiree Settlement (OTS) with Houtitg Oevelopment Finases Cotporinen Lined wide settherrnet 
lather dined farrabey 31, DOO. Ad per Ose bend asd conditions of the sake OTS, total babdity of 6 2.003007 face has been wetted ot © 2,640.00 lace to be paed 
belore September 29 2024 by the Company The Company hag dechueged € SO0000 lace at on the prnicun year balance dheet dite . The Company has pad 
the bblance payee of 21550000 leek der egqetiiees eth the Bari 1s be pued aleng eth avterem pated dung the financial year, 

0 Tern Loan free Hewing Qevelopeent Finance Conporstion Lenited 

Charing: the financial pear 2002-0, Fe Company had taken a loog term loan bom Hou Development Gaande Competes Lewted af © 2900000 Lact an pe 

agreement dated April 26, 8312. The closing badass of died Foam ta 21202 are EU) Lanes, aa at Miler 0D 200s Mech Bf, 20 rerpectnonty, 

interen nate 

Tht oan caries fipgting cate of brerent at APLA~ 1 Se oo 

Repay 
Tre loan is repayable in 155 equal monthly invtalments of © 31.43 Lact fineiuebng inierevt) exch stecing from bay 1, 2017 and payable ll March 1, 2025 

Hewes the conguey opted for early chagane on of Septernibee |, 2004. 
Chasing ne aeeere Iepuedty one the company a under Ginascial pire and has Selalied in nepiprenl detect af afotesied Ioan aed thenelone the came haw 

been dlisted a: Noc-Pedorming Aide's INPAaI by the Banka tenders. No penvision of avtenert has been made otter the date of classification of lege as MPA, 

Que to claviification of afeeusid lean as HPA, Housing Development Finance Corporation Limited has recalled entite cuimanding principal amaunt of wed 
lene and all the other changes ching interest and penal icheent puryuble thereon. Theretane. f has bees whody dasefied an current boitowerga. 

toborcswer 

Wi, Mareeed rei, Fry Bhama Propartien Private Limited. Me. Pree Lata Gaetan, Mr Vishnu Sones ond Men Oenea Suntan. 

Equtable Morigage of Property by way of deposit of the title deeds in mapect of the agricultural Land ad mmiuting 12 Bigha out of Rhagers Mo. PEs timingt- 
W902 /5-5) and SESE, aieaned at Village Rapokari, Tebad Vanart Vihar, Rarer Ded ceed by My Brame Propeciong Prevate Lorited 

The Comeany ater negotigtions has esteed into a Gne Time Settkenent POTS) th Howting Oevelopment Feance Corporates Lireted ede petilenent 

lemter dabed jangary 1, 2024. Aa per the terres and conditions of the snd OMS, total Rabelity of f 2008207 lace hae Geers settled at © 2,050.00 Lei te be pal 

before Sesteeber 29, 2024 by ihe Company The Company hau dincharged T9000 acs aa on the previoun year balace chert date. The Company bon paid 

tbe balance payment of #154000 een after negotiates with fhe Bani tp be pad along eth avteneit pad during the Mrancial year 

@ The company hae taken loan for working cagetal frees related paerty which han beeen carpal eee) 

fig. For explanation on the Cennpumy’s bqquichty rik management peened, rele none 5. 



Maria Udbyoay Lirntied 
Mates to the wiasdalone flnaacial riftemests tee the year evaded March B1_ 775. 
AV amon ace? in dec, ondieer alates! oftecriney 

29 Teaehe paypelbled Anat nad 
Mare ¥1, 2025 March 11 tad 

Trites pirpabilirk, host 
ote cuterdiag dyed of reco aed mall enienpreek, (raler none dB pie] VT 

total outitanding duet of creditor: other than mecra and onal evierpripes AUB Te Sar 

£otees SS 
Footnote: 

OF). Trade payable: ciher thas due ho MiMLs are eor-inieees] bearing ged ane necmaby settied in he Company's apersnng cece 
fp. Fhe Company's expoure tocarrency and lquidity cigs ore cierkased in note $1 

Tracts papeen mpeg, 

Anat Aba 

Alarchs 11, 2rd March £1, 20d 

Dear to micro: ued! err eaterponena 
(Leea than | year avis Vira! 

Eset to ether 
(Lew than | year Chase aaTe2 

<2 nara ayes Litas 

203 yaar TES 4 

tore than J yearn ted 158516 
ned 6000.92 

10 Gther firencial Rabie feurrenti Aa a vb a 

March 11, d0n8 March 31, 2004 

inbnee atteeed but aot du on bergeangy a0.EE Ea] 

Ugloyes celsind puryatien Waa Nabe 
Payable fer cacital geoda a] nn 

TORTe D4heT 

Footnote: 

Fee eeplanatien on the Conparyy's bipaiity rick management peosnera, reler rete hi. 

44 Previtiocs [eurrest) Anat An at 
March 31, D875 March 1, 1074 

Prestiion Hie amplegin bien ith 
Presta far qeatueny [rete gts 23] eT 14 

Dat 196 

12 Other current lisbilitien An at aa, 
March 91, D825 Murch 1 Dare 

Unpaed dovedheseda irafer nent 5) am oso 

adeances eed pes aan AT? 
didwance tor ale of land 1 itn 

Statutory Guan Saryalbbe: ik __ fies 

ae 0 Heed ba 

11 Current tan Eevbilitien Saal Anat 
Pdaevh 10, POS Fderch 54, RRs 

Current barr frant of achrance tam aad 
oa = 

2M Advance received agaizat sourt held for sole Aa all fa at 

March 11,2035 Marche 34,2024 

Advance reorived agalsst avuet held dor aake (refer note 20) oo te 
Pe Leak 14 

f SOTO, Se 
° ay ks a, ees 



‘Maura eyed Lierted 

Mates te the standalone Tesneiel statements for bbe pear eeded Puech 11, 202% 

Mlameurde ane Fr tacn, andere atahea offerte! 

14 Rawenue from openstinns: Ferthe yearerdied = For ihe year ended 
March 10, 2025 Marck 11, 2074 

dale of preducte 
Marwfacturing goode nu) VA es) 
Tracing goede Pile 1MaT 

Sale of servings 
Jeb work char pen had Ba] 

Qt ipealny hue 
Ei pce wetereeved el ie 

Sate ef gers 219095. 12a a 

aA USR2 
Information pexpuired ae pee lisa AG 1S: Forthepesresded = For the year eroded 

Pdaech 34, book Aderch, Ey 

Diath seid inflge ation Wo per gQeographecal markets 
Ghreereae from customer bared ie bnchia 91,195 25 B.5e7o4 

ieeerue from cuptomen bared gebrce ingia, My ETEOS 240162 

Tasting of revenun necoqnitian 

‘Traeeteern id wt a pont 1m) Lie aQerti i 11,0706) 

Trada eecenebiee and covtract soetesfiaeiiniel 

Trade rece eben Ling Li0e.B! 

Perlormaede eblighten and remaining pecformance obligation 
There are no ferusrong performance obligato. for the year enced March 91, 2025, a5 Oe gare is datehed upon delevery af qoodi/ serene. 

36 Other income For the yearended = Far the year ended 

March 11, 135 March 11, Peta 

Rental iuccene (refer mates: 50 ard 2 | 5b "58 
Comendyion ingome Vat 7S 

Incooma com cettlerment of bawrasarg . Whe 
Sierest preparer: 

en income han retuned " 153 

ven ied Genes and mange sorry 12595 mi 
DE as | 160 oBS 

Oidend income noe ops 
iRiuritce chem - ESEUBS 

Prahe on dale a? ofoneb Ty. plant and aout i. a0 
foreign exchange fhureabon gait Mal LE Lt] 

Kiabdides ine llonge: required written back 4675 Vib27F 
Prowaions no longer required written Ewack ‘ Li 

Mincellerepcus incre kFy Bea 

LURE cule. 

QT Gort of material convened Foo the year enced Por thes eur ended 

March 31, 2004 March 11,024 

Opening sinck BAIRD azitaa 
Bdd: Purchases incuding preooeting charged [eter feted Sth Freel Aik 160 42 

era: Checing aneck on 9) pea FRA 

LE 

Wh Purchases of riock-in-~irade for the your ended For the year ended) 

March 11, 2005 March Baga 

Raw maternal imu ss 
5806 [dade 



Massria Udyog Lienited 

Nober to the cndslane financial autements foe the pear ended March 21, 2005 
St noon ae Fo ere, eer eluted otters! 

ES Churepes in inventories 

iewenteries at beginning of Lhe yom 

Steck -in-trace 

Werk-in-proqreta 

Senp 

leveeeibarten at aati af the rae 
Shock intra 
Frevhed queda 
Werk n-ereginia 
Somap 

(Met Gecreguey/ |irecreune| is leer ecerien. 

40 mployer benedit expence 

‘Salary, mages, Dereed ered alice 

Ceo conbuben oo preadent ard otha haves (Refer none 45) 

atey aed beard encarherent (Refer note te) 

Stat are’ labour wellare 

41 Finance conte 

Deen! eects 

an berosrege 
Finaree income on deferred porton of loan (rele roten 26 and 27 

~ on late payment of ctututoey cue 

42 Depewciation seed emortieation experia 

Depreciation on geopery. plard area equipment inefer node Th 
Amortnaten of intangible assets (refer note 4] 

kpace intprbioralily het dian 

Forthe yrarended = For the yrar ended 

March 51,2825 March 31, 224 
eB) Sa.11 

1az. ial 2 

a2 oot 

216 Tat 

5 54.93 Oe eh 

pies es) pee] 

1 4.02145 

Liat athe 

fae] 21.16 

FRITETI eres 
——e FL S| En are 

For the yor ended For the peor ended 

March 51, 2005 March 91, 23d 

Pa] Lie 

51.78 si 

Fst] ae Bt 
bea Te 750d 

euaat i321. 

forthe yaar anded for the poor ended 

March 31, 2a05 Marek 11, 174 

hae 1 ea 
Be0 i657) 

li tie 
HI ERECRI 

For the year ended For the year ended 
March #1, 2005 March 31, Dodd 

20160 ana 

ia? 140 

12407 ad 



Mauria Udyog Limited 
Notes te the rtindalore fieuncial otobements for the pour ended Maech 11, FO0R 

Ml emouedn ane fy fare uedlery stated othenetie! 

40 Other expenoee 

Staten, epaees, foods, oh, huSncants and packing raterish ponpened 

Freight and doewarding (ret 
Commeanen bed dese charges 

Printing ane plationery 
dddvertigemect and publicty 

Testing and inapection chargers 
Postage and telachors charges 
Legal aed peoheisteal epee 

Fist and aubieriptiond 
Cot ewperces and daswtord peter nate a7) 
Bark 

Leet ocala of RDSTCL aed MOS ee 

Repay and maieieeance of 
fiant and machinery 

“Balers 

Others. 

Rermureratees to wuditorn Ineter footnote 

Denecher ating feet 
Previn on anpeta 

Balances writen oH 

Mandlanecud perie 

Fr tregbe] 

Payment of rereaneration bo adiborg (emcluding GST] 

+ eahutory wack 

» Ta aude 

44) Exceptional iter 

Exceptional Heres 

Fea bates 

Refer pete 11 

4%) Leming per chore 

fi) Reconciliations of gaming: used & calculating maeniegs pre share 

Radic earrings per chore 
Profit bom continuing operation attebutable to the equity ihane holders 
Pref attributable be the equity holders af the company used by calculating bade and dileted sarrinaja 

per chore 

fc] Weighted average number of shires ised a9 the denqmieator 

Weighted wentage umber of equity dhanti uded dd he caveminane im calqulaling Guaic and diluted earning 

per Dare 

An pregent the Compacy does not have any dilute pobental equety ahate. 

Far the pear ended Boe the pear erated 

March 4t, PERS filench J, 2 00td 

aS01 4) RYPM4d 

zen as ESS 
TLS eraay 
aga 7 
50 428 

Bee hal 52a 

rt) aay 
41 e555 

mo a6 
ari oe 1 166 

Pas ie 2162.05 
1 | 

ial wt 

ioo7 11.08 
mo rag, 
18.4 nego 
2m oF 
id 54.35 

Ly wal 
eo? a 

a4 Lg 

aL pug 
117.849 4 

6 Be an 
7 00 
ont oo 

aa 140 
5a os 

3 aco 
TAL P121 T1846 oo 

"Far tht yearended Far the year ended 
Marth fir mans March Lim bird 

io “00 
150 Luba 
700 io 

March H1, bat5 Marth 31, Dre 

1 aS EES * 
1a5 004 Fj 

For the yrarended For the pear endedl 
March 91, 7025 March 91, Dard 

eu 128 

1aeT? (ATL 

1,820.97 67Lae 

LE Fae sho VO



Paani Uehyteg Lirnitedl 

Mabes to the stasdulene Enanqial statements for then year ended Murch 91, 2025 
(AV arounts ane Eoin darn aruenr etatedt olnereiee) 

40 Costinges! Rabid and comm trieats Aa at Anat 

Maech 1 PETS March 31 Dodd 
‘Dethegnes Batelities 

‘Clitma aquinet the Company net dtienowvbedged ian debt 

Surety Bord taued in fareour of Haryara Daten Tax Oepartment iowarce VT anced carnival pubes tard lability od a third 200 Fas] 
Barty Ph Balas nginapeng ales tae mathe 

income tam aren under dispyhe Mrechudag cvbenkie) 786293 pa) 
Derwed under Good and service lor 

Comments 

Gilimated amount of comtraris pemuening fe be mercuted on capital account not provided dor inet of capmal 

aeivarena of 72 5G lca (Meech 31, BOS: 12195 laced 

Cependiture om COR actianien 

bie ‘ 

10s 

Aa per Section 10h of the Companses diet, 213 read wth quidelrm iaued by Gepartmens of Poblic Enterprises, the Company i requied be igend in every 

financial par, at leadt fest per dent of the average net profity of the Company made during The three imeediately preceding financial years in accordance with its 
(C50 Pokey. The detach of CEE expences for the year ane as ured 

Particulars Match Mi, 2625 March 01, 2004 
4 Gg aru nepuered bd be iperd by the Company dung the pear 140 = 

i danger ape dort the pear of: 

+ Ceerincieniecaucien of any midet a 

(08 panmoeti other than 0) above 1450 

1C The arneuet of ahortlall af the end of the year cut of the amount requeed to be peri by the Company during - . 
the year, 
©, The total of pepsicay years” shartisl aeoanits: ‘ rj 

L Theeegane fpr abore shortlalls bey may ef a rte: . . 
0 The nature ofCSR acihstees ureieciahes by te Company. . . 
G. The Company has. eepest amount of Rc Mal (March 31, 2004: Ba Nil bo be cieried formard ard pet off aqainat : 

hg Aeguirerentt bo ipend under sub-section [i] of uection 11% up to lewnediate qucceeding tree Enarcial tar. 

Details of reload party inetdictiond, ag, contribution to a inet contralied by the company in relation io CBE a = 

sopenditure ap periind AS 24, Melated Party Disclgsones. 

ath Cietioaunes relating te suppliers registered under Micro, Snail and Medium Enterprise Dewelop act, 2008 
‘Aaat fin at 

Adiwrete 14, 2005 Aberch Fi, dada 

The principal amount and the incenett dua thereon remreng ungaed to ory MOME pamper ad al 1M and of mbo 
ecco biny par Heche te: 

Srieggal aren, dat io rrecro and gall bepress Ete] Tai 
intent des on shows 2 . 

The arround of eeoerest pad by the bunpet on tera of dection 16 of then MED ACT 2006 along with the armcunia - - 

ef the payment made to the seppier beyosd the apeainhed day durisg wach arnountng year 
The aSeunti of the payment ice to mero and amull iupplien beyood the appointed day during wath i + 
a a 

The arncust of ivtereit dus utd payabhe far the paar of delay in making piyrend (whech hawe been pied but . . 
‘beyond the appartment day during the year) but without adding che inbeect upectied under the UkMaC Act, 
2035 

The argued of interned! accrued and remaining wepaid af the end of ach accounting year. - * 

Tha armaund of further bees) nemuaieang doe ard payable ewan on ihe wicca yeard, antl wach dite what the . . 

intered! chuti ai abort ate actually paid to thar imal etbetpeae fot the purpoon of dhuallowsnee ad a deductible 

unde pecan 2).of the MiMID Act 2008. 

PLLA i can A 

490 Employes beoentity 

1 Defined contr ior ples 

The Cempasy mikes coctribotierd, detiesined bi a ipediied cercentage of empleyre salaries on HRapECT af qQualiteng employees towards peoaderd dungl labour 

are changed te the sutement oc! probe asd log a9 ey oor 

Fepenee aneiee defined panteibetion plane inched’ For the yeareded = For the year ended 
Faaech 10, PETE Faaech 01 Ped 

Prqwkipet and other have S178 5236 
= 1,78 aT 

a 

Sie Repsucat



Aura Weg hotbed 

Motes te the tandalare Tuancial statement) for the year erebed flarch 41, 2024 
08 areeuets are Foon dec, ued ofated ofthese! 

Cafined benefit plane 

Gratuity 
The Company operates a poit-enplopment defined beewit plan for Geabuty This plan entities an employes 10 reveter Rall mesth'a aalary lor mich yout of 
eompltted aercee al the time of ceticementiedit 

The prevent whe ol obligation Hi deterred baded Gn dtfudral valuation using the projected wnt onedia method, wherh ecopnae mach period of uence an 

pvt) ote be additional employes bene! enotlemend and meqanuned Heth ued deparately to bud up the Snal obligaton. 

Themor repent achaatal wahution of ples diieth and the preeent value of the defined bereft obligation tor qratuity sere cated oul aa al March ¥1, 2024 The 

revert valve of the defined Genel obhqahon and the relabed cuerenl pefdoe dog] and pint wecrice cost, wens meagured uting the projected unl credkt erethgd, 

(Net defined benefia lability ‘Anat ‘Aga 

Pbarch 14, 2025 Adar 19, 2004 

rent value of obhigaboos TTLs4 17h 

Fie wahue: of plat duets (4, ha ESb5) 
Tatel erpisiee beret eblitier Tina 1a 

Mos—norent rom vial 
Currectt: 7a Fed] 

Rerannliation of (he ned defined benefit lhaitility 
larch F1, 2005 

(Defined benefit Fair value of Met defined bene 

—_ eiligation lan aniria Tenet Habits 

Beipees af fe begireng of Stan year Take as 1ae52 

Inchuaded in prin ee boas 
Curent ierrcs cont te] = ty 

Denes Ded! cee) ths? * His? 
Expected retum on plan arene : 182 (ay 

1,07 i 
inchaded in O01 . bi a. 

Rerreaurenenia tov igani 
= Aetodel lean Ogun arieing freee 2 ‘ . 
> feancot aS - ELE 
- demogupher sapumstinns - “ - 
penne sduibert My ou pas} 

Rare Oe Db BEL ddludieg ness nore : . . 

[hE bay S05 be 
‘ther 

Contrinutions paid by the employe - . ' 
Benefits pard ee a) [PhGi] 

iin) ie.a4) 25.51) 
Balance af the end of the year EEL ET. iT 145,81 

March 11, 202a 

Defra bene Fake vale et Ail defined brncia 

—cbtioation plan muri Lanai Fiability 

Badass at thee Gesgherireg of the nar {sae suo) wae 

included bv profit ee haan 
Custertt earrice oot: 2845 . TBa5 

Wate ood Tet) 11.88 = 18 

Lapected reper oe plan opete 7 Pal wa 

45 Leal 1612 
Urea tired bt OO 

Aerregannerrpcty borg (gas) 

+ Actuanal lov [gain) ariing from: 
= Firesetiad dete uproot: ert - Mh 
-pErence adpesirmpet, aeoaty oF aE 

14,45 ar 14d 

Othe 

Coeinbubors. pacd by the employer z ond testy 

Berebta pad, SEES) [20 en, 
£26.25] ra (20.40) 
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Mlsutla Lidyog Limited 
Mipten tothe stardalees fieertiel atatermenta for the year oded March Wi, 2025 

CF anouats are Fon ded wdess staan onhereniey 

Eqpenses ineteqmised ie the Statement of Pref and Low forthe year anded = For the year enced 

Aionchs FI, 200% March Fi, 7074 

(Curent aerece cost 1a mas 

Met ivtereet cost Taal Lhe | 

Expected tturn on plan ante Te Ma 

© Plan avests 
The: olan aspen of the Cempey ane rumaged by the Life iiurimer Oorpociteers of edi through 2 trun maaeped by the Company in terms of an inane 

Policy talonn to fund obligations of the Company with respect to Re qratalty pan 

Flan aes Comore of Ie follwing. Sierehs F12025 of Plan oonete Hares 11, 200M Sof Plan saeebe 

func managed by inoue Se 1s. 5665 ore 

An see -labity rancheny dtudy ot dove by the Company os de defraud! Bidet, whereby the Company contibutes the net increage inthe acted babdity bo the 

(lan manager ev ocder to manage tha liability rk, 

Do Actuarial siauenptions 
The principal asumetonn ore She diecount rate and pala qrewth ahh The daecant rate ot based upos the market yield avadable on qowernment bosds at the 

aoreuning date veth a ten that etched thar of Gabitaen Salary increase tate takes ints of inf 1, pEboriby, on aed oe eewent laches on 

feng ‘term ius. ValuaSon weumpbons ane on follgws whirh howe pen selected bey the Company 

Fd i, Zee a 

Ohueoart race Ba 12% 

epeceed pate of Ature gulary oneemacian ore hOO% 
Eaerbed tae of ative Tos Lot 
Aebeartality MLM fond Bahl 200d ba 

Eo Sesaitivity anabys 
Aenonably porcble changes af the reporting dane bo one of the eelewanl dttuarial dioumptieni, holding other aeiurtptions coontaet, would have oAected the 

defeed benef cbligution by the amounts shew below 

March 31, 202% March 11, 2024 

Deartaet. Deereser, Jecrrane Decreases 

Daconant cate (1 00% receerient) 11 e032 4 m4 
Future aullary qroeth (10058 movement) 180.25 116 m159 VTS 

Withdrawal tobe () 0095. cement] 1051 1706S 187.65 186 Sa 

ARbough the anahms doer not take accounts of the All depiribestos of cach Glows expected ueder the plan. a deci pide an appeomraten of Oe denetieity of 

thn adearnetord dhe. 

Berareiiies du te morality ci ret mateial are here erpact of change is fet calosleted, 

Serafewiees ai to cube of inflates, cape of inertia of perdions in payment, rate of meas of peo before nebeemet aod life expectancy are not applicabin 

being a hump mum bereht on reticent, 

Deocriptien of Ride Exposures: 

Velewtaen one Bacio on perlaen adiurretions whic’ are dyna in saber aed vary over tem Aa quch te Comper i eepsoed to varced tribe ao teflowd: 

M1, Salary increases; Achzal valery increases wil inceegae plan's habdity, Increape in salary increase rote aavermpSon em future veluations wll alec mecrmaue the 

bi J 

‘bh Pevertireed pty Hf ples og hered then acces atelties méseranc® i erieall oyeerirepen rena on adgets ieee than fe ceepourd rade agpaed af the luat 

th. (facet nvtec Aedecbos i decor aie Ah sudoedquert wiludlion Gee cree ae lesa lat. 

od). Mortality A dinsbli: Actos! deaths A dmabdity chemi proving lower ot heghet thas daeerned bn the within cat eripact the livbibbes, 

aL, Withdeewall: Actual eethdrewals proving higher of lower than aidurred eethdiamah and change of eethdidewsl rrlis al debdequEel valuabens ces pact he 

obs 'a Sabet 

ff. Cupected murturity analpueof the defieed benefit plana im fature youre 

Gurstion of dened bereefit obbeqation Asad Aa mt 

Maree 11, 2005 Marek 11, 2804 

Lage than 1 pear mu rt] 
Berean Tz year a1 B67 

Between 2-5 yearn 400 ET] 
‘Creer 5 year whee iio 
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‘Mauris Udpog Limited 
(Noten to the rtondaloes financial slaberernis for the pear ered March 11, D225 

(ienounis we Fis Gee unlecr stated athens! 

BE Detadh ol related party banaa tions mead Desir outstanding balance receivable or payable ore aa below: 

fature of related party Depariiptices Velume al braeaartion =i 

— eres year _| |__Cureeet year | Prevleca gear | Corneet year | Previgua year | 
Enietprdet in which parton, who i ft aver, Sate of qoock and other Serra. 10% 16 1 Fits = 

lise Coan hve spalncant nftenen alate HOF 2 Ere ASSLAT POE : 5 

Labour changes pod a270 ety is E é é 

Sidhe of orretabrreenea: EELEIS 127 ae - = 

Pafthaae ol restr : Oak 7 7 
ie 16 16505 = . - a 

B76 = 5 ' 7 . 

ited 06a as - “ aa 7 251.70 
SEES 22025 . . r " 

7 57.00 7 ' 1 . 

Tras 28188 re = - ee] 

2a oo Lia 170033 LSo1 . ' 

hh190 taal : 

16800 = 5 1a . : 

cor Tad = : : : 
180 i ‘ Tas rT 

Key manajement peniannel eeto0 : z 

350000 = 5 T0758 = 

“aii ai : aa7 aay] 
E=t0 Tas = : 1a HL] 
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Marcria Udyog Lime 
Motes fo the dia! financial for the year ended March 141, 202% 

AP ern ae Fs Ge amines guano neaie! 

$1 Opersting segeeria 

Ao Dodds Per Sep eats 

Segment inlernatios ii pimiethed if feipect ef thi Compara a bey operiting ieqmerti. Tha opiriing HQ Setld ane Biied of The Company) Munepenendt andl 

intemal reporting structure, The chef operating deceion maker identifies primary peqeecte based on fhe dominant pouree, natere of cis and reper and the 

internal otgatiuition and managesent aruchute The operating segnenti ate the regrets fer which septate Francia infewnation is available and fer which 
cpeviing peoltfiog amounts one evalosted nequiady, Al operating eeqmanie’ operating remit. are nevaewed ceqularty by the Board of Direction to make 

decaicni aboot feiouites to be Bada led to (he aegetwsti ard kines thie olor 

The Dood of Ceectors” hawe been identified op the Chie! Operating Oechion Mater (OODMT), since thery are resporible for all major decwon wok thir 

peepadtioe ad emmcuten af buiifesd Guin, prepieiien of budeel plinies]. empanies, WERE pMet refuge! ad EOQeEtiON and expanune of any 

tacdiry 

The Board of Cerector wearrones the Company pecloetiance from bodied dative pebteectre ard Mave wlesthed the (ollewng recortable aegrat of its 

ae 

Agpartabhe apgeenta Seeeliess, a 
Mirufachirong Thin mainly inghides marefactuning of LPG cylinders, valve, 

Pegubtcey, teewele 

Tracing This mrupely iechadea trading af ered! plates 

1 infareation shout mgoracin wegmente 

Degen suet, pagent buasditees and Seqeent pect and leas ace maupaned m the dare ray dein the Gnaceial ae 

iformution regarding the rule of each recottable eegaent ti included below. Performance iy measured based on pegment profil (before tax), an inchudied inthe 
heel munpsent REDE That are neice by the Company's Board of Girectorn egret peodt in une bo eeagore performacce at Sanageret betieres 

that vech infermatcs in the moet celewand in mabludling the tenuis of cern bepereris elated fo Otay entities that aperabe within these onduatries. ieter- 

ng rRL peti, HP amy, i Genera on a errr s lenges bass. 

Foe the year ereded March 31, 2075 = Tatal 
‘Manulecturing 

Seqrent revenue 146 4.57 pet] 

Bentetue From aclernal fedhernrs 40071 eb auaT 40,873 

Segrent aut 22s 610 27216 
Tetal peetiifitose) before tau dor reportable eegrmants TaTh ae (his 2201.4 

Other inenera, 6eag 
Exceptosadl neces Laas 

Ferecg eTe (REG) 

Profit bedoow tax Landaa 

Tam epee Pe) 

Peg hit after tas VAPETT 

Other comprehenmwa (lead Ls 

| Tanal comprehensive Income aS FE 

| heqreant besets 25,108.64 nia iae HARE EE 
Jraiole appre bP ca 
Total wont. 40,045.46 

Sebprrebeg beaditakt 13,657.59 TE Ves 

Unatocatle babe, Pa Ae ah 
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Mibu peg Liritbed 

Sietea tothe whinpdlalors Geaeechal shaterenria for the poar eeded March 91 PREY 

BLT seer ane Po deed us Tee! Ores! 

Fae the peor ered Marah 31, 2072. 

Segment! nue 
Foreenue from ceqerral qudhernesn 

Segment. cemulta 

Total profi lows) before tao fee repeetabte vege nia 
Other income 
Fisunce crt. 
Profit bafare tax 
Tan! exparieed 
Peet af tae 

Other qompeehertreg income 
Total comprcberabys income 

Seger abies 
Unaliocable aisets 

Total rants 

Segrnant Rabebties. 

Unaocabls lawns 
Total lisbilitern 

C. Geogrepile information 

Manufacturing Trading Lad 

3137625 BEE EF) TESG3.63 

TEETe Wa TL Soh ie 

ges m25) io 
Laat 2a] Ta 

0 
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1162.02 
43104. 
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TASEOE 

oS 08 DG ted 7a1heT 
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oe 

VST This VETS aT 

ait 

Prag 

The grogtaphe ae mabon anahged the Comeany's preted afd noe~currest aiden by the Company's country af cameos in other cqustreen, in presenting fea 

(tear oipmaion, segment neegnug hay been based on the geogephir location of corbomen and upqrant avet were bined on fhe Qeogniphic locuten 

of Rhee caseta. 

The Company ib desiited in bredig. The arround of do revenue toe external ceatgeneey broken den iby location of the quetemenn ie dhs beloer 

a] Foartued from diferent geagraphies 

\Wrthin bred 

Quisde nds 

Wether brezig. 
Gutude indie 

"hien-quinent avsetn other than financial ieairarmenti and defersed tae aniets. 

6, Majer cortoerer 

Forthe yoarended For the year ended 

Sdarchs 21, 2625 March 31. Deda 

V5 28 BSEPO1 

TLGFE0% Pra 
4057015 30.5096) 

MST 

For the yearended Far the year enaded 
March 11, 2025 March 91 bors 

4001 BS 

ETS, b7 Tara 

Rirwneue Troe trassaciions with exberal cathe amoucting to 80 percent or mone of tha Domngaesy's revert ty a4 ipllosre 

forthe year ended March 81, Do25 
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Miguria Layo Limibed 
Sefer to the rtandal Fmarcial for the year ended March 81, Doers 

MP aessuets ace fin decd uti aan! otter! 

42 Lease 

Leones an a leser forthe yoarended far the peor edad 

(Mares B1 da0d March #1, Done 

Alertal income fom aviett qevesi oo: opeeating leave (neler fsotnotay poi Ee 
AS! FORE 

Bee broste: 

Tha Camnpurry haa geen a part of its factory Gand and budding situated af Sohaw Redd, ope. Shite Sai Bharat Petroleum Purp, Seenar 5%, Faedabad, Hanyarae 
1210s to dollowting partes: 

Markuewict bncis Prreate Lituted a ahha 

Be leech Fagheneg Rated Prite Lirretind im Ling 

Taarg Fastions ireckay Prewate Lietied on 24g 
Chuality Sprthetica Induatries Limited, Pr] Bat 
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ere TT 
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Poaseria Udhyseey Lineal 

Mobes to the tandalone Hnanclal Matermests for the pear eroied March 11, 2018 
ST etoon haar Fon ete onder elated! oft! 

50 Fair value meacurement and financial etree 

A). Finuneial invtratienta = by categeey itd fair values hieraechy 
The dobiowing table whows the carrying senomts are (aw value of fnarcasl an ete dev firuescial Dabelinaed, brotha Ther bewels in the Tier valu Mienarciy, 

hee Carrying value Fair value m nent ug 
| ba declan _FyTort | Amertiond oot Tatal kevel I Lareell E Level 3 
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Madar Witprirg Rin bel 
Merbew to the dalana fi inl Fie foo the yenr erated Masch 21, 2025 

OMT enous aon Fin Gace used sta fed otras 

RL Uquiddity rink: 
icp tik i Shon nisin Ghat the Compaey ell eecunte: déGculty in meeting the obbqabons astocated aeth ib. francial listlities Phat are tetiled by delivering cath 

srancther financial aro, The Comeary': aperoach bo manage laquedny iho aru, at tar as peettsbe that ot all bara dutticamen baquecity ti meet Me haben when 
they are dalen dud unde! beth poral aed ditedaed cendiiess, wthoul inturtiag unbctmptable hoised of riking damage to tha Commpeirry's pepulation. 

Thee Cornpary beetrena that fr Gquidiny postion of 0 22196 lace aa ad dare 34, BOOS felarch 91, 20d: BS. 1d leek) and en aetinpeted tunure inmecrally generated 

fends hom operations well enable i fc reeet iin duture hewn obligation. in fee orcknary courte of banana wenept certain borrowinge, 
The Company ti under Gnascial aired ard has delinlied if repkynentserdcing ef certhin borrowings and is actvely puriuing te lances ler 
nestrocturing reucheduling of noch borrowings to waned an enicamd lquadity risk, 

rudect bquidity risk mandkgemen imple aentering suffinent coh ard ruretable gecuties acd the imlabeity of bundieg through af kiequite atounl of ced 

othe: io mest obliggtera when che The Compary'e polboy oo ip cegolarie mnsor bn quidity eequirements fo ermuee that & cadeiales ilficierd eeeecerd of cath 

ed handing oem Company corrpareds to mapet i Bquedity peqeeemmesis om fee doe ered ler tern 

Thy Compacy't kquidety ranagerenst peecets dt manrioced by managerteed, eeludes the feileemrs: 

~ Day today fusdiag managed iy enentaring feture cash flyws to evnane that eequdrements canbe met 
+ Miairaining refing donecania of the Company's bquedity position on the baa o! expected cath Moai. 

Copan auire te Nbgnsidity rake 
Folloming are the timipning éottractudl maturctieg offnarcial bubdtted al the repating dite 

Aaok Maech 31, Deed c 

‘ Keen thao Behanen one ta: More Bhar Total 

ane year Sire yearn eve years. 

formwings cE eB Ta hb 563.73 - pee] 
Trade parpabled TL) beings + = BP IOBS 
\Ceher financial listebtenn 31472 Ha2 za724) : ABA 72 
Total iT TFT Ths a TAT : FERITRG| 
Aa et March 11, Dita Caryl _ ee 
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Marie rik do the ink that the Arture cast flea of a financial insinwmert wall thoceate Geciuee of changes i mace! pried. Market cam comprines three types of rink 
ieee rate risk, quency risk and other price rith, the Company mainty had expecuee to Ten Qype of market rink named: currescy risk andl inienest rade sith, The 
obpectres of market rik managereet 1 io musdge and Comino! racket rink exponen eethin acoeptible pare mebers, while apirnimng the return 

a, Iybprenh rane rink, 
Dreierwal. rate fark Gh thee rth: that the ighuee cach flo of a financial initrd will Pechaee eecaueg of changes in marbort oieneil nite. The Cospery't muon tenet 

rate rik prim from long-term batewstgi with variable rales which mqpoue the Company to-cash Pew boner rane tai 

Digamere ta arent rote ride 

Cash flow eensteeay asalytis dee wariablerute inctrumenia 

The senuithty anudjiet below have bees determined based on the mmpcoere So intened! rates at the end of the reporting period 
Fee eating cube habditen qmcept fot the (berrewings aqaeret which nea orrtenent Gabibty of bairey oneeegreded, the segue 9 prepared adgurreng the areal a Phy 

lability outitandhrey at the ered of fhe reporting penod wia outitasding Hav the whole year AQ bash: point inereaee eo decree is ueed when reporting interned! rate 
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Mweris Udyog Limited 
Mabes Se he itkndalone Gaancial Ateterments for the yeor ended March 11, Poo) 

Sf amounts are Fon dace anders stated othenaare) 

b. Currency risk 
The Ceergurey utderiaiet Laritiers desomicabed in lonegn curreccert: conequentty, mapauures. bo ewchasge rate flechuasora arieg. Lichange ne exerts ore 

managed wehin approved policy parameters, 

Expoaure to foreign qureency rah 
The carting smtounts of the Gomeary's donee currency damcrenuted monetary onsets ond monetary badder ot the eeu af they reportiog percpd are ou indie 

Ab at Aa it 
Desoenition* March 01, 2025 1 
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SWyurie Udyog Lindted 

Wakes to the tandsloes fisaacial ptatements for the year ended March 11, 7025 
Al esa dew F i ec, avis stated! oltre 

Baal Aa al 
Aarch 51, DEES March 11, ek 

orraentega 178s 6078 
La: Caah ong hard paleces S681) 05 
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Maurie Udyog Limited 
‘Movbet bo the standalone financial ta for the year ercied March 31, DEES 
(Ad armeuetn are Fo a ded ened ocheeran! 

S) Quantitasive detail of masufectored and traded goods 
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Meuris Udyog Limitrd 

Motes to the ctandalane financial maements far the year ended March 11, 1005 
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Masarla Udyog Limited 
Motes to the standalone financial maqjements fee ihe pear ered March £1, 1025 
PAN anioornhi af in lace anvincd chited! otterwine! 

E1 Inperne canes 

&. Asguria recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loon 
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Mauris Udyog Limited 
Motea bo the int Gnaecciall rhat for the poor anded March 11, bork 

Ai amour ane Foon doce aie etated octareise! 

62 Hey Financial Ratios 
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Maurie Witpag Lined, 
Nolew to the ctandalone financial ctabements for the pear esebed Murch 24, 2024 
fa) seteuent ine Ft tack. ued alate! othenee! 

#1 The Company fat been unctoned working capeial lersis on gepers of tare cron rupees Ghurineg thee year, om agepesine hoes Dante gd Tuescial Pittuiend, on Te 

base of security of fined depedita and Where Gi ao fequiferpent to file quirteriy return f ulatemecis with auch bane and financial inst mations, 

4 The Company hag not entengd inoe are dich trarddectiges mio i net recorded i the books of accounts that hun been wurresdered of ciecioced an income dunng 
the pear in the tar wabeciments under the becorres Taw Act, 1981 teach ou, earch or sureey or any other nelevert provéstony of the inner Taw Act, 1961. 

68 The Company has not Waded of ipeeiied in eryptocutency or wittudl curtency during the your 

G6 The Company does fot Riese any chaepe or tatnfaction etich wet to be regeiened enth the Segivear of Compare, beword the watetery period. 

GT The Gemipany does not have acy Benes property, whece any proceeding hay been inbgted o pending aqaerat ihe Compary lor hoki any Bera property. 

O8 The Compery him not dchwanced or loaned or invented fueds be any olher eeonig) of enobyfies) includeng formige eeties Gintetmecdianes) with the 

undertianchng that the intermadigry shalt 

Ind. diencthy ce inchrerthy lerad or batt i. other periora we entities ieetifeed bn aey marcer whateomeer by or on behalf of the Company (LGimate Berelaciaries, 

LJ 

Tbh, penta ory Quaeantid. dourite oe the Flue beer on Behall of the Ubimate Beneficiaries. 

GF The Company has sot received amp lund from aey pectoral oF enttpierid, including feerign entities [Funding Party) with the underitanding jwhether nenerded in 
eerie oe atharevcia) that the Corrpaieny hall: 

(ML diseethy oe erdhtecthy bend ot west mother pero. of enSbes identifesd is ane masner whatever by oe on beball of the Conmpaesy duitieate Bertini, 

- 
(bl, Sree dy Gktethee, mecuitt or the Fe to or on behal! of the Llrote Beret, 

78 The Compasy eed eetered ibe ceeiain fardactiota with Amrapali Grows of Compare in pact peace in consequent to whech ineercin audit waa conducted as 

par the Derectonn of Hoe ble Supreme Court of ira bo bpegk onto transactions beteren dureapad Geeup of Compacien and Sureha Group of Companies BAe 

whech the Hon ble Susrese Court vide in order No. Wee Petitiend}iCeab We. M0017 dated December 2.2008 had directed M/s jotindea Stee! A Tubes Limined 

aed (Maria Ucyog Limited inchading ayocated nempacies and Denerors vir Rar, Maerunet urna Suteke ad Mr Aidbl Huesar Sontha lo diode © 16, 7S Lace, 

In eeapence be the order ef fe Hoevhie Susreee Court, @ had fed an application on Oecember §, 2019 before the He ble Sucreme Court to accept the ttle 

deeds of irenoewable propercae belonging to Sunes farniy members and sonate compares (heaped ce latest wehuien report} earth anearting T 1609700 

Land pete! isturviere aeraust of 005 Lacs inching Propertien amounting F 10,182.00 Lacs belonging to Masria Udyog Limited 

In the Firnaecial year 2979-20, the Company hed changed ? 100000 Lore in the Statement of Probe and Led again the above Satter on an eilimuted Busia und 

The matdggerent iio! the opinion thal, based on qwuer and the legal advice thal the oltimate cutcome of the legal proceedings in reupect bo the matter well nok 

hae murierial acheeree effect fo the hearcial potion of fe Company. Hence. the Company hind nevthe provided for babdity agaist the: ratte, sor are acu 

Tl Secarities & Echarspe Beaed of leche (SEED vide ty interim oder cum ahow coun aetene mumber WOM TUT Se -20e ted 89 fuse 2079 urecker 

sections E1C1), 1 16ti, ETB, VEYBG1, 11872 anal 01CE) a SEBO Act 1992 read along with SEM rules 2005, iitued interin directions neairaining the Company fram 
BOO ang Ie deTe ee Pareet tal Marthe ofderd are aha abrtcned Ihe Commoany to densa joertly and aeaealy wih ather nance a amoung of F2679.09 bars. 

The Holging Company subvrebted ii reply oe. 22 poly 2002 ared hos Med an eppeal aqeenst The qadd inten ender bo Sesnuriters Appellate Thong (SAT) The sAT 

wide ite decinign dated 18 Aaqurt 2003 has dispoved off the appeal ared cinected the Compary bo [ie a replyfobjection to the how diate fSties. Further, te 
Pusaqerend Bebeend That The lpugrad ander iy uetenanle aed ip buble qo set gale Anpordingly, no Habibty hae beesoremeded by the Company agen the 

arricurd tovught by SEM in the sale ines ered 
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Mauria Wehrog Leeited 

Neted to the rhandalese Camera tolerant for the pede ended Flach 31 ETS 

Mf amounts ane Fon dacy, uiern rtianted othaneniay 

TE These fnancal hatemerc. were apneoeed for asue by the Board of Doneciors os Mage 2B, 2025. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Members of Mauria Udyog Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements 

Qualified Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Mauria Udyog Limited 

(hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company") and its subsidiaries Strawberry Star India Private 

Limited, Bihari Highrise Private Limited and Bihariji Properties Private Limited (the Holding Company 

and its subsidiaries tegether referred to as “the Group’), the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss 

{including Other Comprehensive Income}, the Consolidated Staternent of Changes in Equity and the 

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and nates to the consolidated Ind AS 

financial statements incduding 4 aummary of the material accounting policies and other explanatory 

information (hereinafter referred to as “consolidated Ind AS financial staternents"). 

in cur opinion and te the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, except 

for the possible effects of the matter described in the Basis for Qualihed Opinion section of our report, 

the aforesaid Consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the Companees 

Set, 2013 (‘the Act") in the manner so required and give a trwe and fair view in conformity with the 

accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (ind AS"), of 

the state of affairs of the Group as at March 31, 2025, its profit including other comprehensve mcome, 

changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

i The Group has classified its investments in unquoted equity shares of other entities to be 

Fair Valued through other comprehensive income (FYTOCI). However, it has not obtained/ 

camed out fair valuation of such unquoted equity shares. The impact of fair valuation 

cannot be ascertained. 

IL The Group has not wed expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss of gain on 

trade recerables as required by Ind AS 104 “Financial Instruments”, The impact of such mon- 

compliance cannot be ascertained. However, the Company has made a provision of Rs. 3,278.17 

Lacs against doubthul tade recervables. 

kL = The Group had entered into certain transactions with Amrapali Group of Companies in past 

years. In consequent to which forensic audit was conducted as per the Directions of Hon'ble 

Supreme Court of India to look inte transactions between Amrapali Group of Companies and 

Sureka Group of Companies. After whach the Hon'ble Supreme Court vide its order No. Wirt 

Petition(s)(Crvil) No, 40/2077 dated 2 December 2019 had directed M/s Jotendra Steel & Tubes 

Limited and Holding company Mauria Udyog Limited including associated companies and 

Directors viz Mr. Navneet Kurnar Sureka and Mr. Alchil Kumar Sureka to deposit 7 16,700.00 
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Lacs. In response to the order of the Hon'ble Supreme Court, it had filed an application on 9 

December 20:19 before the Hon'ble Supreme Court to accept the Tithe deeds. of immeoveable 

properties belonging to Sureka family members and associate companies (based on latest 

valuation report) worth amounting © 16,697.00 Lacs net of incumbency amount of © 3,934.00 

Lacs inchuding Properties amounting = 10,182.00 Lacs belonging to Holding Company Mauria 

Udyog Limited. 

In the financial year 2079-20, the Holding Company had charged @ 1,500.00 Lacs in the 

Statement of Profit and Loss against the above matter on an estimated basis and reduced the 
value of properties (property which is deposited to Hon'ble Supreme Court). 

The Group has neither provided for liability against this matter, nor any ameunt has been shown 
4s contingent liability as required by Ind AS 37 “Prowsons, Contingent Liabilities and 
Contingent Assets”. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing (54s) specified under section 14310) 
of the Act Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditer's 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements section of our report. We 

are independent of the Group in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the 
Ind AS financial statements under the provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder and we have fulfilled 

our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We 

believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

qualified apiman. 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of mvost signaticance in our 

audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the current period. These matters were 

addressed in the context of our audit of the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements as a whole, and 

in farming eur opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. We have 

determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters te be communicated in our report 

Key Audit Matters How our audit addressed the key audit matter 

Loss allowance for Trade receivables ‘Our audit procedures included the following: 

(refer Note 3 and point ii of Basis for Qualified | + Understanding the trade receivables process 

Opinion paragraph) with regards to valuation and testing of 

controls designed and implemented by the 
management. 

* Testing the accuracy of ageing of trade 

recervables at year end on sample basis. 
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The Group has trace receivables of © 7092.02 lacs 

ad ot 31 March 2025 (net of impairment loss of £ 

3,278.17 lacs), 

Owing to the nature of operations of the Group 

and related customer profiles, the Group has 

| significant long standing trade receivable 

balances, for which appropriate loss allawance 

required to be created for expected credit losses 

using simplified approach in accordance with the 

requirements of ind AS 104, Financial 

Instruments, measuring the loss allowance equal 

to lifetime expected credit losses. 

Fer the purpose of expected credit loss 

assesament of trade recemvables, significant 

judgment is required by the management to 

estimate the timing and amount of realization of 

these recenables bass the past history, customer 

profiles, and consideration of other internal ane 

external sources of information, including the 

impact of COWID 19 pandemic in aforesaid 

estimates. 

Considering the significant judgement involved, 

iInereated complenities due to the pandemic, 

high esiimation uncertainty and materiality of the 

amounts involved, we have identified lass 

allowance en trade recenvables as a key audit 

matter for current year audit. 

Obtained a let of outstanding receivables, 

with the identified significant leng 

outstanding receivables, and discussed plan 

of recovery lifetime with management. 

Cercularized balance confirmations to a 

sample of trade receivables and reviewed 

the reconciling items, if amy, 

Verfied the appropriateness of judgments 
regarding prowisiens fer trade recenables 

and egies a to whether these provisions 

were calculated in accordance with the 

Group provisioning policies. 

Tested subsequent settlement of trade 

receivables after the balance sheet date on a 

sample basis, as applicable. 

Verified the related disclosures made in 

motes to the financial statements in 

accordance with Ind AS 175 and Ind AS 109, 

The Group has not used expected credit loss 

model to assess the impairment loss or gain 

on trade recewables as required by Ind AS 

109 “Financial Instruments”. 

Litigation, Claims and Contingent Liabilities 

(Refer Note 72, read along with point iii of 
Basis for Qualified Opintan paragraph) 

The Group fs exposed to a varety of different 

laws, requlatons and interpretations thereat 

which encompasses indirect taxation and legal 

matte, In the normal course of business, 

froveions and contingent habdities may arse 

from legal proceedings, including regulatary and 

Principal audit procedures performed: 

« We understood the processes, evaluated the 

degign and implementation of controls and 

tested the operating affectiveness of the 
Group central over the recording and re- 

assessment of uncertain lagal positions, claims 

and contingent labiltties. 

* We held discussions with senior management 

of holding company including the parson 
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other Governmental proceedings, constructre 

obligations as well as investigations by 

authorities and commercial claims. 

Based on the nature of requiatery and beqal cases 

management applies significant judgement 

when conudering whether, and how much, to 

provide for the potential exposure of each 

matter, These estimates could change 

substantially aver time as new facts emerge as 

gach legal case or matters progresses. 

Gren the different views, possible basis the 

interpretations, complexity and the magnitude of 

the potential exposures, and the judgement 

necessary to determing required disclosures, this 

is a key audit matter. 

tespondible for legal and compliance to obtain 

an understanding of the factors conaidered by 

management in dassification of the matter as 

‘probable’, ‘possible’ and ‘remete’, 

Examined the Group legal expenses on sample 

basis and read the minutes of the board 

meetings and the legal comphance committer 

in order to ensure completeness. 

We read the correspondence from Court 

authorities and considered legal opinion 

obtained by the holding company 

Management from external law firms to 

evaluate the basis used for provisions 

recognised ar the disclosures made in the 

Consolidated Ind AS financial statements. 

We also obtained direct legal confirmations for 

significant matters fram the law firms handling 

such matters ta corroborate holding company 

management's conclusons. 

«= For those matters where holding company 

Management concluded that no provision 

should be recorded, we also considered the 

adequacy and completeness of the Group 

disclosures made in relation to contingent 

liabilities. 

Emphasis of Matter 

Lo We draw attention ta note & to the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statement, which desenbes 

the classification of disputed and long outstanding trade receivables as non-ourrent 

aggregating Rs. 7,092.02 Lacs [net of provision of Rs. 3,278.17 Lacs) wherein the management 

has explained the reasons for not writing off provided for such receivables. 

We also draw attention to note 73 to the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statement, which 
deserbes that the Group has received an interim order cum show cause notice from Secunty & 

Exchange Board of India (SERN and issued interim directions restraining the Company fram 

accessing the securities market till further orders and also directed the Company to deposit 

jointly and severally with other notices an amount of Rs. 2679.69 Lacs. The management has 

explained the reasons for net recording liability for the amount so sought in the order, 

IL We also draw attention to mote 23 to the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statement, which 
describes the reason for non-allotment equity shares against the share application money 
within & months of receipt 
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iV. We alse draw attention to note 11 to the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statement wherein the 

management has described the reasons for justification of amount receip? against the disputed 

lane 

ur opinion snot modified in respect of these matters. 

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon 

The Holding Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information The other 
information comprises the information included in the Annual Report, but does not mclude the 
conselidated financial statements and our aeditor’s report thereon, 

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do 
net express any form of assumance conchsion thenean. 

In commection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsability is to read the 

other information and, in deing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent 

wath the conselidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained im the audit or othenwire appears 

to be materially misstated. if based on the work we have performed, we comchide that there is a material 

misstatement of this other enformation, we are required to repert that fact, Wie have nothing to report 

in this regand. 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Ind 

AS Financial Statements 

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Holding Company's 

Board of Directors. The Holding Company's Board of Directors are nespensible fer the preparation and 

presentation of these consolidated Ind AS financial staterments in terms of the requirements of the Act 

that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance 

{incheding ather comprehensive income], consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows 

of the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Ind AS 

prescnibed wnder section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015, a5 amended. The respective Board of Directors of the comparses included in the Group are 

responsible for mainbenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 

Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 

imeqpularities, the selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and 

estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 

intemal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness 

of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial 

statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud 

or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS. financial 

statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid. 

In preparing the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the 

companies incleded in the Group are responsible for assessing the wbility of the Group to continue as 
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ageing concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related te going concern and using the going concen 

bass of accounting unless management esther intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, 

or has no realise alternative but to de so. 

The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for overseeing 

the financial reporting process of the Group. 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated Ind AS financial 

Statements as a whole ace free from maternal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue 

an auditor's report that inchedes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is 

not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accerdance with SAs will always detect a material 

misstatement when it asts. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are comandened maternal if, 

individually of in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions 

of users taken on the basis of these consolidated Ind A5 financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accomdance with 54s, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional 
skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial 

statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficest and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 

resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 

mistepresentations, or the override of intemal control 

* Obtain an understanding of intennal control relevant to the auditin order te design audit procedures 

that are appropriate in the cirommstances Under section 1431311) of the Act, we ane also responsible 

for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company and subsidiary companies which are 
companies incorporated in India, have adequate internal financial controls with reference to 

financial staberments im place and the operating effectiveness of such controls; 

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting 

estimates and related disclosures made by management; 

* Conchide on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concen basis of accounting 

and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 

of conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going 

concern. Hf we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 

auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements or, if suech 

disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence 

obtained up to the date of our auditer's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 

Group to cease to continue as a going concern: 
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« Evaluate the overall pretantation, structure and content of the consolidated Ind AS financial 

statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated ind AS financial statements 

represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation and 

* Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial infoomation of the entities or 

business activities withen the Group of whech we are the independent auditors, ta express an opinéan 

en the consolidated tnd AS finarcial statements. We are responsable for the directon, supenision 

and performance of the audit of the Ind AS financial statements of such entities included in the 

consolidated ind AS financial statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other 

entities included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, which have been audited by other 

auditers, such other auditers remain responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of 
the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entities 

included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are the independent auditors 

regarding, ameng other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and siqnifscant adit 

findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant 

ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and 

other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, 

rdlated safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that 

were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore 

the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report unless law or regulatian 

precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine 

that a matter should mot be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences af doing 

so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Other Matters. 

We did not audit the financial statements of 3 subsidiaries, included inthe consolidated audited financial 

statements, wheee financial statements inchide total assets of Ra. 2626.86 lacs and not assets of Rs, 

(4936.01) lacs ag at March 31, 2025, total revenue of Rs. Nil, total met loss after tax of Rs. (0.84 lacs) and 

net cash flows (net) amounting te Rs. 0.87 lacs for the year ended on that date. as considered in the 

consolidated financial statements. 

These Ind AS financial staternents have been audited by other auditors whose reports have been 

furnished to us by the management and our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, 

in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of this subsidiaries, and our 

report in terms of secton 143(3) of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsodiaries, is based 

solely on the reports of the other auditors.
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Our opinian on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements and our report on Other Legal and 

Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our 

relanee on the work dene and the reports of the other auditors and the Ind AS financial statements 

certhed by the management. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

(1) 

{2 

As required by section 197(16) of the Act based on our audit and on the consideration of the reportis) 

of the other auditer(s), referred to paragraph above, on separate financial statements of the 

subsidiaries, we report that the Holding Company have paid remuneration to their respective 

ditectors dhering the year in accordance with the provisions of and limits laid deve under section 197 

read with Schedule V te the Act. Further, we report that subsidiaries, incorporated in india whose 

financial statements have been audited under the Act have not paid or provided for any managerial 

remuneration during the year. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) of the Act is not 

applicable in respect of such subsicharees. 

With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3[xxi) and 4 of the Companies (Auditor's Report) 

Order, 2020 (the “Order"/ "CARO") issued by the Central Government im terms of section 143{11) of 

the Act, to be included in the Auditor's report, according to the information and explanations given 

to us, and based! on the CARO reports issued by us for the Holding Company and its subsidiaries 

and taking inte consideration the reports of other auditors on separate Ind 45 financial statements 

of subsidiaries included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Holding Company. to 

which reporting under CARO & applicable, we repert in the Annexure A that following adverse 

temarks were reported by the other auditers in the Order reports of the companies included in the 

consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2025 for which such Order reparts 

have been issued till date and made available to us. 

4a required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of reports of 

the other auditors on separate Ind AS financial statements and the other financial information of 

subsidiaries, as noted in the Other Matters saction above we report, to the extent applicable, that: 

& We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our 

knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid 

comolidated Ind AS financial statements; 

b. In our opinien, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the 

aforesaid consolidated Ind 45 financial statements have been kept so far as it appears fram 

our examination of those books and the reports of the other auditors except for the possible 

effects of the matters stated in paragraph givi} below on reporting under Rube 11iq) if the 

Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and matters described in Basis for 

Qualified Opinion section above: 
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c The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss fincheding 

Other Comprehensive income}, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the 

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flaws dealt with by this report are in agreement with the 

televant books of account maintained for the purpese of preparation of the consolidated Ind 
45 fmancial statements: 

cd. Except for the possible effects of the matters descnbed in the Basis for Qualified! Opinion 

section above, in our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial statements comply 

with the Ind AS presenbed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (indian 

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended; 

@ (On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding 

Company as on March 31, 2025 and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding 

Company and the raports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies, incomparated 
in India, none of the directors of the Group companies, incorporated in India, is disqualified 

aon March 31, 2025 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act: 

f, With respect te the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 

statements of the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies incorporated in India and the 

operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Anne«ure A": 

g. ‘With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with 
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 204, in our opinion and to the best of 

our information and according to the explanations given to us: 

i. The Group as detailed in Note 72 to the Consolidated Ind AS financial statements, has 

disclased the impact of pending litigations on its financial position as at March 31, 202% 

i, The Group did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts. Hence, 

the question of any material foreseeable losses does not arise: 

i. There were no amounts which were required to be transfered te the Investor Education 

and Protection Fund by the Group. 

. fa} The Management of holding company has represented that, to the best of its 

knowledge and belief, as disclosed in notes to the accounts, no funds have been 

advanced or leaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any 
ether sources or kind of funds) by the Group to of in any other person(s) of entity{ies}, 

including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded 
in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend to 
‘or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf 
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of the Group (Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any quarantes, security of the like on 

behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries: 

(b) The management of holding company has represented that, to the best of its 

knowledge and belief, no funds have been recewed by the Group from any person(s) or 
eantityiies), including foreign entities ("Funding Parties") with the understanding, whether 
recorded iin writing or otherwise, that the Group shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend 
to or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsocver by of on 
bohalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiartes”) or provide any guarantee, security 
or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; 

(c) Based on the audit procedures that are considered reasonable and appropriate in the 

circumstances, nothing has come to cur notice that has caused us to believe that the 

representations under fa) and (b) above contain any material misstatement. 

v. The Group has not declared nor paid any dividend during the year. Hence, reporting the 

compliance with section 123 of the Act is not applicable. 

wi, Based on our examination which incheded test checks and that performed by the 

respective auditors of the subsidiaries which are companies incorporated in India and 

audited uncer the Act, except for the instances mentioned below, the Holding Company, 

and its subsidiaries in respect of financial year commencing on | Apel 2023, have used 

accounting software for maintaining their books of account which has a feature of 
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same have been operated throughout the 

yaar for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of 

our audit we and respectve audrtars of the above referred subsidiaries did not come 

across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with, other than the 

consequential impact of the exception given below: 

Nature of exceptions | Company Mame | Details of exception 

noted 

Instances of accounting | Bahari Highrise | The Company has maintained its 

software for maintaining | Private Limited, books of accounts using accounting 

beoks of account which software. However, we were unable 

did not have a feature of to obtain sufficient and appropriate 

recording audit trail (edit audit evidence to verily whether the 

leg) facility software uted had an mibuilt auelit 

tail feature that was enable and 
operated threaghowt the  ymar 

without any tampering. avd whether 

such audit trails were preserved as 

requared, 
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Accordingly, we are unable to 

comment on the compliance of the 

company with the requirements 

under Rule 11fg) of the companies 

(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 and 

we express our inability to report on 

this matter. 

Instances of accounting 
software for maintaining 

books of account which 

did not have a feature of 

recording audit trai (adit 

log) facility 

Bihaniji Properties 

Private Limited 

The Company has maintained its 

books of accounts using accounting 

software. However, we were unable 

to obtain sufficient and appropriate 

audit evidence to verify whether the 

software used had an inbuilt audit 

trail feature that was qnable and 

operated thraughout the year 

without any tampering, and whether 

such audit trails were preserved as 

requered. 

Accordingly, we are unable to 

comment on the compliance of the 

company with the requirements 

under Rule 11ig) of the companies 

(Audit and Auditers) Rules, 2014 and 

we express our inability te report on 

ines matter, 

Instances of accounting 

software for maintaining 

books of account which 

did not have a feature of 

recordnng audit trail fede 

bog) facility 

EN 

} 

< 

Strawberry = Star 

Inelia. Private 

Lirnitesd 

Based on our examination which 

included test checks and information 

given te us, the Company has used 

accounting software for maintaining 

its books of account, which did not 

have a feature of recording audit trail 

fedit bog) facility throwghout the year 

for all relevant transactions recorded 

in the reapective software, hence we 

are unable te comment on audit trail 

feature of the said software. 

In cur opinbon, proper beoks of 

account as required by law have been 

kept by the Company so far as it 

appears from our examination of 

Jriane Tower, hletap 
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those books, except for the matters 

stated Le. audit trail (edit log) facility 
feature, on reporting under Rule 

1ltg) of the Companies (Audit and 

Auditors) Rules, 2014. 

There 1s modifications relating ta the 

maintenance of accounts and other 

matters cennected therewith with 

respect to audit trail edit log) Facility 

feature, also duly reported under 

section 143(3)b) of the Act and under 

Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit 

and = Auditers} = Rules, = 2014, 
Consequently, audit trail fedrt log) 

facility feature hai not been 

maintained with respect of 

maintenance of accounts. 

For NKSC & Co. 

Chartered Accountants. 

ICAI Firm Registration Mo, O20076N 

Membership Nos 521986. 

UDIN: 2552 19BGREMNYTCS516 

Place: New Delhi 
Date: May 28, 2025
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and Regulatery Requirements” section of our report of even date) 

bxi) In our opinion and acconding to the information and explanations given to us, following companies 
incerperated in India and included in the consolidated financial statements, have unfavourable remarks, 
qualification or adverse remarks given by the respective auditors in their reports under the Companies 
(Auditer's Report) Order, 2020 (CARO) 

Name of Paront/ 
S.No, . sisted Clause number of CARO report 

1 Biharigi Subsidiary Clause (wii) 

Highrise 
Private The Company has imourred cash losses during the 

Limited financial year covered by our audit and the Company 

has incurred cash losses in the immediately 

preceding financial year. 

Fs Bahariji Subsidiary Clause (xix) 

Highrise 
Private On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected 
Limited dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of 

finarecial abilities, other information accompanying the 

financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of 
Directors and Management plans and based on our 

examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, 

we are not able to comment upon material uncertainty 

capability of Company of meeting its liabilities as and 

when they fall due within a period of ome year from the 

balance sheet date. We, however, state that thes is not an 

adsecsment of future viabulity of the Company. We further 

state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the 

date of the audit report and we nether ge any 

quarantee nor any assurance nor any suspicion that all 

lbilities falling due within a pened of one year fram the 

balance sheet date, will get discharged) defaulted by the 

Company as and when they fall duc. 

a Biharip Subsidiary Clause (xvii) 

Properties 
Private The Company has incurred cash losses during the 
Limited financial year covered by our audit. The company has also 

mncurred Cash Loss in the immediately preceding financial 

year. 
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4 Bihari Subsidiary Chase (xix) 
Propertees - ; 
Private ‘On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected 

Lirnitedd dates of realisation of financial assets amd payment of 
financial liabilities, other infarmation accompanying the 
financial statements and our knowledge of the Board of 

Derectors and Management plans and based on our 

euaminaton of the evidence supporting the assumptions, 

we are not able to comment upon material uncertainty 

capability of Company of meeting its liabilities as and 
when they fall due within a period of one year from the 

balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an 

assessment of future viability of the Company. We herther 

state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the 
date of the audit report and we neither give any 

Quarantes nor any assurance nor any suspecion that all 
liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the 

balance sheet date, will get discharged! defaulted by the 
Company as and when they fall due. 

5 Strawberry Subsidiary Clause (xwil) 

Star = India 
Private Acconding te the information & explanations given to us 

Limited the company has incurted cash boss of Rs. 13,450/- in the 

cunent financial year and cash loss of Rs. $.5D0/- im the 
immediately previous Financial Year. 

For NKSC & Co. 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No, O20076N 

oe & = 
gy 

alhi } 
Priyank Goyal Fl 

Partner 
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ANNEXURE ‘6’ TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

(Referred to in Para 2 of the "Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ in the Independent 

Auditor's Repert of even date to the members of Mauria Udyog Limited on the consolidated Ind AS 

financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023] 

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under clause (i) 

of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") 

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of Mauria Udyog Limited 

Company® of “Holding Company") as of and for the year ended March 31, 2025, we have audited the 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company and 

subsidiaries company, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date, 

Management's Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The respectwe Board of Directors of the Holding Company and subsidiary companies controlled 

companses, which art companies incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and 

mamntaning internal finaneal comtols based on the intennal comtrol with reference to financial 

statements onberia evtabliched by the Holding Company conudering the essential components of 

internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 

Reporting (the “Guidance Note") isswed by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI"). 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial contreds that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its 
business, induding adherance to the respective company's policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 

records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is te express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference 

to financial statements of Holding Company and subsidiary companies, which are companies 
mcorporated in India based on our audit We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance 

Note and the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAI, Those Standards and the 

Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit te 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to 

financial statements was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all 

material respects. 

Our audit imvalwes performing procedures to obtain audit eadence about the adequacy of the intemal 

financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating efectreeness. Qur audit of 

internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an understanding 

of internal financal controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material 

weaknese exists, and teviing and evaluating the deagn and operating effectvenes of internal control 

based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the 

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, 

whether due to fraud or errer. 
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We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by the other 

auditors, in terms of their reports referred to in the Other Matters paragraph below, 12 sufficient and 

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's mtennal financial controls with 

reference to financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements 

4 company’s internal financial control with reference to financial statements is a process designed ta 

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
finaccial statements for extemal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
prnciples. A company's mbernal financial control with reference to financial statements includes those 
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, 
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 

feasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial 

statements im accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and 
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management 
and directors of the company: and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely 

detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a 
material offect on the financial statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements 

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, 

including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material 
mostatements due to enor of fraud may occur and mot be detected. Also, projections of any 

evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are 
subject to the risk thal the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may 

become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate. 

Opinion 

In Gur pinion and to the best of cur information and according ta the explanations given to ws and 
based on consideration of reporting of other auditors as mentioned in Cther Matter paragraph, the 
Holding Company and subsidiary companies, which are companies inoorporated in India, have, in all 

maternal respects, an adequate intemal financial controls with reference te financial statements and 
such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were operating effectively as at 
March 31, 2025, based on the internal control with reference to financial statements criteria 
established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance Note issued by the HOAL 
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Other Matters 

We did not audit the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements insofar as it 
relates to the subsidiary company, which is covered under the Act, whose financial statements reflect 

total assets of % 2628.06 lacs and net assets of % (4999.01) lacs as at 317 March 2025, total revenues of 

Nil and net cash flows (net) amounting to % 0.87 lacs for the year ended on that date, as considered in 

the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. These Ind AS financial statements have been audited by 
other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us by the management and our openion on the 

consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures 

included in respect of these subsidiaries, and our repert in tera of section 143(3) of the Act, in so far 

as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries, is based solely on the reports of the other auditors. The 

internal financial controls with reference ta financial statements in so far as it relates to such subsidiary 
companies have been audited by other auditors whose reports has been furnished ta us by the 
management and our report on the adequacy and operating effectivences of the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements for the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies 
as aforesaid, under Section 1423(3)(i) of the Act in so far as it relates to such subsidiary companies is 

based solely on the reports of the auditors of such companies. Qur opinion is not modified in respect 
of this matter with respect to our reliance on the work done by and on the reports of the other 
auditors. 

For NKSC & Co, 

Chartered Accountants 

ICAI Firm Registration No. O20076N 

Membership Nos 521986 
UDIM: 2552 1986BMNYTCS516 

Place: Mew Delhi 

Date: May 28, 2025
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Mauria Udyog Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for tho yoar ended March 31, 2025 

Reporting Entity 

The Mauria Group (hereinafter referred to as “the Group") consists of The Mauria Udyog Limited (the holding 
company") and its subsidiary. 

The holding company is a public company domiciled in India, with its registered office situated at Anand Jyoti 
Building, 41 Netaji Subhas Road, Room No. 107, ist Floor, Kolkata WB - 700001. The halding company was 
incorporated on September 24, 1980. The shares of the Company are listed on the Bombay Stock Exchange 
(BSE) and Calcutta Stock Exchange (CSE). 

The Group is engaged in the business of manufacturing and trading of LPG cylinders and related accessories 
like valves and reguiators, and textile producis 

1. Basis of preparation 

(i) Statement of compliance with Indian Accounting Standards: 

These Consolidated Ind AS financial statements [the Financial Statements") have been prepared in 
accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS') as notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA 
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015, a3 amended and other relevant provisions of the Act. The Group has uniformly applied the 
accounting policies for all the periods presented in these financial statements. 

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 were authorised and approved for 
issue by the Board of Directors on May 28, 2025. 

The material accounting policies adapted for preparation and presentation of these financial statements are 
included in Note 2. These policies have been applied consistently by the Group for all the periods presented in 
these financial statements. 

(ii) Basis of consolidation 

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Holding Company, is 
subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed or has rights, to 
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through is 
power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has: 

* Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct lhe relevant activities of 
ihe investes) 

Exposure, or rights, to variable returns fram its involvement wilh the investee, and 
The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns 

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voling rights result in control. Ta support this presumption 
and when the Group has less than a mapority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group cansiders 
all relevant facis and circumsiances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including: 

  
* The contractual arrangement wih the other vole holders of the investee 

» Rights arsing from other contractual arrangements oe os 

« The Group's voting rights and potential voting rights A 
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Mauria Udyog Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 34, 2025 

  

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are 
changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group 
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses contro! of the subsidiary. Assets, 
liabilities, income and expanses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are included in tha 
consolidated financial statements from the date the Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to 
control the subsidiary, 

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform Bccounting policies for like transactions and 
other events in similar circumstances. If a member of the group uses accounting policies other than those 
adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstannes, 
appropriate adjusiments are made to that group member's financial statements in preparing the consolidated 
financial statements to ensure conformity with the group's accounting policies, 

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation are drawn up to the same 
reporting cate as that of the holding company, i.e., the year ended on March 37. When the end of ihe reporting 
period of the parent is different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposes, 
additional financial information as of the same date as the financial statements of the parent to enable the 
parent to consolidate the financial information of the subsidiary, unless it is impracticable to do so. 

Consolidation procedure for subsidiary 

(a) Combine like itams of assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows of the parent with those 
of its subsidiaries. 

(b) Offset (eliminate) the carrying amount of the parent's investment in each subsidiary and the parent's 
portion of equity of each subsidiary. Business combinations policy explains how to account for any related 
goodwill 

(c) Eliminate in full intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to 
transactions between entities of the group (profits or losses resulting fram intragroup transactions that are 
recognised in assets, such as inventory and fixed assets, are eliminated in full). Ind AS 12 Income Taxes 
applies to lemporary differences that arise from the elimination of profits and losses resulting from intragroup 
transactions. 

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OC!) are attributed to the equity holders of 
the parent of the Group and the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the noen-controlling interests 
having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to 
bring their accounting policies into line with the Group's accounting policies. All intra-group assets and 
liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of the Group 
are eliminated in full om consolidation. 

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity 
transaction. lf the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it: 

Derecognises ihe assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary 

Derecognises (he carrying amount of any non-controlling interests 

Derecognises the cumulative translation differances recorded in equily 

Recognises ihe fair value of the consideration received 

Recognises ihe fair value of any investment retained UTS 

Recognises any surplus or deficit In profit or loss =, ae 

Reclassifies the parent's share of components previously 

earnings, a3 appropriate, as would be required if the Group ha 

Habiltes 

     nised in OCI fo ‘profit or loss or retained 
Girectly disposed of the related assets or 

yh, = 
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(iv) 

{v) 

(vi) 

All assets and liabilities have been classified and presented as current or non-current in accordance with the 

Group's normal operating cycle other criteria set out in the Schedule lll to the Act. 

Functlonal and presentation currancy 

These financial statements are presented in indian Rupees (%}, which is also the Group's functional currency, 

All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest lacs, unless otherwise indicated. 

Basis of measurement 

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the follawing lems: 

horns Basis of measurement 

Certain financial assets and llabilities Fair value 

Met defined benefit assetiliability Fair value of plan asset less present value of defined 

benefit obligation 

Use of estimates and judgements 

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires management fo make judgements, estimates and 

assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assels and liabilities, and the related 

disclosures. Actual results may differ from these estimates. 

Material management judgements: 

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognised is based on 

an assessment of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred jax assets can be 

uilllised, 

Business model assessment — The Group determines the business model ata level that reflecis how groups 

of financial assets are managed together to achieve a business objective. This assessment Inchudes 

judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is evaluated and their 

performance measured, the risks that affect the performance of the assets and how these are managed and 

how the managers of the assets are compensated. The Group monitors financial assets measured at 

amortised cost that are derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the reason for ther disposal and 

whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset was hald. Monitoring 

is part of the Group's continuous assessment of whether the business model for which the remaining financial 

assets are held continues to be appropriate and Hf it is not appropriate whether there has been @ change in 

business model and accordingly prospective change to the classification of those assets are made. 

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of 

impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in 

deterioration of racoverable amount of thé aeeets. 

Classification of leases — Ind AS 116 requires lessees to determine the lease term as the non-cancellable 

period of a lease adjusted with any option to extend or terminate the lease if the use of such option is 

reasonably certain, The Group’ An assessment on the expected lease term on a lease-by-lease basis 

and thereby assesses whe sanably certain that any to extend or terminate the contract will 

be exercised. In evaluating brmm| the Group considers factors such as. any significant leasehold 

improvements undertake ase/term, costs relating ® the termination of the lease and the 
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importance of the underlying asset to the Group's operations taking into account the location of the underlying 

asset and the availability of suitable alternatives. The lease term in future periods is reassessed to ensure thet 

the lease term reflects the current economic circumstances. After considering current and future economic 

conditions, the Group has concluded thal no changes are required to lease period relating to the axisting lease 

contract. 

Expected credit loss (ECL) — The measurement of expected credit loss allowance for financial asses 

measured at amortised cost requires use of complex models and material assumptions about future economic 

conditions and credit behaviour (e.g., likelihood of customers defaulting and resulting losses). The Group 

makes material judgements regarding the following while assessing expected credit loss. : 

= Determining criteria for significant increase in credit risk 

* Establishing the number and relative weightings of forward-looking scenarios for each type of 

product/market and the associated ECL 

= Establishing groups of similar financial assets for the purposes of measuring ECL. 

Provisions - At each Balance Sheet date, based on the management judgment, changes in facts and begal 

aspects, the Group assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding coniingent liabilities. 

However, the actual future outcome may be different fram this judgement. 

Material estimates: 

Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets — Management reviews its estimate of useful lives, residual 

values, and methed of depreciation of depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the 

expected utility of the assets. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescente 

that may change the ulllity of assets. 

Defined benefit obligation (DBO) - Management's estimate of the DBO is based on several underlying 

assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality. discount rate and anticipation of future salary 

increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined 

benefit expenses. 

Fair value measurements — Management applies valuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial 

instruments (where active market quotes are not available). This involves developing estimates aind 

assumptions consistant with how market participants would price the instrument. 

Summary of material accounting policies 

{i) Revenue 

Effective April 1, 2078, the Group has applied Ind AS 115 which establishes a comprehensive framework for 

determining whether, how much and when revenue is to be recognized. The Standard requires apportioning 

revenue eared from contracts to individual promises, or performance obligations, on a relative stand-alone 

selling price basis, using a five-step model. Ind AS 115 replaces Ind AS 18 Revenue and Ind AS 11 

Construction Contract. The Group has adopted Ind AS 115 using the cumulative effect method. 

Revenue from sale of goods 

Revenue is recognised upon transfer of control of promised product or services to customes-int arr aenourd that 

reflect the consideration which the Group expects to receive in exchange for those proguct or services at the 

fair value of the consideration received or receivable, which is generally the transagfion price, net of any 

taxes/du : ties and discounts AG z 

A 

The Group satisfies a performance obligation and 
is met: * 
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(il) 

(iii) 

  

a. The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the Group's 

performance as the Group performs; or 
b, The Group's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is 

created of enhanced; or 

¢. The Group's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and an 

entity has an enforceable right to payment for performance completed to date. 

For performance obligations where one of the above conditions are not met, revenue is recognised at the point 

in time at which the perfarmance obligation is satisfied. 

Revenue from sale of products is recognised ata time on which the performance obligation is satisfied. 

Recognition in case of local sales is generally recognised on the dispatch of goods. Revenue from export 
sales is generally recognised on the basis of the dates of ‘On Board Bill of Lading’. The Group recognises 

provision for sales return, based on the historical results, measured on net basis of the margin of the sale. 

Other operating income 

Export benefits are recognised in the year of export when right to receive the benefit is established and 

conditions attached to the benefits are satisfied, 

Other income 

Rental income 

Rental income from investment property is recognised as part of ather income in profil or loss on a straight-line 

basis over the term of the lease except where the rentals are structured to increase in line with expected 

general inflation. Lease incentives granted are recognised as an integral part of the total rental income, over 

the term of ihre lease. 

interest inconre 

Interest income on time deposits and inter corporate loans is recognised using the effective interest method. 

The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts 

through the expected life of the financial instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset. 

Commission income 

Commission income are recognised in Statement of Profit or Lass only when the relevant services have been 

rendered, 

Employee Benefits 

Short term employee benefits: 

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expenses off as the 

retated services are provided. Benefits such as salaries, wages, and bonus etc. are recognised in the 

statement of profit and loss in the year in which the employee renders the related service. The. habiiies are 

presented as current employee benefit obligation in the balance sheet. 
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(iv) 

Defined contribution plan: Provident fund 

All employees of the Group are entitled to receive benefits under the Provident Fund. which is a defined 

contribution plan. Both the employee and the employer make monthly contributions to the plan al a 

predetermined rate as per the provisions of The Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 

4952. These contributions are made to the fund administered and managed by the Government of India. The 

Group has no further obligations under the plan beyond its monthly contributions, Obligation for combribution to 

defined contribution plan are recognised as an employee benefit expense in statement of profit and loss in the 

period during which the related services are rendered by the employees. 

Defined Benefit Plan: Gratuity 

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. 

The Group provides for retirement benefits in the form of Gratuity, which provides for lump sum payments to 

vested employees on retirement, death while in service or on termination of employment in ain amount 

equivalent to 15 days basic salary for each completed year of service. Vesting occurs upon completion of five 

years of service. Benefits payable to eligible employees of the Group with respect to gratuity is accounted for 

on the basis of an actuarial valuation as at {he balance sheet date. 

The present value of such obligation is determined by the projected unit credit method and adjusted for past 

service cost and fair value of plan assets as al the balance sheet date through which the obligations are lo be 

settled. The resultant actuarial gain or loss on change in present value of the defined benefit obligation or 

change in return of the plan assets is recognised as an income or expense in the other comprehensive 

income. The Group's obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by estimating the amount of 

future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior periods, discounting thal amount and 

deducting the fair value of any plan assets. 

The Group determines the net interest expense/{income) on the net defined benefit liabilitywiasset) for the 

period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the 

annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability/(asset), taking into account any changes in the net 

defined benefit liability/(asset) during the period as a result of contributions and benefit payments. Net interest 

expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognised in the statement of profit and 

loss. 

When the benefits of a plan ara changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that 

relates to past service (‘past service cost’ or ‘past service gain’) or the gain or loss on curtailment is 

recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss. The Group recognises gains and losses on the 

setthement of a definad benefit plan when the setllament occurs. 

The Plan assets of the Group are managed by Life Insurance Corporation of India through a trust created by 

the Group in terms of an insurance policy taken on fund obligations wilh respect to its gratuity plan. 

Other long-term benefits: Compensated absences 

Benefits under the Group's compensated absences schame constitute other employee beneiits. The liability in 

respect of compensated absences is provided on the basis of an actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit 
Credit Method done by an independent actuary a5 at the balance sheet dale, Actuarial gain and losses are 

recognised immediately in other comprehensive income. 
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(v) 

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying the foreign currency amount 

of exchange rate between the reporting currency and foreign currency at the date of transaction. 

Conversion: 

Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities outstanding as at balance sheet date are restated/transiated 

using the exchange fale prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and labiliies which are 

measured in terms of historical cost denomination in foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at 

the date of transaction except for non-monetary iter measured at fair value which are translated using the 

exchange rates at the date when fair value is determined. 

Exchange difference arising on the settlement of monetary items or on restatement of the Group's monetary 

items at rates different from those at which they initially recorded during the year or reported in previous 

financials statement (other than those relating to fixed assets and other long term monetary assets) are 

recognised as income or expenses in the year in which they arise. 

Foreign operations: 

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into INR the functional currency of the Group, al 

the exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations are translated into 

Group at the exchange rates at the dates of the transaction or an average rate if the average rate 

approximates the actual rate at (he date of the transaction, 

Group companies: 

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into Indian rupee at the rate of 

exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their statements of profit or loss are translated al exchange 

rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. For practical reasons, the Group uses an average rate to 

translate income and expense items, if the average rate approximates the exchange rates al the dates of the 

transactions, The exchange differences arising on translation for consolidation are recognised in OCI. On 

disposal of a foreign operation, the component of OCI retating to that particular foreign operation is recognised 

in profit or loss. 

Tax expense 

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. It is recognised in the statement of profit and loss except to 

the extent that it relates to a business combination or to an item recognised directly in equity or in. other 

comprehensive income. 

Current tax 

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or recetvable on the taxable income or loss for the year and 

any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax 

reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, 

if any, related to income taxes, It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantively enacted 

by (he reporting date. 

Current tax assets and current tax Habilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the 

recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a met basis or 

simultaneously, 

Deferred tax 

Deferred tax is recognised in 

liabilities for financial report p 
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tax is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax credits. Deferred tax is not recognised 

for: 

: temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is mot a 

business combination and that affects nmeilher accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the 

transaction; 

- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recagnition of goodwill. 

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be avallable 

against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses is strong evidence that future taxable 

profit may not be available. Therefore, in case of a history of recent losses, the Group recognises a deferred 

tax asset only to the extent thal it has sufficient taxable temporary differences of there is convincing oer 

evidence that sufficient taxable profit will be available against which such deferred tax asse! can be realised. 

Deferred tax assets — unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed al each reporting date and are recognised? 

reduced to the extent that it is probable! no longer probable respectively that the related tax benefit will be 

realised, 

(vi) Inventories 

Raw materials, stores and spares, work-in-progress, manufactured finished goods and traded goods are 

valued at lower of cost or net realisable value, The comparison of cost and net realisable value is made on an 

item by item basis. Cost comprises of all cast of purchase, cost of conversion and olher cost incurred in 

bringing them to their respective present location and condition. Cost is determined using first in, first out 

method of inventory valuation. 

Loose tools and scrap are valued at estimated realisable value. 

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price In the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of 

completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale. 

Provision of obsolescence on inventories is considered on the basis of management's estimate based on 

demand and market of the inventories. 

(vil) Leases 

As lessor 

Leases for which the Group is a lessor dlassified as finance or operating lease. Lease Income from operating 

iaases where the Group is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term unless 

the receipts are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation to compensate for {he expected 

inflationary cost increases. The respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their 

nature, 

(viii) Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash, bank balances in current accounts and short term highly liquid 

investments that are readily convertible to cash with original maturities of three months or less al the time of 

purchase and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank 

overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current financial liabilities in (he balance sheet 
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(x) 

sions 

The Group creates a provision when there is present obligation as a result of a past event that probably 

requires an outflow of resources, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. 

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected 

future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the expenditure required to seitle ihe present obligation at 

the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money 

and the risks specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost. 

tingant | 

Contingent liabilities are possible obligations that arise from past events and whose existence will only be 

confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrance of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the 

control of the Group. Where it is not probable thal an outflow of economic benefits will be required, or ihe 

amount cannot be estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the probability 

of outflow of econornic benefits is remote. 

Contingent assets 

Contingent assets are possible assets that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only 

by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the contral of the 

Group. 

Property, plant and equipment (including Capital work-in-progress) 

Recognition and measurement 

All items of property, plant and equipment are sialed at historical cost less depreciation. Freehold band is 

carried at cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost net of recoverable tawes 

(wherever applicable), which includes capllalised borrowing costs less depreciation and impairment, if any. 

Cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises iis purchase pnce, including import duties and 

non-refundable purchase taxes, if any, after deducting trade discounts and rebates, any directly attributable 

cost of bringing the item to its working condition for its intended use and estimated cosis af dismantling and 

removing the item and restoring the site on which it is located. 

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have differant useful lives, then they are 

accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. 

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the statement of 

profit and loss. 

On transition to Ind AS, the Group had elected to continue with carrying value of all its property, plant and 

equipment recognised as at r 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as 

the deemed cost of the prope Plant and equipment. 2 Ay DYO o 
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Subsequent expenditure 

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate assel, as 

appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow fo the 

Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of any component accounted 

for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. 

All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting period 

in which they are incurred. 

Do method useful fi idual values 

Depreciation is calculated on cost of items of properly, plant and equipment loss thelr estimated residual value 

over their useful fife using straight line method and is recognised in the statement of profil and loss. 

The estimated useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment for the current and comparative periods 

are as under and the same are equal to lives specified as per schedule Il of the Act. 

The useful lives of ihe assets are as under: 

    

  

  

  
  

  

  

  

  

    

      
  

  

  

  
  

  

    

    
    

Particulars Useful lives (in years) 

Tangible assets: 

Land Indefinite 

Bullding 30 Years 

Ownership flat 60 years 

Plant & machinery 15 Years 

Electrical installations 10 Years 

Dies 15 Years 

Vehicles & Years 

Cranes 15 Years 

Measuring & testing 10 Years 

Furniture & fixture 10 Years i 

Office building 60 years 

Office equipment 5 Years 

Computers 3 Years 

Air conditioners and fans 10 Years 

Truck trailers 8 Years 

Fire-fighting equipment 15 Years 

Solar power generating system 5 Years |     
Based on technical evaluation and consequent advice, the management believes thal ils estimates of useful 

lives as given above best represent the period over which management expects io use [hese assets, 

Depreciation on addition to property, plant and equipment is provided on pro-rata basis from the date the 

assets are ready for intended use. Depreciation on sale/discard fram property, plant and equipment is 

provided for up to the date of sale, deduction or discard of property, plant and equipment as the case may be. 

Depreciation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end, and changes, if 

any, are acoounted for prospectively. 

(xl) Intangible assots VG 
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An intangible asset is recognised when it is probable that the future economic benefits attributable to the asset 

will flow to the Group and where its cost can be reliably measured. 

Intangible assets are initially measured al cost. Such intangible assets are subsequently measured al cost 

less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Cost comprises the purchase price 
and any cost attributable to bringing the assets to iis working condition for its intended use. 

Amortisation 

Amortisation is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets over their estimated useful lives using the 

straight-line method and is included in depreciation and amortisation in the statement of profit and loss. 

The useful lives of intangible asseis are as follows: 

  

  

  

Particulars Useful lives (in years) 

Intangible assets: 

Computer software a years           
Amortisation method, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end, and changes, if 

any, are accounted for prospectively. 

Losses arising from the retirement of and gain or losses arising from disposal of an intangible asset are 

determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and lhe carrying amount of asset and 

recognised as income or expense in the statement of profit and loss. 

(xii) Impairment of non-financial assots 

The Group's non-financial assets, other than inventories and deferred tax assets, are reviewed al each 

reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then 

the asset's or CGU"s recoverable amount is estimated. 

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped logether into cash- 

generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smalies group of assets that generates cash inflows that 

are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. 

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair value 

less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value 

using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the nsks 

specific ta the CGU (ar the asset). 

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable 

amount, Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss, Impairment loss recognised in 

respect of a CGU ts allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and 

then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other assets of the CGU (or group of CGUs) on a pro rata basis. 

After impairment, depreciation/amortisation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its 

remaining useful life. 

(xiii) Borrowing costs 

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing 
costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a substantial period 

of time to get ready for their intended sare capitalised as part of the cost of that Baset. Olher borrowing 
+ at en Pe 
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(xiv) Financial instruments 

Initial recegnition and measurement 

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All other 

financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised when ihe Group becomes a party fo the 

contracival provisions of the instrument. 

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured ai fair value plus, transaction costs thal are directly 

attributable to its acquisition or issue, except for an item recognised at fair value through profit and loss. 

Transaction cost of financial assets carried at fair value through profit and loss is expensed in the statement of 

profit and logs. 

Classification and subsequent measurement 

Financial assets 
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: 

* amortised cost, 

* Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI), or 

* Fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL) 

The classification depends on the entity's business model for managing the financial assets and the 

contractual terms of ie cash flows. 
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their inilial recognition, except if and in the period the 

Group changes iis business modal for managing financial assets, 

A financial assel is measured at amortised cost if & meets both of the following conditions and is nat 

designaled a5 at FVTPL: 

« ihe asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets fo collect contractual cash 

flows; ard 

«® ihe contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that ans solely 

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

A debt invesiment is measured at FVOCI if it meots both of the following conditions and is not designated as 

al FVTPL: 

« the asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual 

cash flows and selling financial assets; and 

* ihe contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates ta cash flows that are solely 

payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

On initial racegnition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may itrevocably elect to 
present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI (designated as FVOCI — equity investment). 

This election is made on an investment by invesiment basis. 

All financial assets mol classified to be measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are 

measured af FYTPL. This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the Group may 

irrevocably designate a financial asset thal otherwise meets ihe requirements to be measured al amortised 

cost or at FVOCI or at FYTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that 

would olhernvise arise. 

Financial a 

The Group makes an assess 
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« the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policies in practice, 

These include whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, 

maintaining a particular interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the 

duration of any related liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sabe of 

the asseis; 

* how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Group's management; 

the risks that affect ihe performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that 

business model) and how those risks are managed; 

* how managers of the business are compensated — e.g., whether compensation is based on the fair 

value of the assels managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and 

« ithe frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such 

sales and expectations about fulure sales activity. 

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are mot 

considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Group's continuing recognition of the assets 

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value 

basis are measured at FVTPL. 

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest 

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of (he financial asset on initial 

recognition, ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credil risk associated 

with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and 

costs (@.g., liquidity risk and administrative costs), a5 well as a profit margin. 

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the Group 

considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing wheiher the financial asset contains 

a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that il would not 

meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Group considers: 

= contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows; 

* terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features, 

prepayment and extension features; and 

« terms that limit the Group's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g., non- recourse features). 

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the 

prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interes’ on ihe principal amount 

outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the contract. 

Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its contractual par amount, a 

feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par 

amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional 

compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the 

prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition. 

  

Financial assets al amortised cost: These assels are subsequently measured a1 amortised cost using ihe 

effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses, if any. Interest income and 

impairment are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Any gain or boss on derecognition is recagnised 

in statement of profit and loss. 

Financial assets at FYTPL: These assets are subsequently measured at falr value, Net gains and losses, 

including any interest income, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.    1S hy JSOTOSN, 
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Mauria Udyog Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

Debts investments at FVOCI: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest income under 

the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or 

loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OC). On Derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in 

OCI are reclassified to profit or loss. 

Equity Investments at FVOCI: These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Dividends are 

recognised as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of 

the investment, Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are not reclassified to profit or loss. 

  

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as 

at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designaled as such on initial 

recognition, Financial liabilities al FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any 

interest expense, are recognised in the statement of profit and loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently 

measured at amortised cost using the effective interes! method, Interest expense and foreign exchange alms 

and losses are recognised in the slatement of profit and loss, Any gain or loss on derecognition is alsa 

recognised in the statement of profit and logs. 

Offsetting 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and ihe net amount presented in the balance sheet wien, 

and only when, the Group currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends elher 

io settle them on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

Derecognition 

Financial assets 

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial 

asset expire, or It transfers the rights to receive the contractual eash flaws in a transaction in which 

substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the 

Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain 

control of the financial asset. 

If the Group eniers into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, bul retains 

either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the iransferred asses are not 

derecognised. 

ial liabilitt 

The Group derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or 

expire, 

The Group also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under the 

modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified terms is 

recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability extinguished and 

the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in the statement of profit and loss. 

Impainment of financial instruments 

The Group recognises loss allowances fot expected credit losses on:- a, zt OS's 

- Financial assets measured at amortised cost; and e \S 
- Financial assets measured FOCI debt investments r - 
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Mauria Udyog Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year onded March 31, 2025 

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost and dabt 

securities al FYOC! are credit impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events. that 

have a deinmental impact on ihe estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Evidence 

that a financial asset is credit - impaired includes ihe following observable data: 
« significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer; 

* a breach of contract such as a defaull or being past due for agreed credit period; 

* the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Group on terms (hat the Group would mot consider 

olhervise: 

* itis probable that ihe borrower will enter bankrupicy or other financial reorganisation; or 

* the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties. 

Expected credit loss 

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured al an amount equal to Metime expected credit 

losses. 

Lifetime expected credit losses are ihe expected credil losses thai resull from all possible defaull events over 

the expected life of a financial instrument. 

12-month expecied credit losses are the portion of expected credii losses that result from defaull events that 

are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorier period if {he expected life of the instrument 

is bess than 12 months), 

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit bosses is the maximum 

contractual period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk. 

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial 

recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, (ha Gompany considers reasonable and supportable 
infermation that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and 

qualitative information and analysis, based on the Group's historical experience and informed credit 

assessment and including forward looking information. 

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than agreed 

credit period. 

The Group considers a financial asset to be in defaull when: 

« =the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the Group 

jo actions such as realising security (if any is held); or 

+ the financial asset is past due and not recovered within agreed credii period, 

rm of cted credit losses 

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the 

present value of all cash shortfalls (i.¢., the difference between the cash flows due to the Group in accordance 
with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive). 

Loss allowances for financial assets measured al amortiged cost are deducted fram the gross carrying amount 

of the asseis disclosed in the Balance Sheet. 
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Mauria Udyog Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year onded March 341, 2025 

Write-off 

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is 

no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Group determines that the debior does 
not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flaws to repay the amounts subject to 

the write-off. However, financial assets that are writien off could still be subject to enforcement activilies in 
order to comply with (he Group's procedures for recovery of amounts due. 

(xv) Earnings per share 

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the met profit or loss for the year aliributable to equity 

shareholders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the pertod. The weighted 

average numbers of equity shares outstanding during the period are adjusied for events such as bonus issue, 

share splli or consolidation of shares. 

For calculating diluted earnings per share, [he net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity shareholders 

and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all 
dilutive potential equity shares, The dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted into equity shares 

as at the beginning of the period unbess they have been issued al a later date. 

(xvi) Segment reporting 

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief 

operating decision maker. 

In accordance with Ind AS 108 — Operating Segmenis, ihe operating segments used to praesent segment 
information are identified on the basis of internal reporis used by the Group's Management to allocate 

resources to ihe sagmenis and assess thelr performance, 

Segment profit is used to measure performance as management belleves thal such Information is the most 

relevant in evaluating the results of certain segments relative io oiher entilies thal operate within hese 

industries, Inter-segment pricing is determined on an arm's langth basis. 

The operaling segments have been identified on the basis of the nature of producis/services. Further: 

1. Segment revenue includes sales and other income directly identifiable wilh / allocable to tha segment 

including inier-segment revenue. 

2. Expenses thal are directly identifiable with / allocable to segments are considered for determining the 
segment result. Expenses which relate to the Group as a whole and mol allocable fo segments are 

included under unallocable expenditure. 

3. Income which relates to the Group as a whole and noi allocable ta segments is included in unallocable 

incame. 

4, Segment assets and liabilities include those directly identifiable with the respective segments. 

Unallocable assets and liabilities represent the assets and liabilities that relate to ihe Group as a 

whole and not allocable to any segment. 

The Board of Director(s) are collecthvely the Group's ‘Chief Operating Decision Maker of ‘(CODM’ within the 

meaning of Ind AS 108. 

(xvii) Business combinations and Goodwill 

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method, othar han common control 

transactions. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred 
measured at the si n date fair value and the amount of any non-controfling interests.in_the acquiree. For 
each business Ue roup olects whether to measure the rence interests, am the acquiree 
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Mauria Udyog Limited 
Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

at fair value of the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Aqguisilion-related costs are 

expensed a6 incurred. 

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assels acquired and the liabilities assumed aro recognised al their 

acquisition date fair values, For this purpose, the liabilities assumed intiude contingent fiabilties representing 

present obligation and they are measured al thelr acquisition fair values krespective of the fact that the outflow 

of resources embodying economic benefits is not probable. However, the following assets and liabilities 

acquired in a business combination are measured on the basis indicated below: 

« Deferred tax assets or labilities, and the assets or liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are 

recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 Income Tax and Ind AS 19 Employee Benefits 

respectively, 

» Liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based payment arrangements of the acquiree or share- 

based payments arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-based paymant arrangements of 

the acquiree are measured in accordance with Ind AS 102 Share-based Paymenis at the acquisition date. 

« Assets (or disposal groups) thal are classified as held for sale in accordance with Ind AS 105 Mon-currant 

Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are measured in accordance with that standard. 

« Reacquired rights are measured at a value determined on the basis of the remaining contractual term of 

the related contract. Such valuation does not consider potential renewal of the reacquired right. 

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate 

classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent 

conditions as at the acquisition date, This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts 

by the acquires. 

if the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its 

acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss or OG, a5 appropriate. 

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised al fair value at the acquisition 

date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and within the 

scope of Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments, is measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in 

profit or loss. If the contingent consideration is not within the scope of Ind AS 7109, it is measured in 

accordance with the appropriate Ind AS, Contingent consideration that is classified as equity Is not re- 

measured at subsequent reporting dates and subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity. 

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and 

the amount recognised far non-controlling interests, and any previous interes! held, over the net identifiable 

assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of the 

aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified all of the assets 

acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the amounts to be 

recognised al the acquisition date. If ihe reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value of net assets 

acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, the gain is recognised in OCI and accumulated in 

equity as capital reserve. However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain purchase, the entity recognises the 

gain directly in equity as capital reserve, without routing the same through OCI. 

After initial recognition, goodwill Is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose 

af impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to 

each of the Group's cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from (he combination, irrespective of 

whether olher assets or liabilities of the acquirae are assigned to those units. 0 YO? 
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Mauria Udyog Limited 
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more 

frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount of {he cash 

generating unit Is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying 

amount of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro rata based on fhe 

carrying amount of each asset in the unit. Any impairment loss for goodwal Is recognised in profit or loss. An 

impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods. 

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is 

disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of the 

operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is 

measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of ihe cash-generating unit 

retained. 

if the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by the and of the reporting period in which the 

combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts for the ems for which the accounting is 

incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted through goodwill during the measurement period, or 

additional assets or liabilities are recognised, to reflect mew information obtained about facts and 

circumstances that existed at the acquisition date thal, if known, would have affected (he amounts recognised 

at that date. These adjustments are called as measurement period adjustments. The measurement period 

does not exceed one year from the acquisition date. 
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Depeche rear om plan aapaie cu a 

Pion avis 

Tha plus adpets of the Genap ore reanaged by the Loe lsparance Capers af [edie theaugh ao (ruil eged bey Te Dernpany if herd of aA ieee 

prodigy (tnlein fe Aneel SbBigatiogs of the Commun ith reipect bo ia gratuity plan. 

Pian diet commprioed of the following Paar 2, ied Plan aooete =| March Ji, BREA 

B0RS 

Te 

3 0d Minn annie 

Pusat: racucend Da onpuner 1s She5 iar 

An aioet-babdlity rudihing phudy 4 dine by the Groep an an aeresal basis, wheceby the Geman comtritanes the set increase in the echuarial Raboliny jp the ple 

prabeaapee oh ceteher bay erudtacjer the Label rth. 

da tuadial aspirrertions 
The principal asuerptors ace the dacount rite and walacy growth cate. The ducourl tite i bined epon the market poids aeadable on government bond af 

the aprcaning date eth a term that matches that of Gebiltien dalary incceaee cate taeen into account of inflaton, weiontp, promotion and other cebevart 

Faced on Dyeay See Raed Viator pepe gee te lg wich haere beer manned Obey they Greg: 

  

March Fi, DaE5 March 11, Dodd 

Gimcount ate moh Tiss 

Cepected rate of Fate palany creo Looe, tore. 

Expected rite of atria Los, LT iy) 

Mortality PALA 2 E2- ba Raha | 

See AN 
gay oi] 

Z| ES Se — mee VF ‘ fil 

Tsu PA 

 



  

‘Miners Uidpeg Litroted 
‘iishes bs the Censeideied fiaancial statements do the year ceded Margh 91 2025 

AAP amour ar to aes ena ple ote 

© Senetivety anal 

featorably paeidele chareqas ay the reporting datedo oa.o! he eleydel ottuanl supers, Roding after aumptora coma. wold hire Tact) Te 

defiead Banef® obbgatens bry See great provi below, 
  

  

  

March 94, 2025 March 51, 2024 

Incr Derereer lanier Ceeoreanm 

(Ciecment rate COS Rareemaret] Tet eek Tra aia 

Febvee dalary grreth (100% mreercentl 1029 1614 TOL59 TRL 

Withdraeadl abe [1 2). movement 17041 Ves 17S 1h a 

dithscesag the arabyain. dows. ot ae accord ef thee full dipiribation of caph floen expected usder the pln. it deed prose an appeoirraios of the aerniivity 

of tha mnsernptiors chine, 

Siereatretion dio bo rrecetubbty ti taal Patera ard Ravice bepact ol change cn not caleutehes 
Seastivities an to rape of inflation, tiie of isereude of peestord in payment, rate of increune of persona batons retirees ged le expectancy are rot 

applicable beg a esp gum benefit on ngtnemient 

Geseriptlos of Mak Coxpaeures: 
Vabeations are biped on certain sapureptions, which ang dhymurrée bn furhent ared wary ower terse, ep pact the Compeiers in epoca Go vdetores eich ad other: 
a), Salary becemane: Actail salary inareaies oll increase plan's lability. leeregam im salary Snireaie cate dene ptor in futons valustore vel abo incon Toe 

lipteatity 

fe. inverter fake 0 olae ig Merde than asoete baboon ceomatch & dtbuad bereitrrepst rebaen on dmete ioveepr than the ciecourl tide aakueeedd af Ta Het 

values che can impact the label. 

c]. Chto nites Redurties in dcnand rade in pubueqeent vahuebets oie berekie the play atebty, 

fl. Mectality B diesbality: dicheal deaths & ciuability coset ptovirg lewer or hegher than ancareed in ha waluation can impact the hair. 

o) Withdrwale: Actual withdrew ptoarg higher or lower than surermed wthdrasads and change of eathebawal antes of ubsequend valeations can impact 

‘bon pilien's Babetry. 

fF. Capected eraturity anabyais of the defined benef plans in deture pean 
  

  

  

  

Deration af defined benef obligation. Aa wt fin at 

Parc 11, PATS Planch 11, 2024 

Leas thes | pear aa ae 

Beteaer® 1-2 paid a2 9a) 

Deteppe 2-5 pear mote 3050 

Cheer 5 peas 9182 tPes 

Total 170.50 aya 

~dnace etetionally et baad _ 
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Mauria Udyog Limited 

Notes to the Consolidated financial statements for the year onde March 31, 2025 

(AY amount ane Foon dace, alee wlafed obbernase! 

50 Related party disclosures 

AL List of related parties where control ests and/or with whom bransactions have taken place 

in accordance with the cequirerments of Ind 45 24 on Related party disclowunes, the names of the related parties where control mits ander aith whom Erardactions have taken place during the 

year and description of relationships, as identified and certified by tha management are: 
  

Relationship Name of related party 

Enterpriaes im which person, who excercise control over the Beharip ipa Udyog Lineted 

Company, have significant influence or ia/are KAIF Deepak Hotels Private Limited 

) 47, Grginpering Serveces Limited 

Jotindra Shel & Tubes Limited 
Quality Synthetic ireluviries Limited 
Snoinarayan Rag Kurs Marchaets Linh 

Surmke Puble Chgiiby Treat 

Tang Favhiona india Private Limited 

Varshnoudedt Propesteos Provabe Lireated 

Veo Er inlocentre Peiwate Limited 
  

  

Key Management Personrel (KMP) Mr. NK, Sureke Manageng Dheectar 
Mr, Durvireder Kurnar Gupta Chief Financial Officer (upto 28 October 2024)” 
Mr. Deopak Arya Chief Financial Officer (from 28 October 2024) 
Mrs. Divya. Agareval Comnparry Secretary 
Mrs, Deepa Sureka Dirwetee 

Relative: of HMB Ss Mrs, PLL, Surekn Moth of Managing Dinechar 

Mr. VK Suteka Father af Managing Director 
Mr. Deepandhu Sureka 

  

San af Managing Dirmcbar



Maurie Uchrog Llenited 

Notes te the Consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2025 
A anew ane? i ce undies stated mbrernce! 

8. Details of related party transactions and their outstanding balances recetvable of payable are an below: 

  

  

  
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

    

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

    

        
  

  
  

                
  

Mature of related party Description Amount Gutstanding 
Volume of tranpaction Receivable saad Payable oa at 

Current year Previous year Coment year Previous year Current year Previous year 

Enterpetes in which person, Sabo af goods aed other ibems 106.15 335.50 1269 - - 

whe axcercie control over/Puechase of goods and others items 4,554.87 3418-94 = - 350.36 

the Company, hawe| Payment of purchase 

significant influence or tajare|Labour charges paid 92.70 156.04 226 - - 

KAP Sale of investments - 1.27 - - " - 

Purchase of investments hab = = 

leterest paid 2B 16 56005 “ - 

bvtaroat recored 10.76 a 

Berrewings taken 13200 6,064 84 - 4,482.77 EPe70 

Berrawings repaid B6565 427025 - - 

Sale of fixed assets = $h.o9 

Purchace of bubdieg maternal 19985 281.65 . 117.04 

Lean qevir S110 TAI 

Loans recesod back #225 : - - 

Security depesits T6800 : = 168.00 “ 

Rant monved 5/34 144 = - 

Rent paid 1,80 La = S45 366 

Others: = 

Key management personmel |Bonewings repaid 250,00 = - . 

Bontcrwings tar d5000 . - 137.00 - 

Sitting fees pac bo non-eoeculd 

directors: o71 O30 - O27 O27 

Employers remuneration 01 67.35 =, Vi 13,10 

Share applicabon morey rehand 1050.00 " . 

Shara applicabian money 1,050.00 - = 1.65000 

Relative of key management | Borrowings taken ‘ : 1088 2at 

pertonnel Purchure of irreesirerents = Oe . . 

Employers menuneratean eat 10.33 * 0.58 245i 

‘Gabe and purchate bem the related pantves ane eachuishve of GST. 

Terenas & Conditions: 

The facsactions with related parties ane made on terms equivalent to those that prevad in genn's hength transactions and are at market vahun. 

A\DYO A 
feo ~EN, Seppo a 
Hey \   

 



Mururia Udyog Liewibed! 
Noten to the Consolidated financial catements for the your ended March 31, 2025 

A area aan Fos Ga omer sified ol erese! 

£1 Inferect in other eetitinn 

  

  

  

ieformataen abenut pabeidiarian 

The congolelated fieancial sabements of the oompany includes aubsidianes listed in the table below: 

We Equity intrrest 

Country of fin wt Aa a 

ae Pe ee Incorporation | March 31, 2025 | fitarch 11, 2024 

Strawberry Sear India Prewate Limited Feeal eviake acticin tha hao) 100 65 

Bihargi Highrise Prevabe (inated Real elate wcinvtens Irvdaa 20) Th 

Bhatis Properties Prete Lerited™ heal oulate welievirea Irchia Tate 72       
    
Wen controling inderett Pe in the both companied ii gating. So management has decided to not bo book the pate. 

  

S2 Additional information, ax required ander Scheduls (1 to thee Companies fict, 2015, of enterprives commolidwted aa Subshdiary aed Aepoclates, 

fig ot March 11, 2025 

    

  
  

  

                
  

    

  

  
  

        
        

  

      

| Frame pron Met Aseets ie total easets | Share in peofiter lor | Share in gthercemprehensiva | Share in tetal comprehensive 
Aa ef fs % of Aa % of other As % of total 

conaclidated | Amount Profit fer | Areund | compre bencive Areceurt compeshensive firmount 

nel eae the year incerma lene 

Holding 

Maurie Lidyog Lirratedt 25222% B.US6.62 100.08) 1800.78 100. OO fae POOUDE 1401 Ba 

Subabdiarien 

Strawberry Star India Preeate 

Limited OT (0.64) HONS 0.13) Ors - =01% @y 

Bihargi Hightise Private Lievted -106BSS) G4go03) i aay 000% " Lor (oat 

Gharqi Properties Private 

Lisited A6Se) (14980 A (4a) oe , “0.0m (aay 

10660) 22.62 WLO0R) 1815.76 00.00% (e943 4400.82 

fe ot Mirch 21, 20ze 

Mame of Enterprise Met Agpete Le. total sepets | Shareinprofiter les | Share in other comprehensive | Dhare in total compechensive 

fa % of Aa 6 afl fa % of other Aa % of total 
conaaidated | dunounk Profit for | Amount | comprthengive Arrepurt comprehensnae Amani 

mt arpa ‘ihe year itor lncaerie: 

Holding 

Maurla Udyog Linited 2EO43%| = BTS 10s) er Se TODS creah Te 1 ebb. Ta 

Subsidcarieg 

Stravtbency Star lincha Pras 

Lire Loa ee Lore, (0.06) fs - Cul U0} 

Biharip Hightive Private Limited -D174%) «(GB aRESS) ALOE 28) oom) - “Q02% ney 

Binaripi Progeertigs Prrvate 

Limited BTM) | CST ely ore 0.26) OOS. : “uns ic 

100%!) = a O772e 100.00%) 1eTLoT (ooo. (7.80) G00 1,666.08 

poe 
ie, tA 

ZV AMIT ES 
fo SO", 
ale | 

zie | {I 

Cl | oe 1 

  

    
 



  

wueia Udyog Lienited 
Siete to the Conselidated Mrancial staberents for the year ended Maech 91_ PERE 

GF arourts are Fo ee ved ee ier! 

aa 

a 

Operating ceguenia 

Hanis dee Beqeterdation 
Segment inigemation in preenbed in neapect of the Groep's key operating segments. The operating wngrennti ine based on Te Group's manaqemers anc 
intenal repeeting structure, The che! operating deciion malar idewtied primary degments based an fhe dominant couree, nature of rivke and peta ated 

the intemal crqaniadion and management siruciuee. The operatiog seqeects ane the pegments for which aeparate fieancial Ivormation in avedable anc 

for whith operating peodision: amounts are mvalusted mequiarly. AN operating aeqrensti’ operating newslte are nedieeerd regularly by the Board of Derecters 
te moder decisiom about neiourced to be ected ip the seqrects aed aeven ther performance. 

The Beard of Decors” hawe been identiied oa. the Chie! Opecuting Decaion Maker (ODOM since they are ceaporuble for afl migot deciioe eee L Te 
preparation and weecution of butineds pln, preperwtion of budget. planning, expancion, liaree, joint ventens, manger and acqueltion, and axpacaion of 
ary facility. 
Tha Board of Dinertors eaarnines the Gerrep's performance from burdened activities perepectiog and have identified the following reportable segenests of ite 

Fader 
  

  

Reporiaile aingmante ‘Operstione 
rast actuary This mally induces mamudactunng of UG cybrdets, valve, 

mequlatord, toveta, cortices proven are PPE bie 

Trading This ruaindy iincluches trading ol! steel plutei, iteam. coal are 

cotton muna 
  

information about reports segments 

Legian! anieti, aeyrment atvlties and Segment profit and leas ate petaduted ov Thee saree wary an in thes Grumcial etabenenta. 

information tegarding the engults ef each reportable pegment i included below Rerlermance 4 mtacured based on eegrent profit fbelore tanl, at 

eeloded in the inmemal marapement reports that are reviewed by the Group's Qoued of Gerectorn, Segnard profit in uned io measere perlermance at 
management believer that auch infeesaton fs fhe moat nelevand in eusluating the neil of certain gegevente relative fo other artitet that apatite within 

then ndwiiries. lsbersaement prong, ol any, i deterrened Of ae aes hewgth basa, 

  

    

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

Fee the year enced Marci 11, 2075 A able 4h Total 

Marestactoring Trading 

Segment neernue AQT bh ay a0 471.07 

Reveree (rem ecternal curt ae iy 007750 

Segre remy Haw (5 EDEOGE 

Total profit aaa) before tam for reportable aegments 22h457 5.753) 2,220,88 

(Cthw incoma rey 

‘Emgeplepnal derre 1,455.65 

finance coahi Culsra id) 

Prgtay iefare tan S532 
Ta expen (265) 

Pred after tar 1,819.76 

Onis coenipreheraiee for (ied 

Total commepretanstive pendit a 

hegment aati mares 2S2t Bah 32660 oe 

Lie glig¢ ably open 78d 7h 

Total sorts lt 

Segment bab Veo. 14 aa TAP 

Linaliccabls bis betien TRV 

Total linbikties j8 ATEST 
  

  

 



  

Pdaorie Udyog Lire 

Mubes fo the Coreclidated Heaerctial yiateesrria for the year anded March 11, Dero 

AF eet one 2 in dace, ude ahited! offeror 

  

    

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

    

For the year ended Maech (1, DoT frpertable wegen Teta 
(Manufacturing Trading, 

Legment ometnet TLE 28 133.37 ae 
Aewnue fom ester euatome|rt BRATS26 1EL5T 335048) 

Segment somdta ea 1 mn 1605 cal 

Total prodit/[lom) before tax for repectable segment Ley (ob 165. 

Other wcome Mem 

Finasee coi i207 

Profit bedcore tox Vagh 

Tat Saeed ies 

Profit after tax Loe 

Othe: come ehenowe income Cuan 

Total cen prehencse prota 1G 

feqmant wacta PD | 20S 11 SE2e 

Lpalbcrwide as nete 1h, 147 8t 

Trin aor 26,550,176 

Sapgeree ryt latebt eee Fa Lad 16.Bt 1h, Tl ad 

Uruiiocoble babii ETLF2S.17 

Totad linbaiters a}aT3.E9 

Geogrplig information 

The Geoup ii desdcded in bedig. The arepure of ite neue bom enteradl castes beoken down by locaton of Bee cuniomen in thown elev 

Reverse trom diferent qergraphies 
  

For the yearended = far the year ended 
March F1, 2025 Maech 11, Dera 

  

  

‘Wither inch 11,195.28 #587 of 
Castaic iredia TAS7h05 mse 

0071.24 ery 

Han-qunnea gums”   

Fer the year eaded = For the year ended 
March 34, TES March 11, 2024 

Mifishain bedi OE. Tihag 

Ounce inchs a 
POAT 1700588 

*han-numest aapete other than Grimcial alhurrest and deferred tax ansets. 

        

  

. Alferd eee 

fieverue rem taaaactons wis eternal cotter aseuntiag io MD per cert or more of the Groep neers of ad flere 

For the year ended March 01, 20245 Amourd 

Customer fi Sale 

Canosa Z 2,260.95. 

Bsradi 

For Ue pear eedded Pach 91, 2024 aamaurt 

‘Cuatera | OM 

Certo 2 Toog8 

  

 



  

Maura Wdpog Lirreted 

Noten to tha Conaolidsted financial matements for the pear ered March 71, 2075 
BOM aergents are Fie lace, one nated aherasne! 

44 tea 

Leann apo beer 

enh meena er be Qe on operating lease refer footeete! 

Fowtrcrte: 

  

Fer the yeorended For the year ended 

  

  

Murch 11, 2025 Murch 11, 2024 

gga wa 
5hee raat 
  

tha Group hun gives ai pare al a dactory lend and fudiding aituated wt Sota Pond oop Shree Sad Mhacat Peirofeum ump, Senor 55, Parcel, Haryana 

121004 tn Aaliirsy porter 

Murnlomesct inde Poyate Lorrened 

Be incl Fashions Retad Prwube Lireited 

Tauna Fawtiged Gretta! Privang Limned 

Bhai bnpat Uddyesy Larvted 
jotindra Steel and Tube Lented 

Leate apreereseh: entered by the Parent Company ate caetiiie mre 

  

Be ae 

1a Lad 

ase 79 
iad 2 

aM 1a 

1G " 

Sioa 0-98 
  

The lease rental income mecogeiued im the Shatemest of Protit and Loar for the pear in neipect od puch beaeed te Stet Lace [persicae year © BOOB Bea, 

  

Snare extentions eff Blick 

@yorors, fee “SA 
ie w¥ 

{= (a! 
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Maurin eyo Limited 
Meter Io the Conpelidated firarcial ctrbereents for the peur ended March 31, TRE 

iY aroun ane fon ia use nie oer 

S50 fairvalue meaureerr |) and financial inateureeis 

A), Finenglal Gasteaenta — by cobegery andl febr wahuew herrerchy 

The tnfigeiing table thows the campcg amoutis and [aie value of firueeial aaeets eed Grarocial listpelities, oochacireg the leevets in the fate vihum hiararchy. 

value Fale value mpoqurement un 

FeTTo! Amectiand cot ‘Total Level t Level 2 hawt 1 
Aa of Mares B1, 2075 

financial anoete 

Aerie, 

ieweairnenis 

Troe recerstlen 

Oiber fraretial set 

Currant 

Trade reperancl es 
Cagh and canh 

Other bark baleen 

Loard 

Tatal 

Sha Th 

2457949 

Bala Bt 

Bao 

20h ei 
ET028.93 

Aa of March Fi, 2004 

Financial Jineets 
Hote gird 

nweiimenta qn 
Treks nenevebles TEV 

Crib Grancal aisets 1 a2 84 
Curren 

Trace receresties Day 
eS ee 64 

ther bark balance 1291.79 11078 

Loar, : 170 17.55 
Gther fmancal asec 5 pia Teta 

Tertal 7719 18,841.71 13,824.10 

Tinarcal lisbileare 

Bige—corrent 

Bor 

Carrer 

Get 

(Other financial habbits 

Total   
 



  

Maurie Wyog Limited 

Aietea to the Cocackdeted financial sivierests fer the pear edad March 11,2025 

(al aonpgery are iy dence, undiers riated! offerenia! 

fate value hierarchy 
level (rt chucked Fisartinad irene Prpoaeined Wing quoted prices 
Lewel 2: The fae salut of fearecial inatrumenis at dee not ineded in in acts Sarbort a delenrined wing valustes bechreqees which murine the ute of 
cbaervable murat data and rely i tthe as paeuble om entity apectic evtimates. Hall uigeiicant inpute ecuived to fale walue an intteemest are ceervabile, 

Uboip ever of beer Piast’! bv eres J 

tava : Bene ar more of the sgrifiqest inguin ia net bane on cbdervabhe mactet data, the batruesart ix irechudged ini Maro! 1, Thay (air waka of firuaccial 

wicete ood babligen included in Laren! J it detereinnd bs epmedasce with geraealy accepted peeing model bated on dtuvted cash fips aeadyuie wen 

prtoet from obasrcable quest mage! bamactons and dealer qealed of ble ieee 

The carrey acura. of ade recewables, cash and cach eqpealesti and pther feancial atpete ared Gatebtien, spprovimaten the fair value, dew to ther 
wheter eature, Fr value of fiance aoeete and fruecul babdiges a orrelr to hae carrpng wile as arte th tee sega fanenl clearence better careng 

‘oda ocd Lipa alla 

Waluabon protesiet 

Tha Manageseni cectorms the saluatens of flramcal amt. and Labdlter required for fieancal reporey merponen om a perescie: Sarnia, inching level J Tae 

aRee 

BL. Financial rik mainaperre 
Fhe Campary has expouse bo the folly ci airy toe Snarciad neonate 

*peebe rick 

oe Ligqumicby risk 
a igre trike 

Credit risk 
The rack amcceuie bo creek Finke eepeesented bp the total cacpng amount of Bede feearcial adsets in tee Balareng Peet 

Anat anne 

March 11, 107% March 11, 2024 

  

Track recereabien OORT ote 1417 

Loar VES W701 

Bark baleroes ooter than cash anc cost equiwakerts 214745 Las 

Other financial aimerts 1 hoe LPT 

Credit rink iu tha rie of firameiad dost to The Geeup Ha nustemer on counterparty to a finarumal oritrarrest fae vo mrepet fie comtrectuad obligutigna, and arama 

principally en the Group'n negewables from customers. 
The Gteup's ered oak at piracy to the amoont due from cuiterters and lane, The Geoup rusriaina a defined. coadit polecy and Pateloek ihe eepaneree tp 

ghewe credit ska on an ongoing batts Credit ick on cagh and cach equivdenté ii Deretedl aa the Geeup generally inverts in depotits wth scheduled 

esrrenercial bard with high creda ratngd asiigeed by demerte ced rating agencies 

The Group fan not applied expected ened leas model an per ind AG 109 wied be aineai the orpucrent lyet or gain on trade recereablet, However the 

Group biied udes hivenicsl experience Gatermirad an impair ees eaanne for byan ou recerebhes 

When a trade cecersable is credit impaired. it le written off aquicdt brace recetwabllen ded the amoent of the lots in meengniied in the mceene dtabeenent 
Subsequent neowerian of arourts pievcuily wither ef ane credited te the ingore slalemert 
The qract ceanpng amesunt of trade recmeydbles fT 13009 Lone (Perch 01, OQ FTG bees. Trace pepeevables are qaneralhy realied wits the 

credit period) enteee foe tee trade repewvablen incleded in nonscueren| Giuscial asuete, deamiption of whech hai been green ih Mone 8 

  

  

  

  

  

  

The Groue's tapeerere So creda rink for trade ieceerabied are dd toler aa ae Aaa 

March Fi, 2005 Maech 11, 7024 

Hot home 
= = 

0 to WR) tees peat ho ios EOg6.29 

165 daa a 60 oon) 

BET de =] S1az 

Mong than 710 days 1040815 HUS1S58 

Moree maton the afleenisor fos roaement in reupest of brace receresbles: Forthe year ered = Fer the year ended 
Aderch 97, BEES fdmrch 31, DeTd 

Salar a1 Pr Degree haga ,EBTTS 

Imguarment kaa netogeined ‘ened nai Ss 

denny weather of bd) 

Balance of the ond BAT 17 bs ee 
  

  

 



  

Misuris Udyog Limited 
Aipdes to the Comsolidated financiel siterments far the year eded March 14, 200% 

ea ee dace leu rite! obteoriie! 

(ih. Ligaidity rik 

Liquiehity rink in Bie riuk thal the Group will encounter ddficuity in meeting Te obligations acicciated with ita fmancal Gatebibes that ane settled by celreering 

rath or ancther Gnaseial inset, The Grows apprach to managing Inquadity bo eemane, an tar an posible, that it will Rave sMicwest Dqsaadity to meet its 

babies: whee Suey ane fallen: dow, ureder beth nomad and wreweed condita, wifheat inowring aeacceptatle Iman ot raking edmage te the Geena 

reunion 

The Growp believes that imu liquidity peaitios of © 42356 lors an at March 11, Boda (Maech 31, 2024: faa lace) aed the anticipated futore btermally 

generated fund free operations wll esabte it tg ment ita Future knees otegations is thy ordinary course of bopineds except certais erasing. 

The Group it under fnartial siren and ihe defied in repaymentinertting of certain borrowings ard in actively punting the lenders for 
retteattucing rescheduling of such borrceningy to avast are unbowaed bepuicity rik. 

Prodest bquldity rik management implies maining suficeet cash and marketable securities aed the availabilty of funcing throug’ an adequate 
agent of credit dacilties ip peet obligations when due The Group's pollny in to regularly moniter ita Geuidbty requieerests to erauen that it maintained 

uuficbert retereniof cidh and Aueding from Group companies bo meer its lquedity requirements in the ahort and long bese 

The Group's liquidity managersrst penne an reondiooed by rmumaqermmct, inches the folleming: 

o (Duy body fueding, managed by eotdtoring future cast flows to euune that requires tas be eet, 

-Mairtaiaieg eoflrey leeecacts of the troup’ lcpadity petition an the bane of gepacbed cant: flow 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

    

  

  

Eeepesauire tes Uepabdlity rink 
Fallow ng ote Te neraieng conwscread mabutterd of feared baerteet at tha reporting cate. 

ep at Marche 10, 2024 Canbacteal cach flew 

ne ‘Lean than Between eae bo More than Total 

a year fivew yrart ‘hee yeure 

Bier tre 1a GEG bane) 65G9 75 - L986 

Trade payables BAM 25 Las « : fais 

Ctther frurccial bebditeri. STE Puss Reread ' Lietz 

Fatal a7 876.74 17,477.15 550518 - 27 EEE 

Aggt March 21, Date — Contractual cosh flown 

(eee Ear Babewen one bo Fare Than Titel 

ane wrar Che pee thew yearn 

Brae fey VEE TLST Sats da - T1355.) 

Frade payable Bete 6G0eL at - = sOk 
Orpnas Fireciadl Giabedtiern ook 4t MET nea . I41 

Tvtal TE T4980 Bora as a500 18 5 2h a 

fim Aberin s tele 

Adprtogt ride in he rio thi the Future eagh flew of 6 fleancial eteunerd wil Mectuate becoe of change in marine priced. Parked Ach compres thee 

pear of riste lnvierett rate rie, cerrency rik and other preg rik, the Qrgep maindy bad ampomere So tees type of rarer rk namely caraccy tik td bere 

eate itk, The chien of market rick runagemert in to manage wed contrel market rink wepcwaned within apoeplabhe parareetere, whilg optirniiing tha 

omtuee 

a. iraerest rate Pik 

evterest rote rise ia then tk Chan the future cath Bows of a Greancial ipdirusert ell fechute becacie of changed in arbor! avleneit rates. The Group's man 

faterent rave tak acter tom fong-teres berromings with warisble rates, which expoda the Giceap bo cauh flow internet rate rink, 

Eepoaure to in beerit eage risk: 

The nth a eanaged by the Group by martereng 2A agoropeiuhe mas between fed and Moaned lite boerperg 

Cath flow aqsattietty arudhpuit for vanwble-rabe instruments 

The seradiety arabian baice hawe been deseeroned baped os the empceure bo interest dates at the eee af the nepeartiog genio 

For Floating ite laden except ioe the borrowing’ aquiewl which wo beterent lisbélty in being recogriaed, the atalptis ia prtgaeed auserming the amount of 

the liability cuttianding al the eed of thee reporting period wan culiinding for the sole pear, A 60 bank point berate ot decane ued when reporting 

iehereatupte rick internally io lery manager peepee! and eepreents managements aaitiorert af the reasonably posable change on irbetest tales. 

    

  

  

Profs ar loon Equity, mat cd tax 

Sibpsinercase FObpedecream = $0 boa increas 48 bps decrease 

ieeeeet on lagna from ewer 

Fes thee pear encled March Ht, 2025 0.38 a 028 om 

for the iar ended March 34, 24 Cah) Lo mr ore 

ivideeat on inane dram others 

Fee the pear ded Planch 91, 2004 an) az5 aay 2a 

For the pia mcded larch 31, Dod aon aah (2.74) 2M 

ave 
a 

Pa as 

(sr NC 
i [ =   

 



  

Minuria Utyeg Limtied 

Ristes io the Comsolidated financiel statements fer the pear eae Marck 11, 2024 

AP ase ee eden, ee riated of Serene! 

‘b. Correney Hak 

fhe Geoup undertaiees tneesaciess denominated in fomign curecca, commequently, emotes: oo eerhange rate Aortuor acne Exchange rie 
aves one unaged eethen acoroved polity crerenert 

  

  

  

    

Eepeeure io fenegn Gerry Fiik 

The carrying amount of the Geeupss fortige caremge denominated monetary aioe and Poretary Eabebtien at the end of the ceportng peried ae at 

fetes. 
An at Agat 

Diner" Plareh F1, 2005 Piereh 31, ee 

Farcigs currency Equivalenk f Foacign currency Faulwalent F 

Qecebvablen 

fale of gonca/earvicen iso faT 70.20 TRES 1S 

FL, 130 1ATh 4 LS boa 

Gepoats / bed bereds Lo 1 7 1 armas 

alo oa 10.0% ou Wag 

Balance: wth banks of reeraea Eraser aD o20 ab om on 

Leo im ae in ire 

Unhedged neorvabln VAb8, 17 abd ae 

Payabien 

lenpart of goods USD 15 BE aoloo0 Ba 74 ie 
UR 4B TISERE Se VIS 

2a8 - : atl aT 

Uahevhg ea paye ben SATE caine 

Aes enhedged foreign correrry ceporere CAT) (STA) 

Borrign durency aenethvity atahy tia 

The following table cletads the Greop's seriitety to a 000% increame arc decreas in then (BYE) against WSO", ELA* ered ARCH Go in the arcciteity rate 
Lied when eeporting dpnmge currency rise intemal bo logy rumagemest perracnel and cepeosents manaperents isicisSest of the reaper pean 
change in fontge machasge rates The peratety arabs included ochp culslardiag fesegn cumescy denominated monetary ieend ate adel ther 
vardivbos at the period end for a O59 dhunge in tense cemescy egies. in case of net fornige curnmicy outflow, & pret eureber baloew indarsten an 

ireraaie in peel ot eqesty where The F strengcern 04% againet he eebreesl quereney. For a 00% weakening of the © aguerit the rebeviel cuererety, Pere 

would be a comparable iepact on the pro h ae equity, and the balmmces below would be neguties. le case of ret toneqn querency inflow, a pote member 
below indicaier on increase in profit or equity where the E retakene 00% aguirat the relevant pumecey, for a G0 dtresgthesieg af tee 1 againet the 

relewant currency, there would be a comparable impact on the profit or equity, and the balanne belea would be meqatien 

Braff os boaa Equity, nei of tom 

FE bps bea oie 50 pa 

  

    

ire ran deienne incregse deorars 

Les 

(ee the pear eeded March 31, 2323 MeFi 2] quaces} TES 

Foe the pear ended March 31, B24 mea] aa roe on 

EuAL 

Foe Gham yous! cade Marah 91, 20% 3a on 7h a7 

For Gg pear ended March 31, 2008 ah bie Au 34 

aE 

For tm yee onde Mech 1, 2S aq (o.oh) bos may 

Figs thay your evaded March 11, 2004 aot reo oce foety 

TAR 

Fier thap yaar ered Merds 1, HOS - a . 5 

For that yaar avedeal Meer’ 11, 0c (Doty ooo Ao O00 

“(LM fino, COD Dindted! Saated Dade, ALG vine! arab fimirater Dirhart and ZAR Seutt Atseas Bary 

Ate Sel, SA 

  

 



  

Masris Udyog Limited 

Aighpe to the Conecdidated dinaecial riatemenia for ter yoar ende)d March 31, ToEh 

SAY serpents ane Fin dace, crwegn stated! otherness 

Capital Management 

For en perpote of the Gtue Goel anagem, comtal icles led epetty where capil and afl other equty neeree attribylable to the equity 

heddarn of tha Group. 

Mansgenent aninses the Group's costal iequementi is onder te rueruen an ales: aeerall Crarsiag weuthiee The Group manages thy capeial 

siructare aed makes acjuptrests 308 in the light of changes in econdenic conditond aod Ghee irik characteriGen of the edhe) aa, 

To muitntamn of adputt the capital girveture. thet Gemap rug rete capetal tg pharehodders, raiee mess debt oe hue cow thares 

The Group mentor oigetal om tha baad of Be lobe be capt tates, whee og cated 24 reel ietaeg dette dkdded bey batal capAal [equaty afireanable 

fa genes of Dee pared laa ivterett-Seaneg desta] 
  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

a et Bia at 

Muerch 54, DEES March 54. hand 

4 ‘ 1.5 CSE 

hee Cash ord bark balanced SLO 158 Bei 

Adjurted nat deb [Ad pre reel ‘T4757 

Tetal aqudey 1B} AE 1ET FE 

Adjurted at debit to adjarted wqsity ratio (ASE) HLT ro 

GT The Title deedt of the lemcwatle propection are held in the came of Group 

SH Transactions with ruck aff companies 

Mame of rtrack-off Company Aelaticnsh = Mature of transection Galanreceicundsg = Povlsan ewe 

da oh Maaygh 01 DETS aaa March 11. eT 

fbhueyp letpetnegd Liersted Moredabonhe  lewestmeni on ieturten os on 

erasadli fart City Provane Lireited Mo relationthas  ineestmaerrtin uecuritiea bal a1 

Mame of sirech oll Cempany Adaticaship = Matern of transaction Tshinrectvunding = Prevvlaian celina 
an Pare 01 DT ok ot Pech 91 Pea 

Bihar betetsatonal Lierated No reluficastis 9 levertreert in wecuntian os ‘ 

donrapali Smart City Peeve Lirrited Morefatonhis eared in ene on * 

A= 
colipare Antares alt beara 

ee, 

ear 

F : re 
‘ % 

Sor Se 

Iz = 
ye fing 
ih eee 

  

 



Maurie dog Lire 

Motes to Bea Comaolidated financial vutements for ther yrer ended March 11, 7075 

QQ asus: ae 2 an dac pees pated often! 

29 Cheeetitatere defadls of eeelachernd and busied qoods 

Particulart 

Manifactored 

LG a 

UG Valen 

EVP
 
EI
E|
SU
EI
EI
E|
FF
E1
3 

Bl
a]
 s 

e418 aaaT 

140.9 9,278   
fig], Other pale inches gates of raw material and general stores, spared, teat, oh, lubricants and packing materigh., I inchades furrtioud thd, hence queettity of dake canrept be aceetained Opening vicch and clang slot 

ef these iene ase included in stock of raw material, stores and epaced are leone tooki nipecteely. Purchase of thea Herre ane ingiucied in cort of materigh cooauened ane other experts netpectrenty. 
a=, 

at DYOR it 
vy No : 

ean Jat 7 CN Jey} Shu Aqatusal   

  

 



Maaria Udyog Limited 
Histes 10 the Conuslidated fimantial statesents for the year ended March 11, 2625 
LAN amoun(s ane £ in Loy, wniens afated olheewre! 

qunnitative dutails of raw maberialy conmumed 

Porof thes Bam, el March §1, 1825 Mawch 11, 2024 

Crearaity At Cruamiity Amount 
CR.C [ Wron [ Stankeis steel theet L] 2151500 Rk BECT ansm 

R Cod Mt Pt 22058 28 1AM 
Wiy jumba LG v Hes TLIAms 130782 SIS s 
Beass rods wnd e Kyt 1,70 Be5 A3 s 15380072 nan 

Catton yars | fabric L SETAEE R0 184153 0ET,I064T 295305 

Gthars peler fosraata | s . 2452 
Totsl TaR61.68 3,878 

fostnoter 

urmascass items and #ach such e i lee than 18% o total wilie. 
It it nek practicabis on the part of The menagement b g quastitathey infarmution in ressect of eiher pempanent comumad Ence % amisti ol 

Vakst o impartedinigensi riw miserish and eompanents/rintes spares parts, bsols and packing maisials eonumed ind percentage tharsck: 

Partiular March 31, 3625 Warch 11, 2024 
Amoust Fevtentage Ameent Farcemtage 

aw materiah and composenti 
irparnd FIT 1L TEELED (R 
Indegencu DT H (L TIATLON L 

Total FLXTIET] 160.40% THETET 80.06% 

Sparen, 1oats and packins materish 
Cimearted 045 581% . [T 
Cindegere 53050 TR 1T858 0 00%| 

Total a5 08,0 317585 59.20% 

Earniongn in faewign cerrency March 31,3005 March 31, 2624 

29ETEOS 48R 
T3.E7808 4333 61 

March 31, FE23__ March 31, 2024 



Maria Ustyog Limited 
Pites s ths Eonuslidsted financisl stabemers Tt the yesr snded March 11, 2023 
A vty g T i facy, gedyas stated otherueant 

2 Ingema taxes 

A, Amauris secagrined in Ehe Statement of Profil and Lass 

imaame tax axpenae 
Curvann ta 

Dafarred tas expense 
Charge in recogniied temrporary differencn 

B Amousts recoguised in Other Comprehemsive incsme. 

Apmearurerents of defned benelt otdganons 

Semesnicamant of sty matnmets 
Fanbah LMY tranubon e 

€ Reconclistion of sMuctivs tux rate 

Prafi beefare 13 
Tix wiiog the Cormpasy's domeste tas rate (A] 
Tax wlfect of: 
<aion dedutible xpeme 
Ot 
Carrinc foowerd isis 

Total (M} 

“Far e yrar ended  Fer the year eedded 
March 11,2005 March 31, 2824 

(i) . 

158810 annse 
LNAETE] [ 

#as the yair snded March 11, 2015 
afars Tan [rupeniel! [ 

ez af an 

[LCE] sy L 
f 51 L] EAly 
LE BoY s 

(i8] [[E1] ) 

For the year ended For the year anded 
March 11, 2028 Marah 17, 2024 

Fata Amauri Fate Ameant 

a1 136314 
I (A T a530 

o - 
e 
1077 54 
[T 

ERIETT] 

Tast Rwcagnined Recagrined 
_Miaegh 31, 1824 In PaL 

158515 msasn 
] Ty 
an158 HEL1Y 

. ] 
07 2 

BSTATY 0, 58513 

17688 L] - s 



Mauria Uyog Limfted 
Hotes: s the Conpalidsted financisl stabements fost the year erded Masth 11, 2005 
A gty ane B in lac. unipes saed cthenwiel 

aat Ercogriard Becoguind Eaut 
Mharch 10, 2031 mPEL im0l Adareh 41, 1804 

psas LiET] - 159615 
AT ooy - sy 
wn S - aa15y 
0w Ash a8 foer] 

[RIEED) weTa [Ei] FEICE] 

mz e - 188 
s (] Bo L] 

. 1043 LL] 1540 
[iEA] [AEIE) aa FEED) 

Baai (i1 ] [XEFTI) 



Masiria Udyeq Limaed 
Notes bo the Consoldated fnmagisl fatements for the yesr ended Mardh 31, 2815 

AN amounts avw £ in lacy, arlecs wafed stbecwinel 

4 Ky Firancisl Ratins 

My financial ration along wie the detads of sgrificast changes (25% ar maved in FY 2304-23 compaced fo FY 252824 i a4 foliows: 

A o Faemulse March 1%, 2025 March 31,2004 % Chasge """"";::"M 

A Cumment rabio i timen) Current asseis | o 350 SAITR  Aeier note 6 
et liskitien 

61, Dor acpaity sitis I i) Total debt | [ BIE 2490% Peiernote O 
Total sty 

P ————) Harmings svalubsle for debt varvicns | 157 I I9I%  Redernate G 
times) Diebt survicn 

T r——————r Tt profit abter tires® 1001 ) S REEN  feiow fhe bmit 
Total sty 

a0, Fosturn o Capital Emploged Rati  Larming Setors imtereat & thx | ) Wh STA%  Ankw the mi 
Pry tax i 2] Capta emgloyed 
[T ot ot | o TR I0BTS  Beiw e mi 

Awverue irom opecations 
gk Irveniney Furaer Aatia in timen) Com of Geods Seld /- Al TR TEAR  Belw the dimit 

vrage irewmiory 
WA Tracn Racomabim Turncver Ratis [n Net credt saless Geoss crecht sale - 1845 I G5 Belw the bt 

el sale rettn 
dverage trads recervables 

i Traede paysboles tumaver tabio (1 it credi purchasess Grass et m 235 ZEEN  Swlow the et 
timet ‘prchase - Purchae returm/ Averige. 

vade paysties 
. Mt capetal Turncwer Ratio fin ot Sabes [ win WEEN  BEAN  Meder sote Ciir 

=20 Mprage working eaped 

). Explanation on iberrs incheded in sumesstor snd deneminasor for compuiation of sbave ratiox 

. Total deb irhadies rsn-umest bamowings, camant bormomangs and intere st accrusd bt not dus o bomsengs 

), Earminegs avadabile for detrt pereces Lo after las « Finanee cedts. 

1€}, Beasons fer significant changen [25% o meee) 

1. Burment rafia had improved dus b feductisn in cument kbl on sceoust of wttiement. 

), Delot acuity ratics has echuced dios to repayment =t barowing. 

), Deot senvice coveage ratio has iproved as miring inersaved and repuyment of many loana ware done a1 &0 Maerh 31, 2085 

o, Baksen 1 inereass in sesemist in the cuent Frandal yaar. 



hauria Udyng Limibed 
isten b the Conselidabed financisl satements far the year paded Marth 17, 3028 
AR amonets are 8 in lies, usless stated ofhenasie! 

65 The Group has been sanctiened working cagital bmits n scess ol i core nupess during the yai, i a53/jate Bam bank ind fissscial mtituson, on 
i o aeurity o feed depouity andi thar iy i recisrement o Fle cusrbarly returs f salements i wch anks and Fnancal invtutions. 

1§86 The Gemap has not snbered into any such Sanisgion wheeh 4 not 1Eorded i the bosk. of ccounts that has been sumendensd o dicioms s incame 
diring the yaar in the hie avsessments under the Income Tax Act. 1851 (e id, seieh o4 Sy o By Sthar relavant provtieny of the Ineseme Tin et 
1961 

67 The Group han nat traded o imvevted in erpptiscusiincy o Wil eumency durisg tha year. 

B4 Th Geoup e mot s any charges o satilaction which 15 et 10 e registered with the Regitras of Comparies berond e stabutony pericd. 

§0 The Geop o ot have any Benams peoperty, whers any procesding has been indtiaied o pesding againit the Company for holding sy Bemam 
ropety. 

T The Group has net acvanced o loaned or imessted fundi 1o ary ather persants) or matitylinsl, inchading foreign araties. flstemediarier) with ¥a 
ndemtanding that the bntemediary thall 

o). cienctly or ircieactly lend or isweit in other perons or wtities idestified in iy sanner whatioese By or on behall of the Cempany Iftimale 
Becatoarnesl o 

by prowede amy quarintes. secunty o the lice 10 or on baha of the Litimate Beneficanes. 

TV The Geoup hus not isosved sy fund from any pemonit) of eniitpfel, induddng foreign: entities Flunding Party) with the underianding fwhether 
recarded in witing St ctherme) Thit the Cempany irall 

Al drmcty of indiractly lered o imvent in Siber perions Of ersties identfied in asy manner whatisevel by of o betall of the Company (itimate 
Benaficaneil o 

o], prowide ny quararies, ascusty o the B 10 07 on behall of the Litimate Besetciaien. 

T2 Thw Fararn Compary had ertered into carisin Saniactions it Ameapsk Group of Companies = pant yean. in eosdequant 1o whith forense suds wan 

conducted ax per 1he Dicections of Hanbile Supreme Court of India 1o lock into Iramactions Between Amiapal Group of Companies and Sureha Group of 

Compamies. Aer which the Homble Supremes Court vide its arder No. Weit PetionixhTad Na. 940/2017 duted Decwnber 2. 2019 had directed My 

Jotindes Stewl & Tubes Limted and Masirla Udypog Limited inchuding maociated tomparsed and Divecion wr Mr, Navnest Komar Sureba and M A 

Wumar Sueka b depenit § 1408000 Lucs. In sessnis 1 the oider ol #ha Mon'sle Supserma Cout, it hud Red an apeieation on December 8, 2019 beforn 
the Hon'ble Supreme Cowrl 10 #006DT The St deeds of immoveable propertin belsnging t Sureka tamily memben and sscciate companies (baied on 

mmmm—mnwmmmdwwwmm!uumuum Praperties amaunting B 10,182 00 Laes. 

wkanging b Mauria Udyeg Limisd. 

s B fnancal yeas 291920, 1 Company had changes F 180000 Lacs in the Statement of Profit and Low sqainit the abowe matter &0 an eitimaied 

bagia and reduced the valus of propertin [property which is deposted 10 Montle Supreme Cout) 

The managemant it of the opnion that, bised on dswts snd the legal advicn thar the ulimate ouicsme of the legal proceediogs in esrmeet 15 et matter 
will et hirws matanial advarss stiact to the Fnancisl patitisn of The Cempaeny. Wance, the Company b neithe: provided Tor Rablay againg] this. mater, 

o amy amour hid bish e & EbatingEnt babiiy 5t reuired by Ind A5 37 Prowisiens, Contiagent Uabiimer and Cortingent Aasets” 



Miameria Udyosg Limited 
Matss to the Conmlidrtd fimancisl stataments far the year snded March 1, 3025 
N ATty e f in ac, wnders £tated i) 

T1 Secusties & Exchange Boied of becka (SEB) widi 43 intarim toar fum sharsi causs nofcs namber WILSMTVDAOROTSI2I023 2004 duted: 19 jure 
2020 ureder westiony B100L 1A, TIRIAL VIET, VIEIZ esd) 5] of SEB Art 1953 reaed along with 3081 rule, 200%, inued interim directions reitraning 
e Campany from accesuing the secunties market i further orden amd sho directed The Compeny 1o depss® jontly asd veverally with ather natices an 
amaust of ® 161969 Lacs 

Fhe Hslding Eampany sebritted it sepky &0 22 july 2023 4l has fled 30 appesl sgainit The s imbeem ondme 4o Securiten Appellate Trisunad (34T 
“The SAT vice its decisson ated 18 Sugest 1023 has Susoued o the sppeal and directed the Camgany b2 il  replylebjection b the shaw Couse nofoe. 
Furhar, she management beeva thit the impegred order s urdensble and i Kable 1ot sude. Accordingly, mo labity bt been recanded by the 
Cominares ssingt the amasunt snuasht e S8 in tha ald intarim ondet 

T4 These financial statements were spproved for inue By the Board of Direcioes on May 24, 2025, 

TS Prewesus yasr fagunes have besn m-grouped and re-atanged wherever neceisary s conlomm 1 the umest year dassfication. 

e amd o bekall of the Beard of Directees ol 
Masria Limited. 

Navneet Kumar Sarra. M 
Maniging Dirsdtise Dirertar 
DN QOSAASEY AN CO0E033 

i x ATt ExEajely, !‘.nx: o 
Dwwpak ey 

Chif Fimancial Offees Company Secreeary 

PANE AMPALIOGE ALE A210T) 

Place New Debni Place fandabad Place Faridabnd 

Dlatie Wiy 20, 2075 Dater hhay 28, 5025 Dute: May 24, 2025 


